NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT
Commissioners Courtroom
710 S. Main Street, Georgetown
February 25, 2025
9:30 A.M.

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in Regular Session at the above location,
date, and time to consider the items set forth below. It is the intent of the Commissioners Court to have a
quorum physically present at the meeting. Up to two (2) Commissioners Court members may participate by
videoconference call in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.

1. Review and approval of minutes.

2, Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic payments
submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for payment provided
said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county.

CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one single
vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that the court discuss
and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
(Items 3 — 34)
3. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.
Fiscal Impact
| From/To || Acct No. (| Description | Amount |
[From ||0100.0509.005003 | [Equipment >$5,000 ||$3,768.46 |
[To ||0100.0509.003011 | |Computer Software | |$3,768.46 |
4. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Public Safety.
Fiscal Impact
| From/To || Acct No. (| Description || Amount |
[From |(0100.0523.003011 | |Computer Software < $5,000 | |$5,315.00 |
[To |[0100.0523.004210 | |Internet/Email Services | |$315.00 |
[To |[0100.0523.003010 | |Computer Equipment < $5,000 | |$5,000.00 |
5. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the District Attorney's Office.




Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. (| Description || Amount
[From | |0100-0409-004998 | INon- Departmental ||$10,765
|
[To | |0100-0440-001107 | ITemp Seasonal Help | |$10,000
|
[To | [0100-0440-002010 | [FICA | [$765
6. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Road and Bridge.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. (| Description [  Amount
[From | |0200-0210-000777 | [Transfer to Cap Projects-P703 | |$60,000.00
|
[From | |0200-0210-000777 | [Transfer to Cap Projects-P704 | |$55,000.00
|
[From | [0200-0210-005711 | [Heavy Equipment>$5,000 | [$60,000.00
|
[To | |0200-0210-003599 | |IRoad Constr/Maint | |$175,000.00
7. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Road and Bridge.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. (| Description ||  Amount
[From | |0200-0210-003005 | |Office Furniture | [$4,000.00
[To | |0200-0210-004505 | |Software Maintenance | [$4,000.00

8. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer to the Elections Department.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. (| Description [  Amount
[From ||0100.0492.005741 | IComputer Software >$5K | |$15,000.00
|
[From | [0100.0492.005742 | Voting Equipment | [$15,000.00
|
[To ||0100.0492.003010 | |Computer Equipment | {$30,000.00
9. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position title changes,

position grade changes, and any corresponding line item transfers.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax collections for the month of January
2025 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the 2024 Racial Profiling Report and Analysis Report,
submitted by the Precinct 2 Constables Office.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace Precinct 2 January 2025
Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure 103.005.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 3, January 2025 Monthly
Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure § 103.005.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving Contract #2025121 between Williamson County
and LexisNexis Risk Solutions for Accurint subscription services in the amount of $200.00 per month, and
authorizing the execution of the agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on ratifying the Professional Services Contract between Michael
H. Almassi and Williamson County for Interpretation Services for the District Courts for $3,122.00.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Software Services Order Form and SAAS
Service Agreement Contract #2025140 with Blazestack to provide Fire Investigation Case Management
Software for the Williamson County, in the amount of $5,500.00, and authorize execution of this agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Service Agreement #202602 between Williamson
County and Animal Balance for spay/neuter surgery, at the to-not-exceed amount of $35,000.00, exempting
this service as a Professional Service as per Texas Local Government Code Discretionary Exemption (TLCG
262.024 (a)(4) a personal or professional service), and authorizing the execution of the agreement.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive
sealed solicitations for Williamson County Temporary As Needed Labor Services, under RFP #25RFP31.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase #2025139 for the second (2) bulk
order for FY25 for budgeted computers and equipment between Dell Technologies, Inc. and Williamson County
in the amount of $85,313.86, pursuant to the DIR contract #DIR-TSO-3763.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving Purchase and Service Amendment #2025141
between Williamson County and Tyler Technologies, Inc. for CivilServe annual support and maintenance for
the amount of $57,522.73, pursuant to Sourcewell contract #Sourcewell 060624-TTI.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Service Contract #2025134 with Falkenberg
Construction Company Inc. for the SWRP Cricket Field Fencing pursuant to BuyBoard Contract #728-24 at the
Southwest Regional Park for Parks and Recreation in the amount of $70,405.17 and authorize execution of
this agreement.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Construction Contract #2025135 with
Falkenberg Construction Company Inc. for the SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel pursuant to BuyBoard
Contract #728-24 at the Southwest Regional Park for Parks and Recreation in the amount of $129,645.26 and
authorize execution of this agreement.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive
sealed responses for Geotechnical/Construction Materials Testing (CMT) Pool, under #25RFSQ32. Funding
Source P#TBD.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Physical Access Control Policy.



25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #24RFSQ53 to Hendrix Consulting
Engineers, P.C., for CJC Chiller Plant & Boiler Design, in the amount of Forty-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred
Fifty Dollars ($48,750.00) and authorize execution of the agreement.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #24RFSQ74 to Terracon Consultants, Inc.,
for Environmental Testing and Remediation Services for the Lake Creek Annex Project, in the amount of
Twenty-Three Thousand, Four Hundred Dollars ($23,400.00) and authorize execution of the agreement. P632

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #25RFSQ7 to Ramirez Simon Engineering,
LLC, for the ESOC Generator Docking Station project, in the amount of Forty-Three Thousand, Three Hundred
Dollars ($43,300.00) and authorize execution of the agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Supplemental Work Authorization No 1 to Work Authorization
No 1 under the Williamson County Contract between Atlas Technical Consultants, LLC and Williamson County
dated March 19, 2024, for O Call Materials Testing and Geotechnical Engineering Services. Funding source:
01.0200.0210.004160.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Supplemental Work Authorization No 1 to Work Authorization
No 3 under the Williamson County Contract between KC Engineering, Inc. and Williamson County dated May
31, 2022, for Engineering Design Services for the Central Maintenance Facility. This supplemental is to extend
the expiration date to September 30, 2025. Funding source: P536.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Supplemental Work Authorization No 1 to Work Authorization
No 5 under the Williamson County Contract between KC Engineering, Inc. and Williamson County dated May
31, 2022, for Engineering Design Services for the Skyview Drive Bridge Project. This supplemental is to extend
the expiration date to September 30, 2025. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.004100.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive
sealed responses for public involvement, information and education related to the implementation of Williamson
County Infrastructure projects, under RFP #25RFP30.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Change Order No 1 to contract number 24IFB39 for Chasco
Constructors LTD., LLP in the amount of ($85,547.10) for CR 404 Pavement Rehabilitation. Funding source:
P646.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving Contract #2025131 between Miller Imaging and
Williamson County for a 12-month term HP T2600 Printer Rental in the amount of $4,200.00 and authorize
execution of the service agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the preliminary plat for the Oasis at 337 RV Park
private subdivision — Precinct 4.

REGULAR AGENDA

Discuss, consider and take any necessary action to approve an Order for Interment by cremation of deceased
(Carl Alan Still) who passed away in Williamson County, Texas, where the County has discretion to inter,
pursuant to Tex. Health & Safety Code § 711.002(e), and authorize Beck Funeral Home to move forward with
interment.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting an investment from Commander, Juan Amaya, on
behalf of VFW Post 8587 for the Williamson County Veteran Services office.



37. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on proclaiming March 5 - 6, 2025 as Amplify Wilco Days in
Williamson County.

38. .Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a policy exception for a highly qualified hire within the
All-District Courts department for the position of Director of District Court Administration.

39. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the creation of a position in the Non-Departmental budget for
the purpose of military leave.

40. 10:00 am Conduct a public hearing relating to a request by the County Auditor, Department 495, for a mid-year
salary review on the entire County Auditor department due to retention and turnover issues and discuss (1) the
reason for the funding in excess of the previously approved budget amount, including the public purpose that
will be served by approving the additional funding; and (2) the exact amount and sources of the excess
funding, and the terms for distribution of payments that affect and maintain the public purpose to be served by
making the excess payment.

41. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action approving the mid-year salary study results for the County
Auditor's Office, including position changes and new salary amounts.

42. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the plan for and the funding of the preservation and
restoration of the County Clerk's revised Records Archive Plan 2024-2025.

43. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due
to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment acknowledging additional expenditures for
the Records Archive Fund - County Clerk.

Fiscal Impact
' From/To || Acct No. (| Description (| Amount
| | [0384.0384.004550 | Imaging & Microfilming | [$2,800,000.00

44. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due
to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment acknowledging additional revenues for the
Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter Donation Fund.

Fiscal Impact

' From/To || Acct No. (| Description [ Amount |
| | [0546.0000.361300 | |Interest, Investments ||$14,199.30 |
| | [0546.0000.367404 | |Animal Shelter Donations | |$269,808.42 |
| | [0546.0000.367440 | |Jane's Fund Donations ||$18,138.00 |
| | [0546.0000.367442 | |Play Yard Donations |1$120.00 |
| | [0546.0000.367443 | |Heart Worm Trmt Donations | |$300.00 |
| | [0546.0000.367445 | [SIT Team Donations | [$505.00 |
I

| [0546.0000.367447 | |Animal Transport Donations | 1$3,196.60 |




| [0546.0000.367448 | [Kitten Care Donations | [$2,806.00 |

| [0546.0000.370150 | |Sales of Pet Care Products |[$1,117.27 |
45, Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due
to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment acknowledging additional expenditures for
the Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter Donation Fund.
Fiscal Impact
| From/To || Acct No. (| Description [ Amount |
| | [0546.0546.001100 | [Salary |$37,766.07 |
| | [0546.0546.002010 | [FICA |[$2,889.10 |
| | [0546.0546.002020 | [Retirement |$6,061.45 |
| | [0546.0546.002030 | |Insurance | [$6,480.00 |
| | [0546.0546.003510 | |Purchases for Resale |[$1,170.87 |
[ | [0546.0546.003670 | [Use of Donations | [$229,555.05 |
| | [0546.0546.004100 | |Professional Services |[$19,008.12 |
| | [0546.0546.004105 | [Foster Home Care |[$2,940.61 |
| | [0546.0546.004231 | [Travel |/$3,349.95 |
| | [0546.0546.004232 | |Training |[$529.23 |
| | [0546.0546.004509 | [Facility Enhancements |[$125.75 |
| | [0546.0546.004975 | [Animal Medical Care |[$314.39 |
46. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on transferring $157,070 from P499 (CR 201 Ph 1) to P489
(South San Gabriel Ranch Sub) and $65,000 from P704 (CR 153) to P547 (CR 118) for the Road and Bridge
projects.
47. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the engagement of the law firm of Armbrust & Brown, PLLC

to represent Williamson County in relation to activities conducted by Cameron County Housing Finance
Corporation in Williamson County, Texas; and exemption of these services from the competitive bid/proposal
requirements of the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary exemption for personal or professional
services, as set forth under Tex. Loc. Gov't Code § 262.024(a)(4).



48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving Service and Purchase Contract #2025138
between CDW-G and Williamson County for an Annual Subscription with CrowdStrike in the amount of
$386,497.26 pursuant to DIR contract #DIR-CPO-5303 and authorizing the execution of the purchase.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving purchase #2025142 between Williamson County
and CDW Government, LLC for existing subscriptions for County firewalls, in the amount of $119,885.55,
pursuant to TIPS cooperative contract #230105.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving Purchase #2025143 between Williamson County
and NETSYNC for networking equipment for the new CAD (911) project in the total amount of $120,503.28
pursuant to DIR contract #DIR-CPO-5347. Funding Source is P604.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Purchase #2025144 CAD (911) host servers for
the new 911 system from ConverageOne, Inc. in the amount of $589,954.83 pursuant to DIR contract
#DIR-TSO0-3763, and approval of the quote. Funding Source P604.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Purchase and Service Subscription #2025147
between Williamson County and Freelt Data Solutions Inc. to provide the Williamson County IT Department

with new licenses of VMWare Software for a three (3) year period beginning 03/31/2025 through 11/15/2027 in

the total amount of $377,856.68 paying $90,528.16 in year one and $143,664.26 in the subsequent years per

the terms of Contract #DIR-TS0-4288, and authorizing the execution of the agreement. The funding Source is P604.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Purchase and Annual Maintenance
Agreement #2025149 for Immix Technology, Inc. for UKG timekeeping software in the amount of $176,058.00,
pursuant to DIR contract #DIR TSO-4315.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on an Amended and Restated Williamson County Exposition
Center Operation and Use Agreement by and between Williamson County, Texas and the Taylor Rodeo
Association, Inc. (TRA) related to TRA's use of the Williamson County Expo Center.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Amendment adding additional services to the
Parks Department alarm system previously approved on June 2, 2020, under agenda item #18, a total cost of
$174.00 for equipment and installation, with $40.00 per month recurring, and authorizing the execution of the
additional services.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Amendment to contract #23RFP30, Hazard
Mitigation Grant Writing Services with Williamson County Services Contract H20 Partners, Inc., previously
approved under agenda item #12 on 05.09.2023, adding Appendix Il Part 200 terms.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an updated career ladder for Facilities Management.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Agreement for
Geotechnical Engineering Services between Williamson County and ECS Southwest, LLP being dated
February 28th, 2023, Supplemental Agreement No. 1, dated November 30th, 2023, related to the Juvenile
Justice Center Addition.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing a Master Service Contract No #2025132 with
Viking Fence Co., LTD, dba Viking GP, LLC for as-needed services, in the not exceed amount of Five-Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00), pursuit to TIPS Cooperative # 210205 and authorize the execution of the
agreement.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Agreement for
Design and Engineering Services between Williamson County and Halff Associates, Inc. being dated August
20th, 2020, First Amended and Restated dated December 8th, 2021, Amendment No. 1 dated February 8,
2022, Amendment No. 2, dated June 6th, 2023, Supplemental Agreement No. 1, dated March 8th, 2024,
related to Berry Springs Park Additions.



61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Master Service Agreement, #2025136,
between Williamson County and Separation Systems Consultants, Inc. (SSCI) for Abatement Services in the
not-to-exceed amount of $500,000.00 pursuant to TIPS Cooperative Contract #230601 and authorize
execution of the agreement.

Receive the February 2025 Construction Summary Report and PowerPoint Presentation.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Contract Amendment No 1 under the Williamson County
Contract for Engineering Services between Raba Kistner Inc. and Williamson County dated March 19, 2024, for
On Call Materials Testing and Geotechnical Engineering Services. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.004160.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the second and FINAL Renewal of Contract
#23IFB1 (MBGF) for the same terms and conditions without any price increase but with additional items added,
as per the attached bid tabulation with RHB Construction Inc., for a 12-month term from January 10, 2025, to
January 9, 2026.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #25IFB18 Flexible Base to Central Texas
Stone and Aggregate based on the lowest and best bid for a particular location or type of material.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #25IFB18 Flexible Base to Heartland Quarries
LLC dba Heartland Aggregates based on lowest and best bid for a particular location or type of material.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #25IFB16 County Road Seal Coat FY 25
Improvements to D.1.J. Construction Inc. in the not-to-exceed amount of $1,177,935.15 and authorize
execution of the agreement.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #25IFB18 Flexible Base to Wilco Aggregates
LLC based on the lowest and best bid for a particular location or type of material.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a Consent and Development Agreement between
Williamson County, The Johnson Development Corp., CR207B Partners, LP, CR207S Partners, LP, Bill
Chapman, Heath Chapman, and a proposed Willamson County Municipal Utility District to be located on CR 207.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a Consent and Development Agreement between
Williamson County, 05 Ranch Investments, LLC, and the proposed Burford Ranch Municipal Utility District.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 6 in the amount of $182,734.17
for Project 23IFB8 Corridor H Sam Bass Road (Cash Construction) P: 462 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 7 in the amount of $288,195.31
for Project 23IFB8 Corridor H - Sam Bass Road (Cash Construction) P: 462 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 14 in the amount of
($1,307,037.44) for Project 22IFB39 CR 111 Westinghouse Road (Capital Excavation) P: 292 Funding Source:
Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 5 in the amount of ($318,499.67)
for Project 22IFB138 CR 366 (James Construction Group) P: 296 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the Notice of Termination (NOT) for Stormwater
Discharge associated with Construction Activities under TPDES Construction General Permit (TXR150000) for
CR 366, a Road Bond project in Commissioner Pct. 4. P: 296 Funding Source: Road Bond.



76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the Notice of Termination (NOT) for Stormwater
Discharge associated with Construction Activities under TPDES Construction General Permit (TXR150000) for
CR 258 Extension, a Road Bond project in Commissioner Pct. 2. P: 277 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the Notice of Termination (NOT) for Stormwater
Discharge associated with Construction Activities under TPDES Construction General Permit (TXR150000) for
CR 245 Reconstruction, a Road Bond project in Commissioner Pct. 3. P: 353 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the Notice of Termination (NOT) for Stormwater
Discharge associated with Construction Activities under TPDES Construction General Permit (TXR150000) for
CR 307 Reconstruction, a Road Bond project in Commissioner Pct. 4. P: 394 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the Notice of Termination (NOT) for Stormwater
Discharge associated with Construction Activities under TPDES Construction General Permit (TXR150000) for
CR 332 Realignment, a Road Bond project in Commissioner Pct. 4. P: 366 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the Notice of Termination (NOT) for Stormwater
Discharge associated with Construction Activities under TPDES Construction General Permit (TXR150000) for
CR 129, a Road Bond project in Commissioner Pct. 4. P: 375 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the Notice of Termination (NOT) for Stormwater
Discharge associated with Construction Activities under TPDES Construction General Permit (TXR150000) for
Great Oaks Drive Improvement at Brushy Creek, a Road Bond project in Commissioner Pct. 3. P: 270 Funding
Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 5 in the amount of ($49,103.60)
for Project 23IFB13 Bud Stockton Extension (Cash Construction) P: 307 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 8 in the amount of $35,881.14 for
Project 23IFB8 Corridor H - Sam Bass Road (Cash Construction) P: 462 Funding Source: Road Bond.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Contract Amendment No. 1 to the FM 971 (Granger)
contract executed March 19, 2024, between Williamson County and AtkinsRéalis relating to the 2023 Road
Bond Program.

Project: P688 Funding source: Road Bonds

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action accepting a donation of 0.0957 acres for right of way on the FM
971 project from Granger Independent School District. Funding Source: Bonds P688

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a right of entry agreement with Oldcastle Materials Texas
Production Assets Company, LLC required for the Liberty Hill Bypass Segment 3 project. Funding Source:
Bonds P663

EXECUTIVE SESSION

"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to adjourn into
executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the
matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071
(Consultations with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real Property),
551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters),
551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations
regarding Economic Development Negotiations)."



87.

88.

89.

Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072 Deliberation
Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the
position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person.)

A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
Preliminary discussions relating to the proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by third
parties

a) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Bud Stockton Dr.

b) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 143

c) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.

d) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 255.

e) Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 195 @ Ronald Reagan.
Discuss the acquisition of real property for the future SH 29 corridor.
Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Hero Way.

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for E. Wilco Highway.

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor A-2.

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor B

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor E.

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor H

Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor J.

Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Arterial K.

Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Corridor I.

Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Ronald Reagan Widening.
Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for CR 313.

Discuss the acquisition of right of way for Bagdad Road/CR 279.
Discuss the acquisition of right of way for CR 314.

Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Seward Junction Loop
Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 110N

Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 175.

Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Long Range Transportation Plan.
aa) Discuss property located at 9500 Lake Creek Parkway, Austin, TX 78717
bb) Discuss the acquisition of real property for Williamson County Justice Center and Corrections Facilities

N<XESEE2L20D 053 X2 TQ o

_——

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
Preliminary discussions relating to the proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the County

a) Discuss country-owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
b) Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St. between 3rd and 4th
Streets. (Formerly occupied by WCCHD)
c) Sale of property located at 747 County Rd. 138 Hutto, Texas
d) Discuss Blue Springs Blvd. property
e) Discuss the potential sale of Williamson County-owned properties within the downtown Georgetown area.

Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section
551.087:
Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.

a) Project Skyfall

b) Project Garden

c) Project School Bus
d) Project Lunch Lady
e) Project Sequoia

Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential attorney-client legal
matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, "Consultation with
Attorney"), including the following:

a. Litigation:
1. Lawsuits and administrative complaints filed, served and/or received following the Williamson County
Commissioners Court agenda submittal deadline
2. Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In the District Court of
Williamson County, Texas/County of Williamson v. Purdue Pharma, L.P., et al., MDL PRETRIAL CAUSE
NO. 2018-63587, in the 152d District Court of Harris County, Texas
3. Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00074-LY; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division



4. Civil Action No. 1:22-cv-00254-RP; Rodney A. Hurdsman, #0217082 v. Mike Gleason, et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
5. Cause No. 22-1213-C425; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction Company,
Inc. and Argonaut Insurance Company; In the 425th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas
6. Cause No. 22-1359-C368; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter, Botkin Prime Construction Company,
Inc. and Great American Insurance Company of New York; In the 368th Judicial Court of Williamson
County, Texas
7. Cause No. 23-1061-C368; Heather Lorenzen v. Williamson County; In the 368th Judicial District
Court of Williamson County, Texas
8. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01120; Jeremy Story v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
9. Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-00318-Dll; Laura Pressley et al. v. Jane Nelson et al.; In the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
10. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-00759-RP; Derrick Neal v. Williamson County and Cities Health District, et
al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
11. Cause No. 23-2566-C480; Williamson County, Texas v. DM Medical Billings, LLC and Dina Mueller;
In the 488 Judicial District Court; Williamson County, Texas
12. Cause No. 24-1887-C26; lvory Deon Hornsby v. Williamson County, et al.; In the 26th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
13. Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-01183; Johnny Joe Tijerina v. Andrew Rodriguez, et al.; in the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
14. Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-1043-Dll; Luis J. Ortiz Hernandez v. Williamson County, Texas; in the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
15. Cause No. 24-2467-C425; Carlos Turcios, et al. v. Williamson County, et al; In the 425th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
16. Cause No. 24-2687-C395; Paul Johnson v. Williamson County Tax Office; In the 395th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
17. Cause No. 24-3042-C26; Susann Wirkes v. Chinogringo Properties, LLC, et al., in the 26th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas
b. Administrative Complaints:
1. EEOC Charge No.: 451-2025-01739; B.R.
2. EEOC Charge No.: 451-2025-02018; J.S.
c. Claims:
1. Claim No. 09252024-560-347 - auto liability claim by Madisyn Grace Thomas for an incident occurring
on or about 09/25/2024.
d. Other:
1. Legal matters relating to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s Final Rule Designating Critical Habitat for
the Georgetown and Salado Salamanders.
2. Legal matters pertaining to tax exemptions for private apartment developers under the Texas Public
Facility Corporation Act, codified as Texas Local Government Code Chapter 303, and Texas Housing
Finance Corporations Act, codified as Texas Local Government Code Chapter 394.
3. Legal matters and potential litigation relating to the non-profit status of EPCOR/ 130 Regional Water
Supply Corporation.
4. Legal matters pertaining to proposed rules, Chapter 56 in Title 1 of the Texas Administrative Code
relating to reporting requirements of District and County Attorneys in counties with a population of
500,000 or more.
5. Legal matters pertaining to regulation of firearms on Williamson County premises.
6. Legal matters pertaining to contracting of inmate housing of third-party governmental agency inmates.

Discuss and deliberate the employment and duties of the Williamson County Manager (Executive Session as
per Gov. Code Section 551.074 — Personnel Matters: Deliberate the appointment and evaluation of public
officer/department head).

Discuss security assessments or deployments relating to information resources technology; network security
information as described by Texas Gov’'t Code Section 2059.055(b); and/or (3) the deployment, or specific
occasions for implementation, of security personnel, critical infrastructure, or security devices. (Executive
Session as per Texas Gov't. Code § 551.089).

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)



92.

93.

94,

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and
other legal matters, including the following:

a. Litigation:
1. Lawsuits and administrative complaints filed, served and/or received following the Williamson County
Commissioners Court agenda submittal deadline
2. Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In the District Court of
Williamson County, Texas/County of Williamson v. Purdue Pharma, L.P., et al., MDL PRETRIAL CAUSE
NO. 2018-63587, in the 152d District Court of Harris County, Texas
3. Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00074-LY; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
4. Civil Action No. 1:22-cv-00254-RP; Rodney A. Hurdsman, #0217082 v. Mike Gleason, et al.; In the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
5. Cause No. 22-1213-C425; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter Botkin Prime Construction Company,
Inc. and Argonaut Insurance Company; In the 425th Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas
6. Cause No. 22-1359-C368; Williamson County, Texas v. Ritter, Botkin Prime Construction Company,
Inc. and Great American Insurance Company of New York; In the 368th Judicial Court of Williamson
County, Texas
7. Cause No. 23-1061-C368; Heather Lorenzen v. Williamson County; In the 368th Judicial District
Court of Williamson County, Texas
8. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-01120; Jeremy Story v. Williamson County, Texas, et al.; In the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
9. Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-00318-DlII; Laura Pressley et al. v. Jane Nelson et al.; In the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
10. Civil Action No. 1:23-cv-00759-RP; Derrick Neal v. Williamson County and Cities Health District, et
al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
11. Cause No. 23-2566-C480; Williamson County, Texas v. DM Medical Billings, LLC and Dina Mueller;
In the 488 Judicial District Court; Williamson County, Texas
12. Cause No. 24-1887-C26; lvory Deon Hornsby v. Williamson County, et al.; In the 26th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
13. Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-01183; Johnny Joe Tijerina v. Andrew Rodriguez, et al.; in the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
14. Case Number: 1:24-cv-01166 DII; Tettus J. Davis v. Billy Ray Stubblefield, et al; In the United States
District Court, Western District of Texas
15. Civil Action No. 1:24-cv-1043-DlII; Luis J. Ortiz Hernandez v. Williamson County, Texas; in the
United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
16. Cause No. 24-2467-C425; Carlos Turcios, et al. v. Williamson County, et al; In the 425th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
17. Cause No. 24-2687-C395; Paul Johnson v. Williamson County Tax Office; In the 395th Judicial
District Court of Williamson County, Texas
18. Cause No. 24-3042-C26; Susann Wirkes v. Chinogringo Properties LLC, et al., In the 26th Judicial
district court of Williamson County, Texas
b. Administrative Complaints:
1. EEOC Charge No.: 451-2025-01739; B.R.
2. EEOC Charge No.: 451-2025-02018; J.S.
c. Claims:
1. Claim No. 09252024-560-347 - auto liability claim by Madisyn Grace Thomas for incident occurring on
or about 09/25/2024.
d. Other:
1. Legal matters relating to U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s Final Rule Designating Critical Habitat for
the Georgetown and Salado Salamanders.
2. Legal matters pertaining to tax exemptions for private apartment developers under the Texas Public
Facility Corporation Act, codified as Texas local Government Code Chapter 303, and Texas Housing
Finance Corporations Act, codified as Texas local Government Code Chapter 394.
3. Legal matters and potential litigation relating to the non-profit status of EPCOR/ 130 Regional Water
Supply Corporation.
4. Legal matters pertaining to proposed rules, Chapter 56 in Title 1 of the Texas Administrative Code
relating to reporting requirements of District and County Attorneys in counties with a population of
500,000 or more.
5. Legal matters pertaining to regulation of firearms on Williamson County premises.
6. Legal matters pertaining to contracting of inmate housing of third-party governmental agency inmates.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the employment and duties of the Williamson County
Manager (Executive Session as per Gov. Code Section 551.074 — Personnel Matters: Deliberate the
appointment and evaluation of public officer/department head).

Comments from Commissioners.



95. Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow members of
the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson County but that do not
appear as an Agenda ltem on a meeting’s Agenda. During such Public Comment Period, speakers shall be
limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her remarks and the maximum overall discussion time
allowed for the Public Comment Period, regardless of the number of members of the public wishing to address
the Court during such period, shall be limited to ten (10) minutes. Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be
evenly allocated among speakers should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public
Comment Period. Please note that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters
that are not on the agenda.

Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson County Courthouse, a place
readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 21st day of February 2025 at 5:00 PM and remained posted for at
least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.



Commissioners Court - Regular Session
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025
Line Item Transfer

Submitted For: Dale Butler Submitted By: Gina Wrehsnig, Facilities Management

Department: Facilities Management
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.

Background
Need additional funds for the remainder of the FY for Lenel Web License.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. [ Description [ Amount

[From ||0100.0509.005003 | Equipment >$5,000 |$3,768.46

To [10100.0509.003011 | (Computer Software |1$3,768.46
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/07/2025 02:24 PM

Budget Office Saira Hernandez 02/18/2025 09:31 AM

Budget Office Saira Hernandez 02/20/2025 12:26 PM

Form Started By: Gina Wrehsnig Started On: 02/07/2025 08:14 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



Commissioners Court - Regular Session
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Public Safety

Submitted For: Richard Semple Submitted By: Tammy McCulley, Information
Technology

Department: Information Technology

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Public Safety.

Background

Internet service for test cradlepoint: This will allow IT staff to fully replicate the mobile environment used by
first responders to enable them to better support and troubleshoot issues.

Duo Physical Tokens: These are required by our external first responder agencies to ensure that they are
meeting the multifactor authentication requirements set forth by our cybersecurity insurance provider.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. [ Description [ Amount |

IFrom [|0100.0523.003011 | IComputer Software < $5,000 [1$5,315.00 |

lTo [|0100.0523.004210 | Internet/Email Services [1$315.00 |

lTo [|0100.0523.003010 | IComputer Equipment < $5,000 1$5,000.00 |
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/14/2025 11:05 AM

Budget Office Saira Hernandez 02/18/2025 09:31 AM

Form Started By: Tammy McCulley Started On: 02/14/2025 10:49 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/18/2025



Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Non-Departmental transfer to District Attorney's Office
Submitted By: Grace Frias, District Attorney

Department: District Attorney
Agenda Category: Consent

Agenda Iltem

Information

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the District Attorney's Office.

Background

The District Attorney's Office is requesting $10,000 as additional funding is needed for case review.

Fiscal Impact

No file(s) attached.

| From/To || Acct No. [ Description [|  Amount |

IFrom [|0100-0409-004998 [ Non- Departmental [|$10,765 |

lTo [|0100-0440-001107 [ Temp Seasonal Help [|$10,000 |

lTo [|0100-0440-002010 [ FICA ||$765 |
Attachments

Inbox

County Judge Exec Asst.
Budget Office

Form Started By: Grace Frias
Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025

Form Review

Reviewed By Date
Delia Colon 02/14/2025 02:52 PM
Saira Hernandez 02/19/2025 10:14 AM

Started On: 02/14/2025 01:57 PM




Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Line item transfer for Road & Bridge Division

Submitted For: Matt Williamson Submitted By: Jenifer Favreau, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Road and Bridge.

Background
This transfer is necessary to complete emergency bridge repairs on CR 351.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. [ Description || Amount

IFrom [10200-0210-000777 | Transfer to Cap Projects-P703 [|$60,000.00

lFrom [10200-0210-000777 | Transfer to Cap Projects-P704 [|$55,000.00

lFrom [10200-0210-005711 | Heavy Equipment>$5,000 ||$60,000.00

lTo [10200-0210-003599 | Road Constr/Maint [|$175,000.00
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 11:12 AM

Budget Office Saira Hernandez 02/20/2025 12:26 PM

Form Started By: Jenifer Favreau Started On: 02/20/2025 10:42 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Line item transfer for Road & Bridge Division

Submitted For: Matt Williamson Submitted By: Jenifer Favreau, Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Road and Bridge.

Background

This transfer is necessary to allow for the purchase of traffic modeling software in order to review traffic studies
related to development proposals.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. [| Description | Amount

IFrom [ 10200-0210-003005 | |Office Furniture [|$4,000.00

To [10200-0210-004505 ||Software Maintenance [|$4,000.00
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 11:22 AM

Budget Office Saira Hernandez 02/20/2025 12:26 PM

Form Started By: Jenifer Favreau Started On: 02/20/2025 10:50 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Line Iltem Transfer for the Elections Department

Submitted For: Bridgette Escobedo Submitted By: Bridgette Escobedo, Elections
Department: Elections

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer to the Elections Department.

Background

Elections will purchase hotspots from AT&T FirstNet to provide better Wi-Fi service to polling locations. This will
be under the County’s current account with AT&T FirstNet and will allow the elimination of the Verizon and
TMobile hotspots currently being used.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To || Acct No. [ Description [ Amount |

[From [10100.0492.005741 | IComputer Software >$5K ||$15,000.00 |

lFrom [10100.0492.005742 | \Voting Equipment ||$15,000.00 |

lTo [10100.0492.003010 | IComputer Equipment ||$30,000.00 |
Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 11:54 AM

Budget Office Saira Hernandez 02/20/2025 12:26 PM

Form Started By: Bridgette Escobedo Started On: 02/20/2025 11:39 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025




Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Compensation Items

Submitted By: Kayla Marek, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position title changes,
position grade changes, and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attached documentation for details.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount

Attachments
Merit Report
Merit LIT
Position Changes

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Human Resources (Originator) Allen Frederick 02/19/2025 05:01 PM

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 08:57 AM

Form Started By: Kayla Marek Started On: 02/19/2025 04:52 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



Lump- |Pay Effective

Emp Current Annual New Annual [sum Proposal |Date of
Department Position Num Annual Salary|Merit Amt [Merit% |Salary Merit |Reason Change
District Clerk Deputy District Clerk.0748.001100. 17294 [$43,263.36 |$1,297.90 (3.00 |$44,561.25 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Juvenile Services Administrative Specialist.1051.001100. 17101 [$41,184.00 |$1,235.52 (3.00 [$42,419.52 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Juvenile Services Juv Supervision Offcr1.1074.001100. 17162 [$45,822.40 |$2,291.12 |[5.00 |$48,113.52 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Juvenile Services Juv Supervision Offcr1.1135.001100. 17158 [$45,823.48 |$2,291.18 (5.00 |$48,114.66 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Juvenile Services Juv Supervision Offcr1.1070.001100. 17161 [$45,822.40 |$2,291.12 |[5.00 |$48,113.52 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Juvenile Services Juv Supervision Offcr1.1739.001100. 17160 [$45,822.40 |$2,291.12 (5.00 |$48,113.52 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Juvenile Services Juv Supervision Offcr1.1069.001100. 17112 [$45,823.48 |$2,291.18 |[5.00 |$48,114.66 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
On-Site Sewage Facilities  |OSSF Coordinator.1821.001100. 17269 [$50,161.57 |$1,504.84 [3.00 |$51,666.41 - |MERIT 28-Feb-25
Unified Road Systems Operator 111.2178.001100. 15230 [$53,784.60 |$1,000.00 (1.86 |$54,784.60 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Unified Road Systems Operator1.1532.001100. 16522 ($45,320.02 |$1,359.59 |3.00 [$46,679.61 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Wilco Pretrial Services Pretrial Officer.2177.001100. 17148 [$50,593.92 |$1,517.82 (3.00 |$52,111.74 - MERIT 28-Feb-25
Wilco Pretrial Services Pretrial Manager.2213.001100. 16636 [$68,157.70 |$2,215.13 [3.25 |$70,372.83 - MERIT 28-Feb-25




(TO) (FROM)

entity fund dept object dr cr

01 0100 0450 001100 1,297.90

01 0100 0450 001130 1,297.90
01 0100 0576 001100 12,691.24

01 0100 0576 001130 12,691.24
01 0100 0661 001100 1,504.84

01 0100 0661 002010 115.12

01 0100 0661 002020 241.53

01 0100 8006{001130 1,504.84
01 0100 8006{002010 115.12
01 0100 8006(002020 241.53
01 0200 0210 001100 2,359.59

01 0200 0210 001130 2,359.59
01 0100 0591 001100 3,732.95

01 0100 0591 001130 3,732.95




Current Earliest
Current Position *New Position |Reduction to |Increase to Oracle

Department Number Annual *New Annual|Budget Budget Position Position Effective

and Name PCN EE ID Salary Salary Amount Amount Budget Budget Change notes Date
Reallocation of position budget to
facilitate internal promotion as

0210 Unified Road allowed by policy. Surplus salary

Systems 1511 11628 $64,251.20 |$64,251.20 |$77,107.29 |$73,707.72 $3,399.57 N/A from PCN 1511 to PCN 1556 2/28/2025
Reallocation of position budget to
facilitate internal promotion as

0210 Unified Road allowed by policy. Surplus salary

Systems 1556 |Vacant [N/A N/A $61,100.43 |$64,500.00 N/A $3,399.57 [from PCN 1511 to PCN 1556 2/28/2025
Reallocation of position budget as
allowed by policy. Surplus salary

0475 County Attorney 0016 |Vacant [N/A N/A $48,688.72 |$45,465.95 $3,222.77 N/A from PCN 0016 to PCN 2155 2/28/2025
Reallocation of position budget as
allowed by policy. Surplus salary

0475 County Attorney 2155 17243 $39,535.60 |$42,758.37 |[$39,535.60 |$42,758.37 N/A $3,222.77 |from PCN 0016 to PCN 2155 2/28/2025
Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to

0560 Sheriff Office 1229 |04631 [$52,883.44 |$52,883.44 [N/A N/A N/A N/A B.21. No fiscal impact 2/28/2025
Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to

0560 Sheriff Office 1236 |Vacant [$44,418.08 |544,418.08 ([N/A N/A N/A N/A B.21. No fiscal impact 2/28/2025
Reclass: Grade changefrom B.23 to

0560 Sheriff Office 1387 |12010 [$64,474.65 |$64,474.65 [N/A N/A N/A N/A B.25. No fiscal impact. 2/28/2025




Department Number
and Name

PCN

EEID

Current
Annual
Salary

*New Annual
Salary

Current
Position
Budget

Amount

*New Position
Budget
Amount

Reduction to
Position
Budget

Increase to
Position
Budget

Change notes

Earliest
Oracle
Effective
Date

0560 Sheriff Office

1239

13709

$39,535.64

$39,535.64

$59,848.33

$39,535.64

$20,312.69

N/A

Realloaction of position budget as
allowed by policy. Suplus salary from
PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs 0068,
1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052 and
2053

2/28/2025

0560 Sheriff Office

1224

17038

$36,885.66

$36,885.66

$47,250.44

$45,678.50

$1,571.94

N/A

Realloaction of position budget as
allowed by policy. Suplus salary from
PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs 0068,
1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052 and
2053

2/28/2025

0560 Sheriff Office

0068

16211

$40,298.88

$43,618.76

$40,298.88

$43,618.76

N/A

$3,319.88

Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to
B.25. Realloaction of position budget
as allowed by policy. Suplus salary
from PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs
0068, 1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052
and 2053

2/28/2025

0560 Sheriff Office

1226

14205

$42,338.00

$43,618.76

$42,338.00

$43,618.76

N/A

$1,280.76

Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to
B.25. Realloaction of position budget
as allowed by policy. Suplus salary
from PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs
0068, 1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052
and 2053

2/28/2025

0560 Sheriff Office

1227

Vacant

$38,748.92

$43,618.76

$38,748.92

$43,618.76

N/A

$4,869.84

Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to
B.25. Realloaction of position budget
as allowed by policy. Suplus salary
from PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs
0068, 1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052
and 2053

2/28/2025




Current
Annual
Salary

Department Number

and Name PCN EE ID

*New Annual
Salary

Current
Position
Budget

Amount

*New Position
Budget
Amount

Reduction to
Position
Budget

Increase to
Position
Budget

Change notes

Earliest
Oracle
Effective
Date

0560 Sheriff Office 1233 Vacant [N/A

N/A

$39,125.13

$43,618.76

N/A

$4,493.63

Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to
B.25. Realloaction of position budget
as allowed by policy. Suplus salary
from PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs
0068, 1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052
and 2053

2/28/2025

0560 Sheriff Office 1234 (13902 [$42,338.00

$43,618.76

$42,338.00

$43,618.76

N/A

$1,280.76

Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to
B.25. Realloaction of position budget
as allowed by policy. Suplus salary
from PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs
0068, 1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052
and 2053

2/28/2025

0560 Sheriff Office 2052 (16496 [$40,298.88

$43,618.76

$40,298.88

$43,618.76

N/A

$3,319.88

Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to
B.25. Realloaction of position budget
as allowed by policy. Suplus salary
from PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs
0068, 1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052
and 2053

2/28/2025

0560 Sheriff Office 2053 (15450 ($40,298.88

$43,618.76

$40,298.88

$43,618.76

N/A

$3,319.88

Reclass: Grade change from B.18 to
B.25. Realloaction of position budget
as allowed by policy. Suplus salary
from PCNs 1239 and 1224 to PCNs
0068, 1226, 1227, 1233, 1234, 2052
and 2053

2/28/2025

* Amount may vary slightly due to Oracle rounding




Commissioners Court - Regular Session

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Property Tax Collections — January 2025

Submitted For: Larry Gaddes

Submitted By: Rebecca Bruton, County Tax Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving property tax collections for the month of January
2025 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount

Attachments
010125-013125 GWI-RFM graph
010125-013125 GWI-RFM

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 10:00 AM
Form Started By: Rebecca Bruton Started On: 02/20/2025 09:21 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



Year to Date Collection Report
Thru January 2025

W YTD Collected O YTD Uncollected

GWI

95.20%

4.80%

Percent of Roll Collected Comparison
2020-2024

R R A

GWI

100%
80%
60%
40%

20%

0%
#2020 542021 2022 2023 ®2024
Tax Year

Year to Date Collection Report
Thru January 2025

B YTD Collected O YTD Uncollected

RFM

4.72%

Percent of Roll Collected Comparison

2020-2024
olo ofo \?|° ofo olo
%) 2H K oV >
LA LA RFM

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

M2020 »42021 2022 #2023 #2024

Tax Year



YEAR TO DATE - COLLECTION REPORT

Williamson County - GWI/RFM Property Taxes

January 31, 2025

YTD Percent

Williamson YTD Percent  Collected
County General Penalty & Interest YTD Percent  Collected  w/P&I & Prior
Fund Tax Roll Adjustments Adjusted Tax Roll ~ Current Tax Collected Collected Variance Uncollected Balance YTD Collected Collected w/P&l Years
2024 $459,890,613.70 ($801,227.57) $459,089,386.13 $188,445,414.53 $363.81 ($148.30) $22,037,429.50 $437,051,956.63 95.20% 95.20% 95.43%
2023 & Prior $4,214,726.82 ($862,872.11) $3,351,854.71 $154,450.24 $90,120.03 $0.81 $3,228,100.25 $123,754.46 3.69% 9.85%
Rollbacks $811,847.39 $51,057.02 $862,904.41 $565,344.19 $0.00 $0.00 $130,739.43 $732,164.98 84.85% 84.88%
Total All $464,917,187.91 ($1,613,042.66) $463,304,145.25 $189,165,208.96 $90,483.84 ($147.49) $25,396,269.18 $437,907,876.07 94.52% 94.56%
YTD Percent
YTD Percent  Collected
Williamson Penalty & Interest YTD Percent  Collected ~ w/P&I & Prior
County RFM Tax Roll Adjustments Adjusted Tax Roll  Current Tax Collected Collected Variance Uncollected Balance YTD Collected Collected w/P&l Years
2024 $58,537,185.60 ($78,260.67) $58,458,924.93 $23,820,604.00 $47.54 ($18.63) $2,758,610.21 $55,700,314.72 95.28% 95.28% 95.50%
2023 & Prior $490,413.73 ($96,083.21) $394,330.52 $20,986.22 $10,723.03 $0.11 $365,073.42 $29,257.10 7.42% 13.92%
Rollbacks $82,906.04 $5,332.76 $88,238.80 $57,669.20 $0.00 $0.00 $13,486.23 $74,752.57 84.72% 84.74%
Total All $59,110,505.37 ($169,011.12) $58,941,494.25 $23,899,259.42 $10,770.57 ($18.52) $3,137,169.86 $55,804,324.39 94.68% 94.72%
2024 COMBINED MONTHLY BREAKDOWN
Oct-24 $518,427,799.30 $379.67 $518,428,178.97 $11,522,952.32 $0.00 $94.78 $506,603,656.15 $11,824,522.82
Nov-24 $518,428,178.97 ($256,458.39) $518,171,720.58 $21,481,122.67 $0.00 $0.63 $484,866,074.46 $33,305,646.12
Dec-24 $518,171,720.58 ($241,142.83) $517,930,577.75 $247,180,786.70 $0.00 ($13.07)  $237,444,158.00 $280,486,419.75
Jan-25 $517,930,577.75 ($382,266.69) $517,548,311.06 $212,266,018.53 $411.35 ($166.93) $24,796,039.71 $492,752,271.35
2/19/2025 YTD Monthly Rpt 11:18 AM



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 1.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Pct. 2 Constables Office 2024 Racial Profiling Report

Submitted For: Jeff Anderson Submitted By: James Thomas, Constable Pct. #2
Department: Constable Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the 2024 Racial Profiling Report and Analysis Report,
submitted by the Precinct 2 Constables Office.

Background

In accordance with the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, Article 2.131 - 2.138, the Chief administrator of law
enforcement agencies must submit annual racial profiling reports to their governing body, as well as TCOLE. The
2024 Racial Profiling Report and Analysis for the Precinct 2 Constables Office is hereby submitted to the
Williamson County Commissioners Court as required by statute.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments
2024 Racial Profiling Report
2024 Racial Profiling Analysis Report

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/05/2025 04:52 PM
Form Started By: James Thomas Started On: 02/05/2025 03:06 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/05/2025



Racial Profiling Report | Full

Agency Name: WILLIAMSON CO. CONST. PCT. 2
Reporting Date: 02/05/2025
TCOLE Agency Number: 491102

Chief Administrator: JEFFREY D. ANDERSON

Agency Contact Information:
Phone: (512) 260-4270
Email: jeff.anderson@wilco.org

Mailing Address:
350 DISCOVERY BLVD SUITE 205
CEDAR PARK, TX 78613

This Agency filed a full report

WILLIAMSON CO. CONST. PCT. 2 has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling. Our policy:

1) clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling;

2) strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the WILLIAMSON CO. CONST. PCT. 2 from engaging in
racial profiling;

3) implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the WILLIAMSON CO. CONST.
PCT. 2 if the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the WILLIAMSON CO. CONST. PCT. 2 has
engaged in racial profiling with respect to the individual,

4) provides public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

5) requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the WILLIAMSON
CO. CONST. PCT. 2 who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the
WILLIAMSON CO. CONST. PCT. 2 policy;

6) requires collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a warning or citation is issued and
to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating to:

a. the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;

b. whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to the search;

c. whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before detaining that

individual;

d. whether the peace officer used physical force that resulted in bodily injury during the stop;

e. the location of the stop;

f. the reason for the stop.

7) requires the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected, employed,
or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision (6) to:
a. the Commission on Law Enforcement; and
b. the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an agency of a
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

The WILLIAMSON CO. CONST. PCT. 2 has satisfied the statutory data audit requirements as prescribed in Article

1 of 9



2.133(c), Code of Criminal Procedure during the reporting period.

Executed by: JAMES THOMAS
Chief Deputy

Date: 02/05/2025

2 of 9



Total stops: 46

Motor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

Street address or approximate location of the stop

City street

US highway

County road

State highway

Private property or other

Was race or ethnicity known prior to stop?
Yes
No

Race / Ethnicity
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Gender

Female
Alaska Native / American Indian

Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Male
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Reason for stop?
Violation of law
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White

27

3 of 9



Hispanic / Latino

Preexisting knowledge

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian [ Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Moving traffic violation

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Vehicle traffic violation

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Was a search conducted?

Yes

No

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Reason for Search?

Consent

Alaska Native / American Indian

-Asian [ Pacific Islander

Black
White

o = =~ O O N O

40

o O O O o

4 of 9



Hispanic / Latino

Contraband

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Probable

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Inventory

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Incident to arrest

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Was Contraband discovered?

Yes

No

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

Black

White

Hispanic / Latino

O O 00000000 o OO0 o oo o O o o o o o o

O O OO0 0o OO o o O

5 of 9

Did the finding result in arrest?

(total should equal previous column)

Yes 0O No O
Yes O No O
Yes O No O
Yes 0 No O
Yes 0O No O



Description of contraband

Drugs
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
‘White
Hispanic / Latino

Weapons
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Currency
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Aicohol
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Stolen property
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Other
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Result of the stop

Verbal warning

O 0O 0 0O 00 0O 0000 o O C oo o000 o000 oo oo oo oo

11

6 of 9



Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Written warning
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Citation
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Written warning and arrest
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Citation and arrest
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Arrest
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

Arrest based on
Violation of Penal Code
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander

O—‘OI\JO;OLOI\JOO

Y
~J

(&}

O O O O O oo OO O O O o O O O o oo e o = NO O

7 of 9



Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Violation of Traffic Law
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian [/ Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Violation of City Ordinance
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino
Outstanding Warrant
Alaska Native / American Indian
Asian / Pacific Islander
Black
White
Hispanic / Latino

O O 0O 00O o0 OO0 000 o oo oo oo o o o

Was physical force resulting in bodily injury used during stop?
Yes 0

Alaska Native / American Indian 0
Asian / Pacific Islander 0
Black 0
White 0
Hispanic / Latino 0
Resulting in Bodily Injury To:
Suspect 0
Officer 0
Both 0
No 46
Alaska Native / American Indian 0
Asian / Pacific Islander 2
Black 4
White 40
Hispanic / Latino 0

8 of 9



Number of complaints of racial profiling

Total 0
Resulted in disciplinary action 0
Did not result in disciplinary action 0

Comparative Analysis

Use TCOLE's auto generated analysis

O X

Use Department's submitted analysis

Optional Narrative
N/A

Submitted electronically to the

The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement

9 of 9



Racial Profiling Analysis Report

WILLIAMSON CO. CONST. PCT. 2

01. Total Traffic Stops:

02. Lecation of Stop:

a. City Street

b. US Highway

¢. County Road

d. State Highway

e. Private Property or Other

03. Was Race known prior to Stop:
a. NO
b. YES

04. Race or Ethnicity:

a. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
b. Asian/ Pacific Islander

c. Black

d. White

e. Hispanic/ Latino

05. Gender:
a. Female
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White
v. Hispanic/ Latino
b. Male
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

06. Reason for Stop:
a. Violation of Law
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian

ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

2/5/2025

46

46

40

58.70%
4.35%
6.52%

26.09%
4.35%

100.00%
0.00%

0.00%
4.35%
8.70%
86.96%
0.00%

28.26%
0.00%
2.17%
0.00%

26.09%
0.00%

71.74%
0.00%
2.17%
8.70%

60.87%
0.00%

32.61%
0.00%
0.00%

1 of 7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

b. Pre-Existing Knowledge

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

c. Moving Traffic Violation

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

d. Vehicle Traffic Violation

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

07. Was a Search Conducted:
a.NO
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
i.. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White
v. Hispanic/ Latino
b. YES
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

08. Reason for Search:

a. Consent

2/5/2025

o = =2 O O N O WM

25

23

o W o = o &

46

40

o S e TN = [ o A < (| <> T > |

13.33%
86.67%
0.00%
4.35%
0.00%
0.00%
50.00%
50.00%
0.00%

54.35%
0.00%
4.00%
4.00%

92.00%
0.00%

8.70%
0.00%
25.00%
0.00%
75.00%
0.00%

100.00%
0.00%
435%
8.70%

86.96%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

2 of 7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

b. Contraband in Plain View

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

¢. Probable Cause

ii. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
i. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

d. Inventory

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino
e. Incident to Arrest

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

09. Was Contraband Discovered:
YES
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
Finding resulted in arrest - YES
Finding resulted in arrest - NO
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
Finding resulted in arrest - YES
Finding resulted in arrest - NO
iii. Black

2/5/2025

O Q0 Q0 O 0O 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 Q0 Qo o0 9 9 90 0 0 0 o 9o o

o O O O O o o O

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

3 of 7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report

Finding resulted in arrest - YES
Finding resulted in arrest - NO
iv. White
Finding resulted in arrest - YES
Finding resulted in arrest - NO
v. Hispanic/ Latino
Finding resulted in arrest - YES
Finding resulted in arrest - NO
b. NO
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
i. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

10. Description of Contraband:

a. Drugs

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

b. Currency

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

c. Weapons

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

d. Alcohol

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

2/5/2025

(o SN > S = IR o S (<= TR < AR < i v SR o T <o S v L < N o o ]

o Do o Do a0 e 9O e o 0 0o o o0 o o0 ooBse oo

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

4 of 7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report

v. Hispanic/ Latino

e. Stolen Property

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

f. Other

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
i. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

11. Result of Stop:
a. Verbal Warning
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White
v. Hispanic/ Latino
b. Written Warning
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White
v. Hispanic/ Latino
c. Citation
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White
v. Hispanic/ Latino
d. Written Warning and Arrest
i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander
iii. Black
iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

2/5/2025

00 0 0 0 B 0 O o o o

O O O O O O O U1 v O O ~N O O O N O 0 O W N O O =

0.00%

0.00%

23.91%
0.00%
0.00%

18.18%

81.82%
0.00%

39.13%
0.00%

11.11%
0.00%

88.89%
0.00%

36.96%
0.00%
0.00%

11.76%

88.24%
0.00%
0.00%

5 of 7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report

e. Citation and Arrest

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

f. Arrest

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

12. Arrest Based On:

a. Violation of Penal Code

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iil. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

b. Violation of Traffic Law

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

¢. Violation of City Ordinance

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

d. Outstanding Warrant

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian
ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

2/5/2025

0D 0 0 0D 0 e 9 Q

o O O O O O O O 0O O O © O O O © o o O O o o o o

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

6 of 7



Racial Profiling Analysis Report

13. Was Physical Force Used:

a. NO

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian

ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

b. YES

i. Alaska/ Native American/ Indian

ii. Asian/ Pacific Islander

iii. Black

iv. White

v. Hispanic/ Latino

b 1. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bedily Injury to Suspect
b 2. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Officer
b 3. YES: Physical Force Resulting in Bodily Injury to Both

14. Total Number of Racial Profiling Complaints Received:

REPORT DATE COMPILED 02/05/2025

2/5/2025

46

n
o BN

o O O O O O O o o O

100.00%
0.00%
4.35%
8.70%

86.96%
0.00%
0.00%

7 of 7



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

January 2025 Monthly Report

Submitted By: Melissa East, J.P. Pct. #2
Department: J.P. Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace Precinct 2 January 2025 Monthly
Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To [| Acct No. [ Description [ Amount

Attachments
January 2025 Report

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/10/2025 03:14 PM
Form Started By: Melissa East Started On: 02/10/2025 09:00 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/10/2025



Affidavit

IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 103
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Angela Williams,
Justice of the Peace, Precinct 2, Williamson County, who on her oath, stated that the attached
report of monies collected is a true and correct report for the month of JANUARY 2025.

ANQEf‘K WILLIAMS
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE
WILLIAMSON COUNTY PRECINCT 2

On this Zmday of

office.

Sk, MELISSAEAST
fg’*?". My Notary ID # 128012229
By Exphres December 8, 2025

Notary Public
in and for the State of Texas




| abed

Wd ¢€:80:20 ¥8 G202/.0/20 uo psjuld

008 ‘[ejo pung ABojouyda] oY adusnr - ZLE0
_oo.w S334 ADOTONHOIL Z2# dr - 2V L L#€-0000-22€0-10 2V L va-oooo-mmmo-S-N-vooh__ S334 ADOTONHO3L 2 dr - 2vL va-ooco-wnmo-vo_
pung AGojouysa] YN0 adnsnf - Z2€0
00'S19°L :[e}o pung uoinjosay ayndsiq ajeulaly - 0L£0
00'G19°} S84 uonjosay 8yndsiq sjeussyly - 01 Ly€-0000-02£0-10 ‘0.1 L¥€-0000-02£0-10-2-¥00-1 S99 uonnjosey aindsiq ajews)y - 0L L¥€-0000-0L£0-10
pung uonnjosay andsiq sjeutaly - 02£0
000l :[ejo pung weiboud Aoueni) Z-dr - 89¢0
_oo.ov 894 weiboid Aouenu| z-dr - 00002£-0000-89€0- 10 “oooo\.m-oooo-wwmo-«o-w-woo-._“ sa94 weJboid Aoueni| z-dr - oooomn‘oooo-wmmcéo_
pun4 weiboid Aouenu] Z-dr - 890
008 :[ejoL pung AJndag dr - 19£0
?o.w S334 ALIMNO3S ¢ dr - 251 LP#E€-0000-19€0-10 ¢St L¥€-0000- Emo-ro-w-voo-.__ S334 ALIMNO3S 2 dr - 251 L¥E-0000- Pwmo-—o_
pung Aundag dr - L9€0
L9'SLL'SS ‘|ejol pund jessua9 - 0010
Zr'068°€ O PSIN - DO pejepliosuo) TvO0T - £00000-6666-6666-66 -£00000-6666-6666-66-2-700-1 O PSIN-0D pajepl|osuo) TvO0T - €00000-6666-6666-66
00'€ anuaAsy snosue||sosiiA - 00502£-0000-0010-10 :00502€-0000-0010-10-2-00-1 anudASY SNOsUE||8dsI - 00502€-0000-0010-L0
00'696 pun4 sseooy abenbueT 101 $9€-0000-00140-10-2-¥00- pun4 sseo0y abenbue £0159€-0000-0040-10
05'698'v2 Z# 10d dr ‘S3NIH - 20€LS€-0000-0010-10 :20€LSE-0000-0010-10-2-700-1 2-10d dr ‘S3NI4 - Z0€1SE-0000-0010-10
92'ce9 05°2 AunoD 884 Juswhed swi| - 098Z€-0000-0010-10 :0982E-0000-0010-10-2-¥00-1 05°Z Auno) ve4 JuswAhed swi] - 098Z€-0000-0010-1L0
00°0ve P# 10d ISUOD "Wl ‘921JO JO S84 - #1617€-0000-0010-10 :¥16L¥€-0000-0010-10-2-¥00-1 ¥ LSNOD ‘301440/S334 TVNIWIYEO - ¥1617€-0000-0010-10
00'G09 Z# 10d 1SU0Q "W ‘@20 JO $994 - Z161€-0000-0010-10 :ZL6L¥€-0000-0010-10-2-#00-1 Z LSNOD ‘301440/S334 TYNINIFO - 2161¥€-0000-0010-10
00°0Z€'0l Z# 10d 1Su0) '8dJ0 JO s884 - 206 ¥€-0000-0010-10 :206 L €-0000-0010-10-2-#00-1 ¢ L1SNOD ‘301440/5334 TIAID - 2061€-0000-0010-10
68'€90°C Z# 10d dr ‘301440 40 S334 - 2081€-0000-0040-10 :2081L¥€-0000-0040-10-2-#00-1 2-10d dr ‘301440 40 S334 - 2081€-0000-00L0-1L0
00°09L (0O7TIM) se84 Jusys - 0021 €-0000-0010-10 :002 L ¥€-0000-0010-10-2-700-1 (007IM) sead yusuys - 00Z1¥€-0000-0010-10
00'66¢C SANN43Y-S1HNOD dr - 002602-0000-00L0-10 :002602-0000-0010-L0-2-¥00-1 SANN43Y-S1HINOD dr - 00£602-0000-0010-L0
09201} 894 Aousby suonos|joD - £10202-0000-0010-10 :210202-0000-0010-10-2-#00-1 994 Aousby suoosjjoD - £10202-0000-0010-10
pung jessua9 - 0010
sjejo] 994 Jaquinp Junoddy /9 JUNO22Y /O

QOHdNOSNVITIMXL

Zdr :suoieooT

IIA1D {Jeulwii) salobaje) asen SZ0Z/LE/L0 - SZ0Z/LO/LO :8)eq Yisodeq

Alewwng pun4 pue /9 - poday juswied



Z 9bed Wd ¢€:80:20 ¥e G¢0¢/.0/20 uo psjuld

SE'V.L6'E8 ispuny ||y 10} s|ejo 994

00'Z¥8'Z l[leJoL aNOg dr

002v8'C Aynger Junoooy puog Aisibey zdr :20000-20-2-700-1 jJunoddy Ajjiger puog zdr - #€0202-0000-0010-10

anNogdr

89'GLEVT ‘|ejo pung Aouaby 93els - 66£0

0529 saul{ }|9qyess - 02/802-0000-66€0-10 :022802-0000-66£0-10-2-700-1 S3NI4 11391V3S - 022802-0000-66€0-10

00% 894 asusja( Juabipul - £€0.802-0000-66£0-10 :€0.802-0000-66€0-10-2-700-1 1S 0L 3Nd - S334 430 LNIDIANI - £02802-0000-66€0-10

6v'ELE'Q Je)s 0] an( aul4 dljel| d1elS - 927802-0000-66£0-10 :92+802-0000-66£0-10-2-700-1 020z @¥elS 0} 8n( dul4 dujel] 8JelS - 92#802-0000-66€0-10

89'819 $09 Jsauy |oned AemybiH sexa | - 007802-0000-66€0- 10 :00¥802-0000-66£0-10-2-¥00-1 31VLS Ol 3NA S334 1STYYY Sda - 00¥802-0000-66£0-10

00Cl pun4 Arepipnp ayj jo poddns - 2G£802-0000-66£0-10 :2Z5£802-0000-66£0-10-2-700-1 aNA LY0ddNS TVIDIANT TYNINIYD - 26£802-0000-66£0-10

008 994 80IM8S Aunp - G£2802-0000-66£0-10 :S£2802-0000-66£0-10-2-700-1 J1VLS O1 3NA S334 FOINYIS AUNF - §€2802-0000-66£0-10

00891 894 pajepl|osuoy 8}.lS :181802-0000-66€0-700-1 994 pajepljosuo) sjels - 181.802-0000-66€0-10

10°'S0L'ZL (eXe)zoL g€l DD7180D HNOD UOD BJeIS - §91.802-0000-66£0-10 :591802-0000-66€0-10-2-700-1 9)e)s 0} 8n( $,984 020Z°L0 DID - §91802-0000-66€0-10

0008 S}S0Q UNOY Pajepljosuo) - 091.802-0000-66€0-10 :091802-0000-66£0-10-2-700-1 dNOD J1V1S O1 3INA S334 00D - 091802-0000-66£0-10

00'% )} - uoIsIaAIg/ARId Adueni] Z dr - 260802-0000-66£0-10 :2€0802-0000-66£0-10-2-700-1 9JE)S - UOISIBAI(Q/ABId Aduenu| Z df - 2£0802-0000-66£0-10
pung Aouaby ajels - 66£0

s|ejo| 994 JagquinN jJunoody /9 JUNO22Y /9

Zdr 1SuoNeooT
A1 fleulwnig 'sauobajen 8se)  GZ0Z/LE/LO - S20Z/L0/L0 9leq isodaq

A0YdANOSINVITIIMXL Alewwing pun4 pue /9 - Joday JuswAied



| abed

Wd §1:80:20 ¥e G202/.0/20 uo pajuld

9/ 000252 € (00'02¢) 0 000 €2 00°0¥8°2 Z2# 10d 99 92IA18G 8|geISuo) ZINOD
i 09'20L°L 0 000 0 000 14 09201} 994 Aouaby uonos|j0n 33471109
4 00¢ 0 000 0 000 4 00¢c (210201 dOD) 894 Aundeg dr OrSHO
4 009 0 000 0 000 C 009 (210°201 dD9) 994 Aunosg asnoyuno) SHD
[4%4 05'698'v2 l (00°g61) 0 000 Lie 0S5'¥90°52 aul4 Ajunon INI4D
S 00°LL 0 000 0 000 S 00kt AdoD payniad 143D
(74 T AV XA 0 000 0 000 4 S TAVRA saido) |IA1D 400D

c 00°08 0 000 0 000 4 0008 [eoi-eel
'8p0Q },A09) 007] S}S0Q UNOY Pajepi|osuo) 000
8 00'zv8'c 0 000 0 000 8 00'zv8'c puog ysep a0
4 000l 0 000 0 000 4 0001 (L10°201L dOD) 220 Sjusys - 894 Jsauy 0S4V
6 00°G¥ 0 000 0 000 6 00'Sy oensqy av

l 00°0S 0 000 0 000 L 00°0S (®)L10°201
(2)(B)L10°201 DD 8OWO SHUBYS 894 Jueep\ |  OSOMAMOZ0Z

} 00°0S 0 000 0 000 ! 00°0S (®)110°201L
(2)Xe)1 10201 dOD ¥ 1d ISu0D - 884 JueLepy ¥04M0202

cl 00°009 0 000 0 000 43 00'009 (®)110°201
(2Xe)L10°201L dOD 2 ¥0d IsuoD - 894 Jueuep ¢04M0202
6t 92'¢e9 L (00°G1) 0 000 214 9¢'L¥9 0£0°201 dDD 994 JuswAed awi] 4410202
eel 6Y'€LE'Q 0 000 0 000 eel 6V'€LE'D (LEOY 2PS OL) euld oujel] ajels 4150202
cel 28'8.¢€ 0 000 0 000 egel 28'8.¢ (0t°2S DL) dui4 dujel] |edo 41770202
88¢ Zr'068'c L (00'v1) 0 000 18¢ Zr'v06'c (B)E0L vEL D97 150D HNOYD pajepljosuo) OO 29-009710202

€5 90681 0 000 0 000 €S 90’68 (1Prso
‘St 40O Aoyepueyy 8sinod Aeges Buiaug WOSaocoe
LE 00°'09€ 0 000 0 000 VA 00°09¢€ aul4 |essiwsi eoueldwo) 4000202
98¢ 10'S0L'LL L (0029 0 000 G82 10729121 (£)(B)ZOL'EEL DO 150D MNOD) SUO) ).l 2020202

61 00'G8 0 000 0 000 61 00'98 (®)L10°201
‘(1)(e)L10°20L OO ASI llIH Aueqr - 894 jsauy SIHTHV0202

201 9/°06v 0 000 0 000 20l 9/°06v (®)110°20L
‘(1)(B)L1L0°201 90O SHUBYS - 994 Jsaly 0S4v0202
9cl 89'819 0 000 0 000 9l 89819 9)1L10°20L ‘(LXB)' 110201 dDD Sdd - 89 jsauy Sda4v0zoe

or 00061 L (00°9) 0 000 6€ 00'G61 (®)110201L
‘(1)()L 10201 dOD ¥ 2IgeIsu0) - 89 saly ¥04v0202

2 00'S 0 000 0 000 1 00'S (®)110°201L
‘(1)L 10201 dOD Z 8lgejsuo) - 994 jsauy 2¢04v0202

JaquinN junowy JaquinN junowy JaquinN jJunowy JaquinN junowy

18N sjuawisnipy aAaneban sjuawisnipy aAlISOd s$S019 uonduosaq pJOM P00

Krewwng apo) 894

JOHdNOSNVITIMXL

[IAID ‘leulwi) :seuobsje) ase)

Zdr :suoneso

G20Z/LE/L0 - §20Z/L0/10 :8jeq YisodeQ

Alewwng apo) 894 - Juoday juswihed




Z abey

Wd §1:80:20 ¥e 520¢/20/20 U0 psjulid

eL'e GE'V/6'€8 1z (00'6L0°1) 0 000 0022 GE'€66'V8
JaquinN junowy JaquinN junowy JaqwinN junowy JaquinN junowy S|ejo} \CmEE:w 2p0D 884
19N sjuswisnipy aAlebaN sjusaw)snipy aAlIsod S{e[5)
14 00°008'C 0 000 0 000 14 00008 99 80IAI8S JUM - Z# 9|qeIsuoD Z4SM
14 0004 0 000 0 000 14 0002 uoISS8SSOd JO WM SSOdM
¢ 0000} 0 000 0 000 4 00001 Husys Aunon uosweljjipn 0OSOM
8 00891 0 000 0 000 8 00'891 99 pajepI|osuo)) 9jels 40S1v49S
cee 00696 14 (oo'z1) 0 000 82¢ 00°'186 GS1'GEL D9 - pung ssedoy ebenbue 4v1LyES
zee 00'5.0'8 1% (00°001) 0 000 82¢e 00'G.L'8 pun4 poddng unon eonsnp 4SOrLyas
cee 00619} 14 (00°02) 0 000 8ce 00°G€9'} /G1°GEL D91 - puny uonnjosay andsiq Ajuno) 44a0.1v9s
v (00°s¥) } (00'922) 0 000 I 00'L€2 01§ < SluswAed 1enQ AVdO
l 00'L 0 000 0 000 L 00'L 01 $ > sjuswAedianQ oLL1
l 00¢ 0 000 0 000 3 00'¢ 01L$ > syuswAedianQ 0LL1
Z 0801 0 000 0 000 e 080l (soL°eel D97) 8¥8IS - pun4 poddng [epipnp s4snr
4 oc't 0 000 0 000 4 oc'hL (soL'egl D97) Auno) - pun4 poddng [epipnp 24snr
4 00¢C 0 000 0 000 Z 00¢ (510201 d22)
9)E]S 0} 8N UOISIBAI(/ABId Aouenl] sjiusAnp sadir
7t 00¢ 0 000 0 000 Z 00¢ (510201 d22)

Auno) 0} enQ uoisiaig/Asid Aouena] sjiusanp oadilr
ré 000k 0 000 0 000 Z 000} (#210°201 dDD) weiboid Aouens] sjusanp dir
4 008 0 000 0 000 c 008 (S¥00°201 dDD) 894 Juswasinquiay Ainp y4r
A 008 0 000 0 000 Z 00’8 (€£210°201 dDD) 884 ABojouyos] unoH sonsnpe 4100
c 00'v 0 000 0 000 4 00'¥ (201°€€1L D9O7) 984 asuajeq Juabipu| 4al
4 0S°29 0 000 0 000 c 0529 Jajua) ewnel| aul{ jeas Ajgjes piyo 1OINA
9¢ 00920 0 000 0 000 9C 009202 99 uonisodsiq patiseQ 4aa
€ 00'ove 0 000 0 000 g 00°0¥2 894 JuswAedianQ |IA1D H3IAO3II4ND
3 00'Gt 0 000 0 000 3 006Gt 99 JuswAedianQ |euiwn) H3IA0TIHHED
3 00'L 0 000 0 000 L 00t seidoD S31d0O

JaquinN junowy JaquinN junowy JaquinN junowy JaquinN junowy
19N sjuaswisnipy aAnebsn sjuawisnlpy aAlISOd SS0J9 uonduossq pPIOAA ©Pp0D
Alewwng apo) 994

Zdr :suoneoon
§20Z/L€/10 - §202/L0/L0 :9)eq Yysodaq

Arewwng apo) 994 - Joday juswAed

[IA1D ‘leulwi) :sauobeje)) asen

AOHdNOSIVITIIMXL



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Justice of the Peace 3 JANUARY 2025 Monthly Report

Submitted For: Evelyn McLean Submitted By: Mary Alcala, J.P. Pct. #3
Department: J.P. Pct. #3

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 3, January 2025 Monthly
Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure § 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [ Description [ Amount |

Attachments
January 2025 - CCP 103

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 02/11/2025 04:15 PM
Form Started By: Mary Alcala Started On: 02/11/2025 02:13 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/11/2025



IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 103
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Evelyn
McLean, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 3, Williamson County, who, on her oath, stated that
the attached report of money collected is a true and correct report for the month of

January 2025.

EVELYN MCLEAN
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE
PRECINCT THREE

On this _ ay of February 2025, to certify which witness my hand and seal of office.




Payment Report - G/L and Fund Summary TXWILLIAMSONPROD

Transaction Date: 01/01/2025 - 01/31/2025 Case Categories: Civil

Locations: JP3 Payment Type: Cash Bond Deposit; E-Filing Payment; ...
G/L Account GIL Account Number Fee Totals
o1(\h D mmnva I Canendd
0100 - General Fund Total: 14,144.50
Fee Totals for All Funds: 14,144.50

Printed on 02/02/2025 at 08:01:24 AM Page 1


















Commissioners Court - Regular Session 14.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Approval of Purchase of Accurint for Government Subscription with LexisNexis Risk Solutions for Justice of the Peace
#4

Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Sandra Malcolm, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving Contract #2025121 between Williamson County and
LexisNexis Risk Solutions for Accurint subscription services in the amount of $200.00 per month, and authorizing
the execution of the agreement.

Background

The approval of this agreement, Schedule A- Accurint for Government (Transactional) will allow Justice of the
Peace Precinct #4 staff to perform various searches to locate and track defendants in addition to verifying
personal identifier information. This is a renewal service and is currently being utilized by Justice of the Peace
Precinct #4 staff. The subscription will be for a period of (12) months beginning on March 1, 2025, with a
minimum monthly charge of $200.00 or the actual transactional charges (whichever one is greater). The line item
to be charged is 01.0100.0454.004210 for FY25. This purchase has been approved by Contract Audit and
General Counsel. Origination #1907. The point of contact is Debbie Sanders.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments
Lexis Nexis Contract/Agreement

1295 Form
Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 10:09 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/19/2025 10:52 AM
Form Started By: Sandra Malcolm Started On: 01/28/2025 09:28 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025



January 27, 2025

LexisNexis® Risk Solutions

SCHEDULE A

Accurint for Government
(Transactional)

Customer Name: Williamson County - Texas
Billgroup #: ACC-1335474
LN Account Manager: _Jimmy Restivo

This Schedule A sets forth additional or amended terms and conditions for the use of the Accurint for
Government services (‘LN Services”), as set forth in the services agreement for the LN Services between
Customer and the LexisNexis Risk Solutions entity as further defined therein (“Agreement”), to which this
Schedule A is incorporated by reference. For purposes of the Agreement and this Schedule A, all applicable
LexisNexis Risk Solutions entities shall be individually and collectively referred to as “LN”. Customer
acknowledges that the services provided under this Schedule A are non-FCRA services.

1. SCHEDULE A TERM
The term of this Schedule A will be 12 months beginning March 1, 2025 (the "Term"). This Schedule A will not
renew. If an account is activated after the first day of a calendar month, charges will not be pro-rated.

2. ACCURINT FOR GOVERNMENT FEES

2.1 Customer shall pay the prices detailed in the attached Price Schedule.

2.2 Minimum Payment: Customer shall pay to LN each month the greater of: (i) actual transactional charges
or; (ii) the monthly minimum commitment of $200.00 (“Monthly Minimum Commitment”).

3. EXPIRATION
Unless otherwise accepted by LN, the terms herein are valid if the Schedule A is signed by the Customer and
received by LN on or before March 10, 2025.

4. CLOUD SERVICES
LN is executing a multi-year plan to move certain LexisNexis Risk Solutions products and services to a cloud
environment. Should you have questions regarding this plan, please direct them to your Account Manager.

5. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

This Schedule A contains the confidential pricing information of LN. Customer acknowledges that the disclosure
of such pricing information could cause competitive harm to LN, and as such, Customer agrees to maintain this
Schedule A in trust and confidence and take reasonable precautions against disclosure to any third party to the
extent permitted by local and state law.

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY: Williamson County - Texas

Signed:

Name:

Job Title:

Date:

Page 1 of 7 Confidential 537024.2v1

Accurint for Government (Plan 58)
Any unauthorized revisions to this Schedule A by Customer after receipt of the final version from LN shall be considered unenforceable, and
may void this Schedule A at the option of LN.



January 27, 2025

Accurint for Government

(Updated June 6, 2024)
(Plan 58)

(Pricing is per hit unless otherwise indicated. All features priced $0.35 or less are not discountable, in

addition to any feature indicated as not discountable
PRICE SCHEDULE (Transactional)

ACCURINT FOR GOVERNMENT FEATURES PRICE
Advanced Motor Vehicle Search (charged per search) $1.00
Advanced Person Search $0.75
Automated Valuation Model (AVM) Report $5.00
Associates ("Next Steps") $1.00
Bankruptcies, Liens & Judgments Search (charged per search) $0.50
Bankruptcy Search (charged per search) $0.25
Bankruptcy Report $1.00
Bankruptcy Docket Sheet ($0.50 For First 5 Pages & $0.20 Per Page Thereafter) (not $0.50
discountable) '
Bankruptcy Documents (Per Page, Up To Max Charge Of $6 Per Document) (not $0.20
discountable) '
Boolean Search $2.00
Business Credit (charged per search) (not discountable) $0.25
Business Credit Report $20.00
Business Search (charged per search) (not discountable) $0.35
Businesses In The News (not discountable) $5.00
Canadian Phones $0.40
Civil Courts Search (Report Included) (charged per search) $2.00
CLIA Report $0.25
Concealed Weapons Permit $0.25
Corporation Filings (Report Included Except In Delaware) $1.00
Court Search Wizard (Additional Fees May Apply; Orders Are Non-Refundable) --
-County Civil Lower & Upper Court - 7 Year (not discountable) $35.00
-County Civil Lower & Upper Court - 10 Year (not discountable) $40.00
-County Criminal - 7 Year (not discountable) $25.00
-County Criminal - 10 Year (not discountable) $30.00
-Federal Division Civil - 7 Year (not discountable) $16.00
-Federal Division Civil - 10 Year (not discountable) $25.00
-Federal Division Criminal - 7 Year (not discountable) $16.00
-Federal Division Criminal - 10 Year (not discountable) $25.00
-Statewide Criminal (not discountable) $24.00
Criminal Records (charged per search) $1.00
Criminal Records Report $1.00
DEA Controlled Substances License Search $0.25
Death Records (charged per search) $0.25
Death Records Report (charged per search) $1.00
Delaware Corporations (not discountable) $1.00
Delaware Corporations Report (not discountable) $11.00
Page 2 of 7 Confidential 537024.2v1

Accurint for Government (Plan 58)
Any unauthorized revisions to this Schedule A by Customer after receipt of the final version from LN shall be considered unenforceable, and
may void this Schedule A at the option of LN.



January 27, 2025

Disclosed Entity Service (charged per search) (not discountable) $5.00
Driver Licenses $0.75
Dun & Bradstreet Global Market Identifiers Search $3.75
Dun & Bradstreet Search (not discountable) $0.25
Dun & Bradstreet Report (not discountable) $3.75
Email Search Premium (not discountable) $0.40
FAA Aircraft (Report Included) $0.25
FAA Pilots (Report Included) $0.25
Federal Civil Court Records Search (charged per search) $2.00
Federal Criminal Court Records Search (charged per search) $3.00
Federal Firearms & Explosives $0.25
Federal Employer ID Numbers (FEIN) $0.50
Fictitious Business Name $0.50
Foreclosures Search (Report Included) $1.00
Hunting/Fishing Licenses $0.25
InstantID Consumer Search (charged per search) $0.75
InstantlD Q&A (charged per search) $1.30
Liens & Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
Liens & Judgments Report $1.00
Marriages / Divorces Search $1.00
Motor Vehicles Search $0.75
Motor Vehicles Report $1.00
National UCC Filings (Report Included) $1.00
NCPDP (National Council for Prescription Drug Programs) Search (charged per search) $0.50
NCPDP (National Council for Prescription Drug Programs) Report (charged per search) $1.50
Neighbors ("Next Steps") (not discountable) $0.25
NPI Data Search (not discountable) $0.25
NPI Report $0.50
Official Records Search (Report Included) $0.25
OSHA Investigative Reports Search $1.00
Passport Validation (charged per search) $1.00
People At Work Search $1.00
People In The News (not discountable) $5.00
Person Alerts Monitoring (Monthly Monitoring Transactions Per Acct.) (Alerts Charged _
At Regular Price)
-1-50 $3.00
-51 - 250 $15.00
-251 - 500 $30.00
-501 - 1,000 $60.00
-1,001 - 5,000 $300.00
-5,001 - 25,000 $1,500.00
-25,001 - 100,000 $6,000.00
Professional Licenses (Report Included) (charged per search) $1.00
Property Deed Search $1.00
Property Assessment Search $1.00
Page 3 of 7 Confidential 537024.2v1

Accurint for Government (Plan 58)

Any unauthorized revisions to this Schedule A by Customer after receipt of the final version from LN shall be considered unenforceable, and

may void this Schedule A at the option of LN.




January 27, 2025

Property Assessment Report $1.00

Property Deed Report (excluding Deed Image) $1.00

Property Deed Image (additional charge when ordered from within Property Reports)

(not discountable) $8.00
Property Search (Property Assessments, Deeds & Mortgages) $2.00
Property Report (Property Assessments, Deeds & Mortgages, excluding Deed Image) $2.00
Provider Search $0.25
Provider Report $5.00
Provider Report Card (charged per search) $5.00
Provider Sanction Search (charged per search) $0.25
Provider Sanction Report $5.00
Real Time Person Search (charged per search) $3.50
Real Time Phone Search $0.50
Relatives ("Next Steps") $1.00
Relatives, Neighbors & Associates ("Next Steps") $2.00
Relavint Visual Link Analysis (Per Diagram) (not discountable) $2.00
Satellite Image Search $0.00
SEC Filings Search $3.50
Sexual Offenders (Report Included) (charged per search) $1.00
SIRIS $0.00
USA Patriot Act (charged per search) (not discountable) $0.25
Virtual Identity Search & Report $2.00
Voter Registrations $0.25
Watercraft $0.50
Watercraft Report $1.00
WorkPlace Locator (not discountable) $3.50
Reports

Asset Report: Property Deeds & Assessments, Vehicle Registrations, Watercraft, FAA $3.50

Pilots, FAA Aircraft, and UCC Filings.

Business Link Report (charged per search) $5.00

Comprehensive Report (Best Value): Summary Report, Associates, Bankruptcy,
Concealed Weapons Permits, Criminal Records, DEA Controlled Substances License
Search, Driver’s Licenses, Email Search Premium, FAA Aircraft, FAA Pilots, Federal
Firearms & Explosives License Search, Hunting/Fishing Permits, Liens/Judgments, $6.00
Neighbors, People at Work, Phones Plus, Possible Education, Professional Licenses,
Property, Relatives (3 Degrees), Sexual Offenders, UCC Filings, Vehicle Registrations,
Voter Registration and Watercraft.

Additional Report Options: -

-Real Time Phone Search (not discountable) $0.50
Contact Card Report: Summary Report: Names Associated with Subject, Contact List:
At Home, At Work, Through Family, Through Associates, Through Neighbors, Possible $3.50

Relocation, Email Search Premium, Address Summary and Phones Plus (optional).

Entitlement Report: Summary Report, Phones Plus, Bankruptcy, Liens/Judgments,
UCC Filings, People At Work, Driver’s Licenses, Vehicle Registrations, Property,
Watercraft, FAA Pilots, FAA Aircraft, Professional Licenses, Associates, Relatives (3 $4.00
Degrees), Criminal Records And Sexual Offenders. Results Can Be Restricted By The
User To Their Applicable Dates Of Interest.

Page 4 of 7 Confidential 537024.2v1

Accurint for Government (Plan 58)
Any unauthorized revisions to this Schedule A by Customer after receipt of the final version from LN shall be considered unenforceable, and
may void this Schedule A at the option of LN.




January 27, 2025

Finder Report: Address Summary, Others Using SSN, Date/Location Where SSN

Issued, Phone Summary, Current Listed Phones, Unverified Phones With Type And

Date Indicators, Current Neighbor Phones, Possible Relative Phones (2 Degrees), $3.50

Possible Associate Phones, Phones At Historical Addresses, Email Search Premium,

Bankruptcy Filings And Corporate Affiliations.

Government Location Report (charged per search) $1.00

Summary Report; Address Summary, Others Using SSN, Date/Location Where SSN

Issued, Census Data, Bankruptcy Indicator, Property Indicator And Corporate $0.50

Affiliations Indicator.

Comprehensive Address Report: (Base Report Features: Current And Previous $0.50

Residents And Phones At Address)
Additional Report Options: --
-Bankruptcy (charged per search) $1.00
-Businesses At Address $0.25
-Concealed Weapons Permit Search $0.25
-Criminal Records Search (charged per search) $1.00
-Criminal Records Report $1.00
-Driver Licenses At Address $0.75
-Hunting/Fishing License Search $0.25
-Liens And Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
-Motor Vehicles Registered At Address $0.75
-Neighborhood Profile (2010 Census) $0.50
-Neighbors At Address $0.25
-Property Ownership Current / Previous $1.00
-Sexual Offenders Search (Report Included) (charged per search) $1.00

Comprehensive Business Report (Base Report Features: Name and TIN Variations, $0.50

Parent Company, and Industry Information) '
Additional Report Options: --
-Associated Businesses $1.00
-Associated People $1.00
-Bankruptcy (charged per search) $1.00
-Business Registrations $0.25
-Corporation Filings $1.00
-Dun & Bradstreet Records (not discountable) $3.75
-FAA Aircraft $0.25
-IRS 5500 $0.50
-Liens and Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
-Motor Vehicles $0.75
-Properties $1.00
-UCC Filings $0.50
-Watercraft $1.00

Custom Comprehensive Report (Base Report Features: Others Using Same SSN, Date

and Location where SSN Issued, Company Header, Address Summary, Possible $0.50

Education, Comprehensive Report Summary)
Additional Report Options: --
-Associates $1.00
-Bankruptcy (charged per search) $1.00

Page 5 of 7 Confidential 537024.2v1

Accurint for Government (Plan 58)
Any unauthorized revisions to this Schedule A by Customer after receipt of the final version from LN shall be considered unenforceable, and
may void this Schedule A at the option of LN.




January 27, 2025

-Criminal Records (charged per search) $1.00
-DEA Controlled Substances License Search $0.25
-Driver Licenses Information $0.75
-Email Search Premium (not discountable) $0.40
-Federal Firearms & Explosives License Search $0.25
-Liens And Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
-Motor Vehicle(s) Registration (Watercraft & Boat Trailers Included) $0.75
-Neighborhood Profile (2010 Census) $0.50
-Neighbors (Up To 6 Neighbors At 10 Different Addresses) $0.25
-People At Work $1.00
-Phones Plus $0.50
-Professional Licenses (Report Included) (charged per search) $1.00
-Properties $1.00
-Real Time Phone Search (not discountable) $0.50
-Real Time Vehicle Registrations (charged per search) (not discountable) $3.50
-Relatives (Up to 3 Degrees of Separation) $1.00
-Sexual Offenders (charged per search) $1.00
-Supplemental Data Sources (charged per search) $1.00
-UCC Filings $1.00
Flat Rate Comprehensive Healthcare Business Report (includes Base Report Features $10.00

and Additional Report Options listed below)

Comprehensive Healthcare Business Report (Base Report Features: Name, Address

and Phone Variations; Parent Company, ID Numbers and Industry Information) $0.50
Additional Report Options: -
-Associated Businesses $1.00
-Associated People $1.00
-Bankruptcy (charged per search) $1.00
-Business Phone Matches $0.25
-Business Registrations $0.25
-Corporation Filings $1.00
-Dun & Bradstreet Records (not discountable) $3.75
-FAA Aircraft $0.25
-IRS 5500 $0.50
-Liens And Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
-Motor Vehicles $0.75
-Properties $1.00
-Sanctions $0.50
-UCC Filings $0.50
-Verification $0.75
-Watercraft $1.00

Flat Ratg _Comprehensive .Healt_hcare Provider Report (includes Base Report Features $6.00

and Additional Report Options listed below)

C_omprehgnsive Hgalthcare Provider Report (Base Report Features: Gender, Date of $0.50

Birth, Social Security Number, Tax ID(s) UPIN and NPI number)
Additional Report Options: --
-Additional Deceased Data Sources $0.00

Page 6 of 7 Confidential 537024.2v1

Accurint for Government (Plan 58)
Any unauthorized revisions to this Schedule A by Customer after receipt of the final version from LN shall be considered unenforceable, and
may void this Schedule A at the option of LN.




January 27, 2025

-Associates $0.00
-Bankruptcy (charged per search) (not discountable) $0.25
-Business Address Summary $0.25
-Business Affiliations $0.50
-Business Phone Matches $0.25
-DEA Licenses $0.25
-Degrees $0.00
-Education $0.50
-Group Affiliations $0.50
-GSA Sanctions (charged per search) $0.50
-Hospital Affiliations $0.50
-Liens And Judgments (charged per search) $0.25
-Medical Licenses (charged per search) $1.00
-Possible Criminal Records (charged per search) $0.25
-Professional Licenses (charged per search) $1.00
-Sanctions (Disciplinary) (charged per search) $0.50
-Sexual Offenses (charged per search) $1.00
-Specialties $0.00
-Verification $0.75
Online Batch
Advanced Person Search $0.50
Deceased Person $0.25
Address (Single) $0.13
Address (Multiple) $0.16
Reverse Phone Append (not discountable) $0.10
Waterfall Phones: Directory Assistance Match, Address And Name Variations, Co-
Residents, Phones Plus & Relatives; Add-Ons Possible Relocation, Neighbors & $0.23
People At Work (Single)
Waterfall Phones: Directory Assistance Match, Address And Name Variations, Co-
Residents, Phones Plus & Relatives; Add-Ons Possible Relocation, Neighbors & $0.25
People At Work (Multiple)
Waterfall Phone with Address (single) $0.25
Waterfall Phone with Address (multiple) $0.30
Address and/or Phone Confirmation (per input) (single) $0.03
Address and/or Phone Confirmation (per input) (multiple) $0.04
Phones Plus $0.50
Real Time Phone Search $0.50
Real Time Motor Vehicle Registrations $1.50
Property - Add Up To Five Properties Owned By The Subject $1.00
Consumer InstantID $0.65
Consumer InstantlD With Fraud Defender $0.95
Consumer InstantlD With Red Flags Rule $0.90
Multiple = 2 Or More Phones/Addresses Returned --

Page 7 of 7 Confidential 537024.2v1

Accurint for Government (Plan 58)
Any unauthorized revisions to this Schedule A by Customer after receipt of the final version from LN shall be considered unenforceable, and
may void this Schedule A at the option of LN.




CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1261661
LexisNexis
Miamisburg, OH United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 01/28/2025
being filed.
Williamson County Date Acknowledged:
02/18/2025

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

2025121
Lexis Nexis Accurint for Government renewal, ACC-1335474

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
RELX U.S. Holdings Inc. Newton, MA United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is , and my date of birth is

My address is

(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20 .
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FOrRM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1261661
LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL Inc.
1000 Alderman Dr., Alpharetta, Georgia 30005 Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/12/2025
being filed.
Wllllamson County Date ACknOWledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

2025121
Lexis Nexis Accurint for Government renewal, ACC-1335474

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
RELX U.S. Holdings Inc. Newton, MA United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION
the date of incorporation

My name is Gaurang Dave, Sr. Manager, Contracts , and my date of birth is _ .
wy adaress is [ NG e U5
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in McLean, County, State of VA , on the 12th day of February 29 25 .

(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Ratification of Professional Services Contract for Interpretation Services with Michael H. Almassi for the District Courts
Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Joy Simonton, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on ratifying the Professional Services Contract between Michael
H. Almassi and Williamson County for Interpretation Services for the District Courts for $3,122.00.

Background

This agreement is for interpretive language services for the District Courts to continue to process cases where
the individuals involved are not English-speakers. A completed agreement was needed in advance of the
2/11/25 Commissioners Court meeting and was therefore approved by the County Judge. Ratification of the
contract is requested with this item. Contract Audit and General Counsel have reviewed the agreement. The
funding source is 01-0100-0435-004141 and the point of contact is Jennifer Tredemeyer.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments
Professional Services Contract

1295 Form
Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 10:26 AM
Form Started By: Joy Simonton Started On: 01/29/2025 12:47 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



WILLIAMSON COUNTY
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR
INTERPRETATION SERVICES

This Professional Services Contract for Interpretation Services (hereinafter “Contract™)
is made and entered into by and bctween Williamson County, Texas (“County™), a political
subdivision of the State of Texas, acting herein by and through its governing body, and Michael H.
Almassi, (hereinafter “Service Provider”), both of which are referred to herein as the parties. The
County agrees to engage Service Provider as an independent contractor, to provide certain services
pursuant to the following terms, conditions, and restrictions:

L

Services: Service Provider shall provide interpretation services for the Williamson County
District Courts as an independent contractor pursuant to terms of this Contract. Service Provider
- expressly acknowledges that it is not an employee of the County. The services include the
services and work described in the attached Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated herein.

Should the County choose to add services in addition to those described in Exhibit “A”,
such additional services shall be described in a separate written amendment to this Contract
wherein the additional services shall be described and the parties shall set forth the amount of
compensation to be paid by the County for the additional services. Service Provider shall not begin
any additional services and the County shall not be obligated to pay for any additional services
unless a written amendment to this Contract has been signed by both parties.

IL.

Effective Date and Term: The term of this Contract shall commencc upon the last party’s
execution hereof and shall continue thereafter in full force and effect until September 30, 2025.

II1.

ration and Compensation: Service Provider will be compensated based on the Fee
Schedule described in Exhibit “B”. Service Provider shall submit an invoice to County for all
services provided in the preceding month. Payment for the services shall be governed by Chapter
2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the
later of (1) the date the County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance
of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor
receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be
paid by the County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September
1 of the County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on




September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the
Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a
Saturday or Sunday.

IV.

N lationship & Indemnification: It is understood and agreed that Service

Provider shall not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with the County, nor
shall Service Provider hold itself out as an agent or official representative of the County. Service
Provider shall be considered an independent contractor for the purpose of this Contract and shall
in no manner incur any expense or liability on behalf of the County other than what may be
expressly allowed under this Contract. The County will not be liable for any loss, cost, expense
or damage, whether indirect, incidental, punitive, exemplary, consequential of any kind
whatsoever for any acts by Service Provider or failure to act relating to the services being
provided, '

V.

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAIL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF THE
COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY'S EMPLOYEES,
AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE
“INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A
RESULT OF INDEMNITEES® GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT
OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY
SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH
OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO HAVE QCCURRED ON THE WORK SITE OR TN CONNECTION WITH THE
PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMRNITEES EVEN TO
THE EXTENT THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE
SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED
PARTY. THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES, COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS
PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS,
OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS.

INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF THE
COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES,
AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE
“INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS® FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE
PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY
THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS,
ANYONE EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF
WHETHER. OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A
PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.




VI

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity_or Powers: Nothing in this Contract will be

deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of the County, the Williamson
County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge.

VIL

Compliance With All Laws: Service Provider agrees and will comply with any and all
local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered. Any alterations,

additions, or deletions to the terms of the Contract that are required by changes in federal, state
or local law or regulations are automatically incorporated into the Contract without written
amendment hereto, and shall become effective on the date designed by such law or by regulation.

VIIL

Terminagion: This Contract may be terminated at any time at the option of either party,
without future or prospective liability for performance, upon giving thirty (30) days written notice
thereof,

IX.

enue and Applicable Law: Venue of this Contract shall be Williamson County, Texas,
and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions.

X.

Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall
for any reason be held to be invalid, iflegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity,
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision in this Contract and this Contract
shall be construed as if such invalid, itlegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained
in it.

XI.

Right to Audit: Service Provider agrees that the County or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Contract,
have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and
records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under
this Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
Service Provider agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all
necessaty Service Provider facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace
in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. The County shall
give Service Provider reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

XH.

Good Faith Clause: Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the performance of




this Contract.
XIII.
No Assignment: Service Provider may not assign this Contract.
XTV.

Confidentiality: Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a governmental setting
for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter any unauthorized areas or access
confidential information and he or she will not disclose any information to unauthorized third
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

XV.

Foreign Terrorist Organizations; Service Provider represents and warrants that it is not
engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section
2252.152 of the Texas Government Code.

XVL

Public Information: Service Provider understands that County will comply with the Texas
Public information Act as interpreted by judicial ruling and opinions of the Attorney General of
the State of Texas. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with this
Purchase Order or any resulting contract may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to the Texas
Public Information Act.

XVIL

Damage to County Property: Service Provider shall be liable for all damage to county-
owned, leased, or occupied property and equipment caused by Service Provider and its employees,
agents, subcontractors, and suppliers, including any delivery or transporting company, in
connection with any performance pursuant to this Contract. Service Provider shall notify County
in writing of any such damage within one (1) calendar day.

XVIIL

Media Releases: Service Provider shall not use County’s name, logo, or other likeness in
any press release, marketing materials, or other announcement without the County’s prior written
approval.

XIX.

Authorized Expenses: In the event County authorizes, in advance and in writing,




reimbursement of non-labor expenses related to the services subject of this Contract, County will
pay such actual non-labor expenses in strict accordance with the Williamson County Vendor
Reimbursement Policy (as amended), which is incorporated into and made a part of this Contract
by reference. The Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy can be found at:
WilliamsonCountyVendorReimbursementPolicyMarch2023.pdf (wilco.org). Invoices requesting
reimbursement for authorized non-labor expenses must be accompanied by copies of the
provider’s invoice and clearly set forth the actual cost of the expenses, without markup.

XX.
Entire Contract & Incorporated Documents: Conflicting Terms: This Contract

constitutes the entire Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other
than by a written instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated into
this Contract include the following:

A. Scope of Services as described in the attached Exhibit “A”; and
B. Fee Schedule as described in the attached Exhibit “B”.

The County reserves the right and sole discretion to determine the controlling provisions
where there is any conflict between the terms of this Contract and the terms of any other purchase
order(s), contract(s) or any document attached hereto as exhibits relating to the services and goods
subject of this Contract.

XXII.

County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract: The presiding officer

of the County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this instrument by order duly
recorded may execute this Contract on behalf of the County.




IN WITNESS that this Contract shall be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below,

WILLIAMSON COUNTY: SERVICE PROVIDER:

Bill Gravell (Feb 10, 2025 11:82 CST) ’ﬂ_ﬁfﬂ/’;ﬂé’ / A /4"7/3'7'7;.-7.@57
Authorized Signature Name of Service Provider

Bill Gravell Ot T8 Qsdbomante
Printed Name Authorized Signature

_Feb 10,2025

Date

Printed Name

Date: L1 _J& 2028




Exhibit “A”
Scope of Services

The Williamson County District Courts intend to comply with ail applicable State and Federal
laws related to language access in the justice system. The Contract and this Exhibit are designed
to ensure availability of qualified foreign language interpreters and support that compliance.
Service Provider shall, upon request, provide one or more of the following services in support of
the District Courts of Williamson County:

A. Interpretation (“Interpretation” or “Interpreting”)

Interpretation is the process of accurately conveying words spoken in a language other than
English into the English language or words spoken in the English language into a language other
than English. Spoken-language interpretation provided by Service Provider shall be performed by
a Licensed Court Interpreter who maintains a level of designation necessary to serve in the
Williamson County District Courts (see Judicial Branch Certification Commission Rule 9.1).
Interpretation provided under this Scope of Services may take place in a courtroom or in a court-
related setting and may involve parties, attorneys, witnesses, court participants, observers, and/or
the Court. Interpretation under this Scope of Services shall comply with all laws regulating
Licensed Court Interpreters in the State of Texas and related rules contained in the Judicial Branch
Certification Commission Rules and should reflect the best practices identified in the Texas Office
of Court Administration document titled “Spoken Language Interpreting in Texas Courts”.

B. Coordination of Interpreter Services (“Coordination”)

On request from a Court or Court Staff, Service Provider shall provide a qualified interpreter,
certifted in the State of Texas by the Judicial Branch Certification Commission (“Interpreter”™).
This Interpreter shall meet the qualifications set forth above and may be an employee or sub-
contractor of the Service Provider. Coordination shall include the following components:

i. Assignment - An Assignment is a scheduled date and time of service set by a
Court or Court Staff. An individual assignment may be for specific timeframes
within a single day, or may be of a whole day, or multiple days.

it. Scheduling Interpreter — Receiving an Assignment from a Court or Court Staff
for an Interpreter’s services and scheduling an Interpreter to provide those
services at the requested time, date, and location.

iii. Ensuring Services Provided Satisfactorily — Receiving feedback on the
performance of Interpreters.

iv. Serve as Billing Agent — Prepare and present invoices based on services
provided to Court for review and approval in the format directed by the Court.
Receive payment for approved invoices.




C. Translation

Translation is the process of accurately conveying words written in a language other than English
into the English language or words written in the English language into a language other than
English. The Texas Judicial Branch Certification Commission does not cutrently license or certify
translators. However, for the purpose of this Agreement, translation provided by Service Provider
shall be performed by a Licensed Court Interpreter who has the level of designation necessary to
serve in the Williamson County District Courts (see Judicial Branch Certification Commission
Rule 9.1). The Service Provider shall, upon written (including electronic) request, provide proof
of valid licensure.




Exhibit “B”
Fee Schedule

THE STATE OF TEXAS

BRIy k AR
Michael H, Almassi
Master Farsi Interpreter
Licensed Court Interpreter (#72)

EIN 45-304-6210
469-667-7774

Interpretation Farsi to English: Rates and Contract

Please provide written confirmation via email if you agree to the fee as soon as possible.

Please provide written confirmation via email if you agree to the fee. Cancellation is considered
anytime following receipt of confirmation; cancellation fee is $400.

Cancellation within 48 hours of an onft-of-town ¢ase will also include travel expenses.

When you respond, please provide specifics regarding the case and a copy of the Court
Records/Notice of Disposition for this case.

1. ‘What fype of case is it? (Criminal, Family, etc.)

2. What are the circumstances arotind the case?

3, Who are the people involved (names).

4. What is their country of origin? (Dialects are quite different, so this important for my

preparation.)
5. Who are the attorneys?

SERVICE PROVIDED TYPE OF CASE BILLING RATE ESTIMATE
Interpretation Farsi/English | Interpretation for cases Day 1: Flat Rate for 6 hours $ 2,000
for the following: including:
NOTE: To ensure the quality of
+ Court * Criminal interpretation, the deposition cannot
+ Live Deposition s Famlly exceed 6 hours a day
* Recorded Deposition ¢ Lawsuits
s Mediation ¢ Personal Injury
s Auto Accident
o Traffic Violations
Travel Expenses Hotel (~$200 x 2 nights) $ 400
Mileage (~225 x 2) x $0.67 [per $ 302
IRS 2024]
Meals ($60 x 2 days) $120
Travel Time (3 hours x 2) x $50 $300

ESTIMATED TOTAL $3,122




Michael H Almassi - Interpretation Services
Agreement - SIGNED (002)

Final Audit Report 2025-02-10
Created: 2025-02-10
By: Cheryl Johnson (cheryl.johnson@uwilco.org)
Status: Signed
Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAD3NhbCOHMbdOUIPItbzcLdKwqgSIfh_tX

"Michael H Almassi - Interpretation Services Agreement - SIGNE
D (002)" History

9 Document created by Cheryl Johnson (cheryl.johnson@uwilco.org)
2025-02-10 - 4:49:52 PM GMT- IP address: 173.219.39.210

£ Document emailed to Andrea Schiele (aschiele@wilco.org) for delegation
2025-02-10 - 4:50:30 PM GMT

™ Email viewed by Andrea Schiele (aschiele@wilco.org)
2025-02-10 - 4:52:08 PM GMT- IP address: 66.76.4.65

] Document signing delegated to Bill Gravell (bgravell@wilco.org) by Andrea Schiele (aschiele@wilco.org)
2025-02-10 - 4:52:28 PM GMT- IP address: 66.76.4.65

E4 Document emailed to Bill Gravell (bgravell@wilco.org) for signature
2025-02-10 - 4:52:29 PM GMT

™ Email viewed by Bill Gravell (bgravell@wilco.org)
2025-02-10 - 4:52:47 PM GMT- IP address: 66.76.4.65

% Document e-signed by Bill Gravell (bgravell@wilco.org)
Signature Date: 2025-02-10 - 5:02:54 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 66.76.4.65

@ Agreement completed.
2025-02-10 - 5:02:54 PM GMT

Powered by
Adobe
Acrobat Sign




CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1267565
Michael H. Almassi, Licensed Court Interpreter
Allen, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/10/2025
being filed.
368th District Court, Williamson County Date Acknowledged:
02/11/2025

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

2025-02-10
Michael H. Almassi - Interpretation Services Agreement

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
Tredemeyer, Jennifer Georgetown, TX United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is , and my date of birth is

My address is , , ,
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20 .
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295

lofl

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

of business.
Michael H. Almassi, Licensed Court Interpreter

1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place

OFFICE USE ONLY
CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Certificate Number:
2025-1267565

Allen, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/10/2025
being filed.
368th District Court, Williamson County Date Acknowledged:

2025-02-10

Michael H. Almassi - Interpretation Services Agreement

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

Name of Interested Party

City, State, Country (place of business)

Nature of interest
(check applicable)

Controlling | Intermediary

Tredemeyer, Jennifer

Georgetown, TX United States

X

5 Check gnly if there is NO Interested Party. ‘_l

(Declarant)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

www . ethics.state.tx.us

Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace?



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 16.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Approval of Software Services Order Form and SAAS Service Agreement Contract #2025140 for Fire Investigation
Case Management Software through Blazestack for Williamson County Fire Marshall

Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Vickie Johnson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Software Services Order Form and SAAS
Service Agreement Contract #2025140 with Blazestack to provide Fire Investigation Case Management Software
for the Williamson County, in the amount of $5,500.00, and authorize execution of this agreement.

Background

This Services and Purchase Contract #2025140 attached is between Williamson County and Blazestack for Fire
Investigation Case Management Software, in the amount of $5,500.00. Funding Source is 01.0100.0542.004505,
Origination ID #305 and the Point of Contact is Ronald Cunningham.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments
2025140 Blazestack SAAS Services Agreement
Form 1295 Blazestack

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 06:16 PM

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 08:39 AM

Form Started By: Vickie Johnson Started On: 02/18/2025 11:03 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



Docusign Envelope ID: 851ECFFC-7950-4D0B-9F9F-8D14EFACF27A

£ BLAZESTACK

SOFTWARE SERVICES ORDER FORM AND SAAS SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Software Services Order Form and SaaS Services Agreement (this “Agreement”) is between Blazestack Inc.,

(“Blazestack™) a Texas corporation with mailing address of 3201 Bee Caves Road, Suite 120 #160266, Austin, Texas
78746, and (“Customer”) identified immediately below.

CUSTOMER INFORMATION

Williamson County Fire Marshal's Office
3189 SE Inner Loop, Georgetown, TX 78626, USA

SERVICE, SERVICE LEVEL,
USER-SEATS & CASE
VOLUME

ANNUAL SERVICE FEES
FOR MULTI-YEAR
TERM

EFFECTIVE DATE &
DUE DATE

TERMINATION DATE

Fire Investigation
Case Management Software

Platinum Plan
User-Seats: 4

Annual Case Volume: 30

$3,000 for first 12-month
contract-period,
(5/21/24 to 5/20/25)

$3,150 for second 12-month
contract-period,
(5/21/25 to 5/20/26)

$3,310 for third 12-month
contract-period,
(5/21/26 to 5/20/27)

Effective as of date of
the last party’s execution
below

5/20/27

STANDARD SUPPORT

Blazestack will provide Technical Support to Customer via telephone, electronic mail and online chat Monday through Friday
during the hours of 9:00AM through 5:00PM Central Time, with the exclusion of federal holidays (“Support Hours”).
Customer may initiate a helpdesk ticket during Support Hours by calling (866) 303-4344 or any time by emailing
support@blazestack.com or initiating an online chat session. Blazestack will use commercially reasonable efforts to respond to
all helpdesk tickets within one (1) business day.

STANDARD INFORMATION

storage capacity reaches 50%.)

Service Fee includes implementation, support, ongoing software patches, and 30 GB of case media storage. (Additional case
media storage capacity can be added at a cost of $250/year per each additional 250 GB. Blazestack will provide notice when

This Agreement shall supersede and replace all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, between the
Blazestack and Customer, and is entered into on the “Effective Date” listed above, between Blazestack and
Customer. This Agreement consists of the above Order Form, as well as the attached Terms and Conditions and
contains, among other things, warranty disclaimers, liability limitations and use limitations. There shall be no force
or effect to any different terms of any related purchase order or similar form provided by Customer.

BLAZESTACK DocuSigned by:
Patrick \Uaskonis

Name: Patrick ViasK&AT4Es45r4FA -

Title: COO

Email: pv@blazestack.com

Reviewed by General Counsel's Office

Jacqueline Lentz

Generai Counsel, Commissioners Court

Date: Feb 12 2025

Last updated: October 10, 2024

Time: 12:11 pm

CUSTOMER:

Name: Bill Gravell Jr.
Title:  County Judge
Email:

Blazestack Inc.

3201 Bee Caves Road,
Suite 120 #160266,
Austin, Texas 78746
hello@blazestack.com
(866) 303-4344

Reviewed by Contract Audit

SARA GREER, CGAP
Contract Auditor

Williamson County Auditor’s Office

Date: Fep 12 2025

Time: 9:42 am



sgreer
Contract Audit - Sara Greer

jacqueline.lentz
Reviewed by General Counsel's Office


Docusign Envelope ID: 851ECFFC-7950-4D0B-9F9F-8D14EFACF27A

£ BLAZESTACK

TERMS OF SERVICE
These Terms of Service is between Blazestack Inc., a Texas corporation (collectively, “Blazestack™), and the entity
identified on the applicable Order Form (“Customer”). The Agreement is effective as of the date in the applicable

Order Form (“Effective Date”).

1. DEFINITIONS
Capitalized terms have the meanings described in this
section or in the body of the Agreement.

“Agreement” means these Terms of Service and the
relevant Order Form.

“Annual Case Volume” means maximum number of
Cases entered into the system by Customer’s Users
per year.

“Case” means one individual incident at a specific
location.

“Customer Data” means all electronic data or
information that Customer submits to the Service or
is submitted on behalf of Customer as well as all
Generated Data, as defined in Section 2.2, except to
the extent of any data, information, or intellectual
property owned by Blazestack or third-party.

“Order Form” means a Blazestack ordering document
that references these Terms of Service, whether
online or via a separate form.

“Report” means any report, analysis, content, survey,
opinion, photo, technique, hypothesis, finding, study
relating to any fire investigation prepared by
Customer and/or User.

“Service” means Blazestack’s proprietary fire
investigation software accessible through the internet,
that is intended for use in the investigation of fire.

“Term” means the period of Customer’s subscription
to the Service as specified in an Order Form, unless
terminated earlier under Section 7 (Term and
Termination).

“Third-Party Products” means any products or
services not developed by Blazestack.

“User” means a single, unique authorized individual

of the Customer that uses the Service on Customer’s
behalf.

Last updated: October 10, 2024

“User-Seat” is a license for one User to use the
Service.

2. SERVICE AND SUPPORT

2.1. Provision of Service. Blazestack shall provide
Customer with access to the Service for the number
of User-Seats specified on the Order Form during the
Term, or if not specified a reasonable number of
Users in the sole discretion of Blazestack.

2.2. Use of Service. Customer shall use the Service
and the data generated by the Service (“Generated
Data”) only for fire investigation purposes.

2.3. System Requirements. Customer shall meet the
minimum system requirements for access to the
Service, currently set forth at the end of this
Agreement but subject to change by Blazestack on a
reasonable basis. Blazestack shall provide written
notification to Customer for any changes to the
minimum system requirements.

2.4. Third-Party Products. Blazestack may offer
Customer the ability to use Third Party Products with
the Service, subject to Customer’s agreement with
any applicable terms and conditions for those Third-
Party Products.

3. RESPONSIBILITES AND RESTRICTIONS
3.1. Blazestack Responsibilities. Blazestack shall: (i)
provide Customer with access to the Service in
accordance with this Agreement and all applicable
laws; and (ii) provide the Service with a minimum of
99.0% Uptime during any calendar month, except
Blazestack shall have 2 business days to restore
availability after any downtime. “Uptime” means the
availability of the Service, excluding lack of
availability due to Customer or third-party causes,
downtime for maintenance, or a Force Majeure
Event.

3.2. Customer Responsibilities. Customer shall: (i)
use the Service in accordance with this Agreement
and applicable laws; (ii) cooperate with Blazestack so
that Blazestack can provide the Service; (iii) ensure

Blazestack Inc.

3201 Bee Caves Road,
Suite 120 #160266,
Austin, Texas 78746
hello@blazestack.com
(866) 303-4344



Docusign Envelope ID: 851ECFFC-7950-4D0B-9F9F-8D14EFACF27A

£ BLAZESTACK

Users to comply with this Agreement; (iv) prevent
unauthorized access or use of the Service and
promptly notify Blazestack if Customer discovers or
reasonably believes any unauthorized access or use
has occurred; (v) be responsible for the Customer
Data including the accuracy, completeness, and
legality of the Customer Data; (vi) create Reports in
accordance with industry standards; (vii) ensure that
any firewalls or other security measures are properly
configured to allow Blazestack internet traffic on the
necessary IP addresses and ports and; (viii) facilitate
Users’ access to *.blazestack.com domains and
ability to receive emails from *@blazestack.com
email addresses, and calibrate any ad blockers, pop-
up blockers, content filters, or any other technologies
that may interfere with Blazestack security or User
usability, in order to enable proper functioning and
delivery of the Service. Furthermore, the Customer is
responsible for the results of the use of the Service,
including any and all Reports, and hereby
acknowledges to the Blazestack that (a) Customer is
solely responsible for any such use of Report and (b)
the Blazestack is not certifying or validating any
portion of the Report.

3.3 Restrictions. Only Users may use the Service and
only with the account credentials issued to that User
by the Customer. Users may not share their account
credentials. Customer shall not, and shall not permit
any third party to: (i) use the Service except as
expressly authorized under this Agreement; (ii)
interfere with or disrupt the integrity or performance
of the Service; (iii) rent, lease, lend, sell, sublicense,
assign, distribute, publish, transfer or otherwise make
the Service available; (iv) remove any title,
trademark, copyright, or restricted rights notices or
labels from the Service; (v) modify or create a
derivative work of the Service or any portion of the
Service; (vi) reverse engineer, disassemble,
decompile, decode, adapt or otherwise attempt to
derive or gain access to the source code, object code
or underlying structure or algorithms of the Service;
(vii) access or attempt to access or use the Services
for purposes of competitive analysis of the Services
or the development, provision, or use of a competing
software service or product; or (viii) copy, record,
screenshot, or otherwise capture any aspect of the
Service in any medium without the prior written
consent of Blazestack.

Last updated: October 10, 2024

4. FEES

4.1. Fees. Customer shall pay all fees specified in all
Order Forms (“Fees”). Fees are quoted and payable
in United States dollars and are non-refundable,
except as described in Section 7 (Term and
Termination). Acceptable forms of payment are
limited to credit card, ACH, wire transfers and
physical check, provided that Blazestack may change
acceptable forms of payment upon thirty (30) days’
notice to the Customer. User-Seats purchased but not
utilized during the Term are not eligible for refunds.

4.2. Taxes. Fees are exclusive of all taxes, including
any applicable sales, excise, or use taxes (“Taxes”).
Customer shall pay any Taxes directly or to
Blazestack, as required by law. If Customer is
exempt from paying Taxes, Customer shall provide
Blazestack with a valid tax exemption certificate.

4.3. Invoicing and Payment. Blazestack shall invoice
Customer according to the terms on the Order Form.
Customer shall provide Blazestack with complete and
accurate billing and contact information and
promptly notify Blazestack of any changes
throughout the Term. Payment for goods and services
shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas
Government Code.

4.4. Overdue Fees. If Blazestack does not receive all
Fees by the applicable Due Date, Blazestack may
charge a late fee. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by Customer in accordance
with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025.
More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue
on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1
of Customer’s fiscal year in which the payment
becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1
shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2)
the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on
the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that
does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. on the unpaid
balance at the lesser of 1.5% per month or the
maximum lawful rate, starting from the date the
payment was due until the date paid. Blazestack
reserves all rights and available remedies to collect
overdue Fees from Customer, including but not
limited to suspending Customer’s access to the
Service until all Fees are paid.

Blazestack Inc.

3201 Bee Caves Road,
Suite 120 #160266,
Austin, Texas 78746
hello@blazestack.com
(866) 303-4344



Docusign Envelope ID: 851ECFFC-7950-4D0B-9F9F-8D14EFACF27A

£ BLAZESTACK

5. CONFIDENTIALITY

5.1. Definition. “Confidential Information” means
oral, electronic, or written information disclosed by a
party, whether designated confidential or not, or that
a reasonable person would know it was confidential
based upon the nature or content of the information
or the circumstances of its disclosure.

Blazestack Confidential Information includes, but is
not limited to, information pertaining to the features,
functionality, any testing, and performance of the
Service, as well as Feedback. Confidential
Information does not include information that: (i) is
now or becomes generally known or available to the
public without breach of this Agreement by the
receiving party (the “Recipient”); (ii) was acquired
by the Recipient without restriction on its use or
disclosure before the information was received from
the disclosing party (the “Discloser”); (iii) is obtained
by the Recipient without restriction on its use or
disclosure from a third party authorized to make the
disclosure; or (iv) is independently developed by the
Recipient without using or referring to the
Discloser’s Confidential Information.

5.2. Protection of Confidential Information. The
Recipient may only use the Discloser’s Confidential
Information in relation to this Agreement. The
Recipient shall maintain the confidentiality of the
Discloser’s Confidential Information with at least the
same degree of care that it uses to protect its own
confidential and proprietary information (including
but not limited to maintaining reasonable
administrative, physical, and technical safeguards)
and no less than a reasonable degree of care. Each
party has the right to seek an injunction (without
having to post a bond) to prevent any breach or
continued breach of this section.

5.3. Compelled Disclosure. If the Recipient is
required by law or a valid court or government order
to disclose any of the Discloser’s Confidential
Information, then (to the extent permitted under law)
the Recipient shall promptly notify the Discloser in
writing of the required disclosure so that the
Discloser may seek to protect its Confidential
Information. The Recipient shall cooperate with the
Discloser in seeking such protection.

Last updated: October 10, 2024

5.4. Public Information. Blazestack understands that
Customer will comply with the Texas Public
Information Act as interpreted by judicial rulings and
opinions of the Attorney General of the State of
Texas. Information, documentation, and other
material in connection with this Agreement may be
subject to public disclosure pursuant to the Texas
Public Information Act.

6. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

6.1. Customer Ownership and Licenses. Customer
owns all rights, title and interest in and to Customer
Data and Reports. During the Term, Customer grants
Blazestack a worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free,
non-sublicensable (except as needed to provide the
Service), non-transferable (except as described in
Section 11.5 (Assignment) right to access and use the
Customer Data to provide the Service to Customer
and to monitor and improve the Service. Customer
shall back up Customer Data during the Term and
may not have access to the Customer Data via the
Service after the Term.

6.2. De-ldentified Data. Blazestack may collect,
develop, create, extract, compile, synthesize, analyze
and commercialize statistics, benchmarks, measures
and other information based on Aggregated Data
(collectively, “De-Identified Data”). De-ldentified
Data will be owned solely by Blazestack and may be
used for any lawful business purpose. “Aggregated
Data” means Customer Data that is: (i) anonymized
and not identifiable to any person or entity; (ii)
combined with the data of other customers or
additional data sources; and (iii) presented in a way
which does not reveal Customer’s identity.

6.3. Feedback. If Customer provides Feedback,
Customer grants to Blazestack sole and exclusive
ownership of all intellectual property rights to any
Feedback and results of the implementation or any
such Feedback. “Feedback” means recommendations,
suggestions, enhancement requests or any ideas,
technology, developments, derivative works, or other
intellectual property related to the Service or
Blazestack.

6.4. Reservation of Rights. Blazestack and its
licensors reserve all right, title and interest in and to

Blazestack Inc.

3201 Bee Caves Road,
Suite 120 #160266,
Austin, Texas 78746
hello@blazestack.com
(866) 303-4344



Docusign Envelope ID: 851ECFFC-7950-4D0B-9F9F-8D14EFACF27A

£ BLAZESTACK

the Service, including all related intellectual property
rights, subject to the limited rights expressly granted
in this Agreement. No other rights are granted to
Customer by this Agreement.

7. TERM AND TERMINATION

7.1. Term. The Term begins on the Effective Date
and ends on the Termination Date. “Termination
Date” means the earlier date of: (i) the expiration or
termination of all Order Forms under this Agreement;
or (ii) termination of this Agreement under this
section.

7.2. DELETED INTENTIONALLY

7.3. Termination for Cause. A party may terminate
this Agreement or any applicable Order Form: (i) if
the other party is in material breach of this
Agreement and fails to cure the breach within 30
days of receiving written notice from the non-
breaching party; or (ii) if the other party becomes the
subject of a petition in bankruptcy or any proceeding
relating to insolvency, receivership, liquidation or
assignment for the benefit of creditors. If Customer
terminates due to Blazestack’s breach, Customer’s
exclusive remedy is a pro-rata reimbursement of
prepaid Fees covering the remainder of the Term
after the Termination Date. If Blazestack terminates
due to Customer’s breach, Customer will pay any
unpaid Fees covering the remainder of the Term after
the Termination Date. Termination under this section
will not relieve Customer of its obligation to pay any
Fees owed for the period prior to the Termination
Date.

7.4. Non-Appropriation and Fiscal Funding. This
agreement is subject to the availability of funds. It is
expressly understood and agreed that the County
shall have the right to terminate this agreement at the
end of the County’s fiscal year if the governing body
of the County does not appropriate sufficient funds as
determined by the County’s budget for the fiscal year
in question. The County may affect such termination
by giving Company written notice of termination at
the end of its then-current fiscal year.
Notwithstanding any other provision, such
termination shall not constitute a default of the
agreement and shall be without penalty or further
obligation to the County, except that any unpaid

Last updated: October 10, 2024

balance for services already rendered under this
agreement prior to the new fiscal year shall remain
due and payable by the County

8. WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS;
INDEMNIFICATION

8.1. Mutual Warranties. Each party represents that it;
(i) has the legal power to enter into this Agreement;
(ii) will comply with all applicable laws in
relationship to the provision and use of the Service
during the Term; and (iii) will use reasonable efforts
to avoid transmitting to the other party any harmful
or malicious code, files, scripts, agents or programs.

8.2. Warranty Disclaimer. Blazestack does not make
any representations that the functions performed by
the Service will meet all of Customer’s requirements,
that the operation of the Service will be uninterrupted
or error free, that all defects in the Service will be
corrected, or that the Service will be available in all
languages or all countries.

THE SERVICE IS PROVIDED “AS IS.” EXCEPT
AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN,
BLAZESTACK MAKES NO WARRANTIES OF
ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED,
STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, AND
SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED
TO ANY WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,
TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY
APPLICABLE LAW. SPECIFICALLY, THIRD
PARTY CONTENT AND TEST FEATURES ARE
PROVIDED “AS IS,” EXCLUSIVE OF ANY
WARRANTY. EACH PARTY DISCLAIMS ALL
LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION
OBLIGATIONS FOR ANY HARM OR DAMAGES
CAUSED BY ANY THIRD-PARTY
NETWORKING OR HOSTING PROVIDERS OR
THIRD-PARTY PRODUCTS.

8.3 Indemnification. To the extend authorized under
Texas Law, Customer shall indemnify, defend, and
hold harmless the Blazestack and its officers,
directors, employees, agents, successors, and assigns
against all losses arising out of or resulting from any
third party claim, suit, action, or proceeding related to

Blazestack Inc.

3201 Bee Caves Road,
Suite 120 #160266,
Austin, Texas 78746
hello@blazestack.com
(866) 303-4344



Docusign Envelope ID: 851ECFFC-7950-4D0B-9F9F-8D14EFACF27A

£ BLAZESTACK

or arising out of or resulting from: (i) Customer’s (or
its User’s) breach of any representation, warranty,
covenant, or obligation under this Agreement, (ii) all
matters related to any Report, (iii) the transmission of
harmful or malicious code, files, scripts, agents or
programs by or through Customer (or its Users), (iv)
any intellectual property infringement or other matter
resulting from the Customer’s Data, or (v) any acts or
omissions of Customer (or its Users).

9. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

9.1 Limitation of Liability. IN NO EVENT WILL
EITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS
AGREEMENT, WHETHER IN CONTRACT,
TORT OR UNDER ANY OTHER THEORY OF
LIABILITY, EXCEED THE TOTAL AMOUNT
PAID BY CUSTOMER HEREUNDER IN THE 12
MONTHS PRECEDING THE INCIDENT GIVING
RISE TO THE LIABILITY. THE FOREGOING
LIMITATIONS WILL NOT APPLY TO
CUSTOMER’S PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS OR
CUSTOMER’S WILLFUL MISCONDUCT,
FRAUD, NEGLIGENCE, OR INDEMNIFICATION
OBLIGATIONS.

9.2. Exclusion of Consequential and Related
Damages. IN NO EVENT WILL EITHER PARTY
HAVE ANY LIABILITY TO THE OTHER PARTY
FOR ANY LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES OR
FOR ANY OTHER CONSEQUENTIAL,
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, COVER OR
PUNITIVE DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED,
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR UNDER
ANY OTHER THEORY OF LIABILITY, AND
WHETHER THE PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.
THE FOREGOING WILL NOT APPLY TO THE
EXTENT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

10. US. GOVERNMENT MATTERS

10.1. Terms for U.S. Government Customers. This
section applies only to Customers that are U.S.
government entities subject to the cited regulations
(“U.S. Government Customers’). The Service is a
“commercial item” (as defined in 48 C.F.R. 2.101)
and involves the use of “commercial computer
software” and “commercial computer software
documentation” (as used in 48 C.F.R. 12.212). All

Last updated: October 10, 2024

U.S. Government Customers acquire subscriptions to
the Service only as a “commercial item” and only
with those rights that are granted to all other end-
users pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, consistent with 48 C.F.R. 12.212 and 48
C.F.R. 227.72021 through 227.72024.

11. GENERAL TERMS

11.1. Dispute Resolution; Governing Law; Forum.
The parties shall first attempt to resolve any dispute
through mediation. The parties shall jointly select a
mediator and shall participate in good faith in the
mediation process. The costs of the mediation
process shall be shared equally by the parties. The
mediation shall take place in Georgetown, Texas, or
through virtual/online mediation if agreed upon by
both parties. If the dispute is not resolved through
mediation within 90 days from receipt by one party
of the initial notice of the dispute from the other
party, either party may proceed to court to seek
resolution. Each party waives its right to a jury trial.
The laws of the State of Texas govern this Agreement
excluding that State’s choice-of-law provisions.
Venue for any disputes that proceed to legal action
shall take place in Williamson County, Texas.

11.2. Notices. Notices under this Agreement must be
in writing and will be considered given upon: (i)
delivery by traceable courier or mail (delivery
confirmation/ return receipt requested); or (ii) the
second business day after sending by email. Notices
to Blazestack should be sent to
notice@blazestack.com. Billing notices and notices
relating to this Agreement will be sent to the contacts
designated by Customer on the Order Form.

11.3. Customer References. Blazestack shall not use
Customer’s name, logo, or other likeness in any press
release, marketing materials, or other announcement
without the Customer’s prior written approval.

11.4. Force Majeure. Neither party will be
responsible for failure or delay of performance if
caused by an event outside the reasonable control of
the obligated party, including but not limited to an
electrical, internet, or telecommunication change or
outage not caused by the obligated party; government
restrictions; or illegal acts of third parties (“Force
Majeure Event”). Each party will use reasonable

Blazestack Inc.

3201 Bee Caves Road,
Suite 120 #160266,
Austin, Texas 78746
hello@blazestack.com
(866) 303-4344



Docusign Envelope ID: 851ECFFC-7950-4D0B-9F9F-8D14EFACF27A

£ BLAZESTACK

efforts to mitigate the effect of a Force Majeure
Event.

11.5. Assignment. Neither party may assign any of its
rights or obligations under this Agreement without
the other party’s prior written consent (not to be
unreasonably withheld), except either party may
assign this Agreement in its entirety without the other
party’s consent to its affiliate or as part of a merger,
acquisition, corporate reorganization, or sale of all or
substantially of all its assets.

11.6. Relationship of the Parties. The parties are
independent contractors. This Agreement does not
create a partnership, franchise, joint venture, agency,
fiduciary or employment relationship between the
parties.

11.7. Waiver. No failure or delay by either party to
exercise any right under this Agreement will
constitute a waiver of that right, unless expressly
stated in this Agreement.

11.8. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement
is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid or unenforceable, the provision will be
modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it
enforceable. The provision will be disregarded only if
such modification is not possible or is prohibited by
law. The remaining provisions of this Agreement will
remain in effect.

11.9. Order of Precedence. If there is a conflict or
inconsistency between any Order Form, Statement of
Work, Exhibit, and this Agreement, the order of
precedence shall be: (i) Order Form, (ii) Statement of
Work, (iii) an Exhibit, and (iv) this Agreement.

11.10 Entire Agreement; Amendment. This
Agreement, including the Software Services Order
Form, constitutes the entire agreement between the
parties with respect to the subject matter set forth
herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous
agreements, proposals, or representations, written or
oral, concerning its subject matter. No terms,
provisions, or conditions of any purchase order,
acknowledgement, addendum, rider, check, or other

Last updated: October 10, 2024

business form that Customer may use in connection
with the acquisition or licensing of the Service or
Software will have any effect on the rights, duties, or
obligations of the parties under this Agreement,
regardless of any failure of Blazestack to object to
such terms, provisions, or conditions.

As used in this Agreement, the terms “including,”
“include,” and “includes” are not limiting and shall
be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without
limitation.” Use of the terms “hereunder,” “herein,”
“hereby,” and similar terms refer to this Agreement.
No modification, amendment, or waiver of any
provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless
in writing and signed by both parties hereto.

11.11. Headings. Headings are for reference only and
do not affect the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement.

11.12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be
executed in one or more counterparts. Each
counterpart is an original. All counterparts together
form one document.

11.13. System Requirements. Customer shall meet
the minimum system requirements for access to the
Service

*  Google Chrome™: Version 97 to most
Current

*  Microsoft® Edge®: Version 96 to most
Current

*  Mozilla® Firefox®: Version 96 to most
Current

*  Apple® Safari®: Version 15 to most
Current

11.14. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers.
Nothing in this Agreement will be deemed to
constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers
of the Customer, the Williamson County
Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County
Judge.

Blazestack Inc.

3201 Bee Caves Road,
Suite 120 #160266,
Austin, Texas 78746
hello@blazestack.com
(866) 303-4344



Docusign Envelope ID: AE165387-3C23-421B-9F70-E8B24711EC6B

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1270700
Blazestack Inc.
Austin, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/18/2025
being filed.
Williamson County Fire Marshal's Office Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

2025140
Fire Investigation Case Management Software

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
Elmore, Randall Cedar Park, TX United States X
Vlaskovits, AP Austin, TX United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION
Alexander Patrick vlaskovits

My name is , and my date of birth is
I . | . USA
My address is , ) ) )
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)
| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 2/18/2025
Travis TX
Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20 .
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1270700
Blazestack Inc.
Austin, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/18/2025
being filed.
Williamson County Fire Marshal's Office Date Acknowledged:
02/18/2025

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

2025140
Fire Investigation Case Management Software

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
Elmore, Randall Cedar Park, TX United States X
Vlaskovits, AP Austin, TX United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is , and my date of birth is

My address is ,
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20 .
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 17.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Approval of Service Agreement for Spay and Neuter Services from Animal Balance for the Williamson County Regione
Animal Shelter

Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Koren Shannon, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Service Agreement #202602 between Williamson
County and Animal Balance for spay/neuter surgery, at the to-not-exceed amount of $35,000.00, exempting this
service as a Professional Service as per Texas Local Government Code Discretionary Exemption (TLCG 262.024
(a)(4) a personal or professional service), and authorizing the execution of the agreement.

Background

The approval of this agreement will benefit the Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter by spaying and
neutering pets to help keep the population down. Animal Balance will provide an experienced high-volume, high
standard veterinary medical team consisting of a minimum of two (2) veterinarians licensed in the State of Texas,
one (1) clinic coordinator and two (2) to four (4) technicians. They will be providing spay/neuter surgeries for
public and shelter animals. The total cost for 200 surgeries is $35,000, additional surgeries above the 200 agreed
upon should be charged at $100 per surgery. The term of the agreement will be three (3) months starting
February 2025 through May 2025. The funding source is Grant 396P/Services/2.2 in the not to not exceed
amount of $35,000.00. Orig #1752. General Council and Contract Audit has reviewed and approved the
agreement. The department point of contact is Misty Valenta.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments
Animal Balance Agreement Redacted
1295 Form Redacted

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/20/2025 09:07 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 09:16 AM

Form Started By: Koren Shannon Started On: 02/05/2025 01:23 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT
MEMORANDUM OF

UNDERSTANDING
This MasTer Services AGreeMenT (the “Agreement”) is made effective as of this 13th day of _January
2025 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Animal Balance (Tax ID # 68-0630714) (“Contractes”);
and (ii) Williamson County Regional Animal Shelter (“Partner”)

Partner Tax ID: . Contractor and Partner are sometimes referred

to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

BACKGROUND:

WhHereas, Partner owns and operates a municipal government (type of) organization in Georgetown (city),
Texas;(state).

Whereas, Contractor owns and operates a non-profit organization registered in San Francisco, California;
and

Whereas, Partner desires to engage Contractor to provide an experienced high-volume, high standard
veterinary medical team for spay/neuter surgeries and Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide those
services for the benefit of Partner and its business, each in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Now, THererForg, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby conclusively acknowledged, the Parties,
intending to become legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

AGREEMENT:

1. InoerenDeNT ConTRACTOR STaTus. It is the Parties’ intent that each of them, at all times, and with respect to all
matters hereunder, function as and remain an independent contractor, and not an employee or officer of
the other Party. No Party shall represent to third parties that it is an employee or officer of the Party.

2. Services anp Duties. Contractor shall vaccinate and surgically sterilize cats and dogs, rendering them
permanently sterile so they cannot reproduce and to help reduce the spread of disease. Additional details
on the Contractor services and duties are located in the attached Schedule A (collectively the “Services”).

3. COMPENSATION

(a) Service Fees. As consideration for performing the Services, Partner shall pay to Contractor “Service
Fees” at the rates set forth in Schedule B hereto. Partner acknowledges and agrees that Partner's obligations
hereunder to remit all Service Fees payable hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional under any and
all circumstances, and shall be paid by the Partner to Contractor without notice or demand by Contractor
and without any abatement, reduction, diminution, setoff, defense, counterclaim or recoupment
whatsoever.

4. Restrictive CovenanTs. Partner covenants as follows:

(a) Non-Disparagement. Partner agrees that it will not, during the Term or afterwards, either directly or



indirectly, disparage Contractor or any of its affiliates, owners, directors, managers, officers, employees, agents, or
invitees or any of their family or friends.

5. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

(a) Confidential Information — In General. Each Party acknowledges that the other Party and its affiliates
have trade, business and financial secrets and other confidential and proprietary information (collectively,
the “Confidential Information”) and that during the term of this Agreement, it may receive or contribute to
the Confidential Information. For purposes of this Agreement, Confidential Information shall include, with
respect to the Parties (i) each Party's technology, processes, methodologies, business practices and technical
information; (ii) information, lists and databases regarding the Parties, their customers, assets, suppliers, or
their marketing plans, business plans, financial status, agreements, patents or trade secrets and (iii) any and
all other information, documents, items or materials deemed by either Party, in its sole and exclusive
discretion, as confidential or that should reasonably be understood by the other Party to be confidential at
the time of such disclosure. Confidential Information includes technical information, processes and
compilations of information, records, specifications and information concerning assets, and information
regarding methods of doing business.

(b) Release of Confidential Information. During and following the Term, each Party agrees (i) to hold
Confidential Information in confidence and (ii) not to release any Confidential Information to any person,
except that Contractor shall be allowed to disclose Partner Confidential Information to its contractors and/or
employees as needed to complete the Services. Each Party agrees to use reasonable efforts to give the other
Party notice of any and all attempts to compel disclosure of any Confidential Information, in such a manner
so as to provide such Party with written notice at least five (5) days before disclosure or within one (1)
business day after a Party is informed that such disclosure is being or shall be compelled, whichever is earlier.
Such written notice shall include a description of the information to be disclosed, the court, government
agency, or other forum through which the disclosure is sought, and the date by which the information is to
be disclosed, and shall contain a copy of the subpoena, order or other process used to compel disclosure.

a.

(c) Return of Confidential Information. Upon a Party’s written request, the other Party will deliver to
such Party all of its property and all Confidential Information in tangible form or in the non-requesting Party’s
possession or control. Any retention by a Party of Confidential Information following the termination of this
Agreement or upon such written request from the other Party shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.

6. Term & TERMINATION.
(a) Term. This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will continue until completion of
the Services for the agreed upon clinic dates (the “Term”).

Clinic date(s):

2025: February 28- March 2, May 16-18

_ Address where clinic(s) will be held:

1855 SE Inner Loop, Georgetown, TX 78626

(b) Termination. Partner may terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason by providing no less
than 21-days written notice in advance of a Clinic next-scheduled under the SOW. If Partner terminates this
Agreement less than 21 days in advance of that next-scheduled Clinic, Contractor may deem the deposit paid for the
next-scheduled Clinic forfeited and nonrefundable, in Contractor's sole discretion.



-Contractor may terminate this Agreement prior to any Services being provided by providing a 21-days written
notice to the Partner, and shall refund any deposit previously paid by Partner if terminated prior to the Services, or
any part of the Services, being provided.

-Upon proper termination by either Party, the Contractor shall be allowed to invoice and receive any payments
paid for completed clinics or Services.

(c) Termination — Following Initial Term. A non-breaching Party may also terminate this Agreement at
any time in the event of a breach by the other Party of a material covenant, commitment or obligation under
this Agreement that remains uncured after thirty (30) days following written notice from the non-breaching
Party to the breaching party thereof. Such termination shall be effective immediately and automatically
upon the expiration of the applicable notice and cure period, without further notice or action by the non-
breaching Party. Following termination, the breaching Party shall no longer have any rights under otherwise
pursuant to this Agreement. Termination shall be in addition to any other remedies that may be available to
the non-breaching Party.

7. PARTNER OBLIGATIONS.

(a) Partner shall provide a temperature-controlled location for the clinic for the dates agreed upon by
the Parties. The location must meet the specifications for the clinic setup as set forth by AVMA guidelines
and state laws, to include access to running water, team bathrooms, proper lighting, etc. The Partner shall
also ensure that all permits are current and in place prior to the agreed upon clinic start dates. The Partner
shall ensure that Contractor and other third parties are provided with any necessary rules, regulations,
contracts, or other documents pertaining to the use of the clinic space. The Partner shall ensure that
Contractor has access to the clinic space building between the hours of 7:00 AM- 7:00 PM each day of the
scheduled clinic dates, as well as one (1) full day prior to the clinic start date and one (1) full day after the
clinic end date, to allow for clinic set-up and breakdown.

(b) Partner shall recruit the number of local volunteers requested by the Contractor to assist with
general (non-medical) clinic duties such as registration, cleaning, animal transport, etc. Partner shall ensure
that Partner, Partner's employees and all local volunteers have

signed the Contractor's liability waiver, handbook and the hold harmless document prior to assisting
with the client.

(c) Partner will provide the premise permit, if one is required in your state.

(d) Partner will provide a Veterinarian who holds a DEA license to purchase controlled substances. If the
partner does not have a DEA licensed Veterinarian, the contractor and the partner will work together to
determine how controlled substances will be managed. The DEA licensed Veterinarian will be present at the
clinic.

(e) The partner will ensure that there are 40 sterile, wrapped and packed surgical packs ready for day
one of the clinic, in accordance with AB's SOP. If you do not have your own packs yet, you will work with
your AB Program Director to ensure AB brings 40 sterile packs.

(f) Partner shall communicate to the local volunteers that they will not have access to the surgical area
and that they must follow the Contractor's instructions and rules. All volunteers under the age of eighteen
(18) must be approved by Contractor, and the minor's guardian must be present at all times and must
assume all responsibility for the minor volunteer.

(g) Partner shall ensure an adequate setup at the clinic site for curbside patient drop-off and pickup.
Partner shall ensure there is adequate parking and traffic control at the clinic site.



(h) Partner shall provide Contractor with any publicity and social media reports for review prior to
publishing. Partner shall provide Contractor and all sponsors/funders appropriate credit and
acknowledgement of participation in any news or social media publications.

(i) If Partner provides microchips, Contractor shall implant microchips. Partner is responsible for
registration of microchips.

(j) Partner will schedule animals using the exact template provided by the Contractor The weight limit
for dogs is 80 Ibs. Contractor shall not provide services to cats or dogs under 2 |bs. or eight (8) weeks of age.

(k) Partner understands that Contractor shall not provide Services for dogs with a poor body condition
score, at the Contractor's sole discretion, brachycephalic dogs (including but not limited to pugs, French
bulldogs, or other dogs with potentially compromised airways) or dogs over 80 Ibs.

() Partner shall ensure that all medical paperwork is filled out and signed using the name of the animal's
legal owner at the time of surgery (ex. animals in foster care are legally owned by the shelter or rescue and
therefore the medical paperwork should reflect that).

(m) Partner acknowledges and understands that they are to call the designated after-hours line to talk
to a Contractor representative about any postoperative concerns. Partner is responsible for disseminating
the emergency care protocol provided by the Contractor to the client. If it is determined that a visit to a
veterinarian is necessary, Contractor shall pay

for the initial exam only. Any additional care must be approved by the Contractor in advance. Contractor
shall not be responsible for any payments unless they have been pre-approved in writing by Contractor.

(n) Partner shall introduce AB Director/Clinic Coordinator to a local vet/emergency clinic who can see
any postoperative complications and adhere to AB’s SOPs.

8. BreacH; Limitation oF Damaces. If a Party breaches any of the Sections of this Agreement, the non-breaching
Party shall be entitled to recover from the breaching Party any damages allowed at law, but shall not be
entitled to revoke any consequential, special, exemplary, incidental or punitive damages, whether directly
or indirectly incurred, or for any other losses a Party incurs out of or in connection with this Agreement,
including without limitation loss of profits, loss of revenues, business interruption or other pecuniary loss,
even if a Party has been advised of the possibility of such damages or loss. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
each Party will have available the right to obtain from any court of competent jurisdiction an injunction
restraining a breach or threatened breach and specific performance of any provision in Section 5 or 6 of this
Agreement.

9. AssicNMmenT. Neither this Agreement nor any right or obligation of any Party hereunder nor interest herein
may be assigned or transferred by any Party without the written consent of the other Party.

10. INDEMNIFICATION BY PARTNER: USER acknowledges and agrees that under the Constitution and the laws of the

State of Texas, Partner cannot enter into an agreement whereby Partner agrees to indemnify or hold
harmless any other party, including but not limited to Contractor.

11. MisceLLANEOUS.

(a) Amendments and Waivers. Any term of this Agreement may be amended or waived only with the
written consent of the Parties.



(b) Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including any Addendums or Schedules hereto, constitutes the
entire agreement of the Parties and supersedes and replaces all oral negotiations and prior writings with
respect to the subject matter hereof.

(c) Notices. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed
sufficient upon receipt, when delivered personally, via electronic mail or by courier or overnight delivery
service, or three (3) days after being deposited in the regular United States mail as certified or registered
mail (airmail if sent internationally) with postage prepaid, if such notice is addressed to the Party to be
notified at such Party’s address or facsimile number presently known to any other Party, or as subsequently
modified by written notice.

(d) Donations. Any donations received by the Partner or Contractor during the Term of this Agreement
and relating to the Services provided hereunder shall be paid to Partner so long as Partner is a registered
non-profit. In the event Partner is not a registered non-profit, donations shall be paid to Contractor to be
used for spay/neuter services.

(e) Governing Law/Venue. The validity, interpretation, construction and performance of this Agreement
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas, without giving effect to its principles of conflict of laws.
If legal action is commenced by any of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, the Parties
agree that the jurisdiction and venue of such action shall be in the state or federal court of competent
jurisdiction located in Williamson County, Texas.

(f) Legal Fees; Interest. If any dispute arises between the Parties with respect to matters covered by this
Agreement, the prevailing Party in any such dispute shall be entitled to receive an award of reasonable
attorney fees, expert witness fees and out-of-pocket costs incurred in connection with such dispute, in
addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.

(g) Severability. If one or more provisions of this Agreement are held to be unenforceable under
applicable law, then such unenforceable provision(s) shall be deemed modified so as to be enforceable (or
if not subject to modification, then eliminated herefrom) for the purpose of those procedures to the extent
necessary to permit the remaining provisions to be enforced.

(h) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument.

(i) Advice of Counsel. EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT, IN EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, SUCH
PARTY HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK THE ADVICE OF INDEPENDENT LEGAL COUNSEL, AND HAS READ
AND UNDERSTOOD ALL OF THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL
NOT BE CONSTRUED AGAINST ANY PARTY BY REASON OF THE DRAFTING OR PREPARATION HEREOF.

(j) Compliance with Laws. The Parties agree to abide by all federal, state or local laws, regulations,
ordinances or other legal requirements in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder. In
addition, at all times during this Agreement, each Party shall have in effect all licenses, permits and
authorizations for all local, state, federal and foreign governmental agencies to the extent the same are
necessary to the performance of the Services hereunder. No Party shall not perform any Services under this
Agreement for which it does not hold all necessary licenses, permits and authorizations.

(k) Survival. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, Sections 5 and 6,
and each and every provision which by its terms is intended to survive termination, shall survive the
termination of this Agreement and/or the termination of any Party’s rights and obligations hereunder.



(I) Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by
Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the
later of (1) the date Customer receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the
service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice
for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by Customer in
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall
accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of Customer’s fiscal year in which the payment
becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2)
the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that
does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

(m) County’s Right to Audit. Contractor agrees that County or its duly authorized representatives
shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and
the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which
are directly pertinent to the services to be performed and amounts expended under this Agreement for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Contractor agrees that County
shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary Contractor facilities and shall be provided
adequate and appropriate workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this
section. County shall give Contractor reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

Schedule A - Services

Contractor shall provide spay/neuter surgeries, and may assist with other animal ailments in their sole
discretion. Should the Contractor decide not to treat other ailments, they will refer the animal to a
local veterinarian for further care.

Contractor shall provide an experienced high-volume, high standard veterinary medical team consisting
of a minimum of two (2) veterinarians licensed in the State of Texas, one (1) clinic coordinator
and two (2) to four (4) technicians, whose skill level matches customary veterinary clinic expectations.

Contractor shall work with Partner to obtain the veterinary medical supplies necessary for the
target number of surgeries.

Contractor shall coordinate with the Partner to ensure that all necessary equipment is provided to safely
allow Contractor to provide the Services. Contractor shall also coordinate with the Partner to organize
and orchestrate the sterilization clinic so that it is efficient and safe for all humans and animals.

Contractor shall provide accurate medical records for each patient.

Contractor shall provide the Medical, Volunteer and Clinic Flow SOPs and Contractor handbook
as requested in writing.

Contractor shall provide Partner with liability release waivers for any volunteers that might be assisting
the Contractor and Partner.

Contractor shall be flexible and respectful as changes may occur in the situation and shall work with
the Partner to solve situations as they arise and to re-evaluate strategies as needed.

No filming is allowed within the clinic. Contractor shall provide Partner with Contractor's publicity and
social media guidelines, and shall provide Partner with any publicity or social media posts for review
prior to publishing.



The Partner and Contractor may mutually agree if an animal needs to be euthanized per
Contractor's euthanasia policy.

Schedule B - Fees

Service Fees shall be calculated as follows:

The total cost for 200 surgeries is $35,000 .

Additional surgeries above the 200 agreed upon shall be charged at $ 100 per surgery. Contractor shall provide a
final invoice within five (5) business days of the clinic end date, which will include charges for any additional
surgeries provided over the agreed upon amount.

The final invoice amount is owed within 10 business days of the invoice date via electronic transfer.
interest.

If a partner does not pay Animal Balance for 2 consecutive clinics. Animal Balance will postpone
further clinics, until payment for both outstanding invoices has been received. Any consecutive clinics
will be subject to prepayment.

Alternative methods must be approved in advance of the receipt of the invoice. See bank details below:

In WiTness WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

CONTRACTOR: PARTNER:
Animal Balance Williamson County
a California nonprofit Regional Animal Shelter
public benefit corporation
By:
By: Williamson County Judge,
Emma Clifford, Founder Bill Gravell
and Director
DATE:

DATE:
1.13.2025




CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1256612
Animal Balance
Georgetown, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 01/13/2025
being filed.
Williamson County Date Acknowledged:
01/14/2025

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

202602
spay/neuter surgeries Agreement

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. .

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is ., and my date of birth is

My address is , s , , .
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20 .
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FOrRM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1256612
Animal Balance
Georgetown, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 01/13/2025
being filed.
Williamson County Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

202602
spay/neuter surgeries Agreement

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. .

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My nameis ___|sabelle Zachary . and my date of birth is || :
My address is___ | — N B e
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in Bastrop County, State of ___Texas ,onthe 13thday of _January , 20 25

(month) (year)

Signature of authorizeB{gem of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Authorize Issuing Advertisement for RFP #25RFP31 for Countywide As-Needed Temporary Labor Service for
Williamson County

Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Barbi Hageman, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive
sealed solicitations for Williamson County Temporary As Needed Labor Services, under RFP #25RFP31.

Background

Williamson County is seeking solicitations from qualified vendors to provide temporary labor services as needed
countywide. The expenditure will be charged to multiple departments countywide as needed as per the FY25
budget. Origination #2132. Department contact is Joy Simonton.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 12:57 PM

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/19/2025 04:23 PM

Form Started By: Barbi Hageman Started On: 02/18/2025 03:05 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Approval of Purchase of Bulk Order of Computers from Dell Technologies for Countrywide Departments for Informatior
Services

Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Barbi Hageman, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the purchase #2025139 for the second (2) bulk order

for FY25 for budgeted computers and equipment between Dell Technologies, Inc. and Williamson County in the
amount of $85,313.86, pursuant to the DIR contract #DIR-TSO-3763.

Background

This purchase of computers and equipment will benefit Williamson County with bulk order discounts. There are
multiple funding sources (see attached) used for this purchase from various departments as approved in the
FY25 budget. Dell Technologies is publicly traded, therefore a 1295 is not required. Contract Audit and General
Council have approved the purchase. Origination # 2087. The department point of contact is Richard Semple.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |
Attachments

Quote

Funding
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 11:31 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/19/2025 11:41 AM

Form Started By: Barbi Hageman Started On: 02/11/2025 11:32 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025



D<A L lechnologies

Your quote is ready for purchase.

Complete the purchase of your personalized quote through our secure online checkout before
the quote expires on Mar. 08, 2025.

You can download a copy of this quote during checkout.

Place your order

Quote Name: Dell Bulk Order #2
Quote No. W
Total \ .

Customer # m

Quoted On eb. 06, 2025

Expires by Mar. 08, 2025
Texas Department of
Contract Name Information Resources (TX
DIR)
Contract Code C000000006841

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763
Deal ID

Message from your Sales Rep

Sales Rep
Phone
Email
Billing To

Gilbert Marquez

1(800) 456-3355, 6179191
Gilbert_Marquez@Dell.com

TAMMY MCCULLEY

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ITS

301 SE INNER LOOP STE 105
GEORGETOWN, TX 78626-8207

Please use the Order button to securely place the order with your preferred payment method online. You may contact
your Dell sales team if you have any questions. Thank you for shopping with Dell.

Regards,
Gilbert Marquez

Shipping Group

Shipping To Shipping Method
RECV DEPT Standard Delivery

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ITS

301 SE INNER LOOP STE 105
INFO TECHNOLOGY SRVS
GEORGETOWN, TX 78626-8207
(512) 943-1450

Product

Mobile Precision 3591

Dell Latitude 5350

OptiPlex Small Form Factor (Plus 7020)
Mobile Precision 3591

Page 1

Unit Price

$1,856.00
$1,350.00

$918.45
$1,415.42

Quantity
3
4
6
38

Subtotal

$5,568.00
$5,400.00
$5,510.70
$53,785.96


https://www.dell.com/quote/purchase/ordernow/en-us/validatequote?context=kQ4OumQYKJ7na9rxipx5zMgkKDaABU7%252BSA0tk2I1ObHDYhbt770Q2nHx0jcwsfQCEFOEBrGfC90jK44E06Y8cQa0rAH4uno9gH5C%252FTgNSN0S%252BIJSViYHW4gDMm3ogGXblPsT02zyP5YFr4CZQzI%252FF1Ez4QuXsImBCi%252B7rrYA4cw%253D&contextversion=2&ref=cce_em_qto
mailto:Gilbert_Marquez@Dell.com

Dell Slim Conferencing Soundbar — SB522A $46.37 6 $278.22

Dell Premier Multi-Device Wireless Keyboard & Mouse - $57.37 4 $229.48
KM7321W

Dell Pro Wireless Keyboard & Mouse - KM5221W $33.74 20 $674.80

Dell Wired Keyboard and Mouse - KM300C $26.99 2 $53.98

Dell 27 Monitor - P2725H $155.00 38 $5,890.00

Dell 34 Curved Video Conferencing Monitor - P3424WEB $518.69 6 $3,112.14

Dell Thunderbolt 4 Dock- WD22TB4 $196.87 15 $2,953.05

Dell 24 Monitor - P2425H $131.81 13 $1,713.53

Dell 90W USB-C AC Adapter $45.00 2 $90.00

Dell 130W USB-C AC Adapter $54.00 1 $54.00

Subtotal: $85,313.86

Shipping: $0.00

Non-Taxable Amount: $85,313.86

Taxable Amount: $0.00

Estimated Tax: $0.00

Total: $85,313.86

Accelerate the power
of Al for your data

Take the first step in achieving
Generative Al success

T,

Page 2


https://www.delltechnologies.com/asset/en-us/services/consulting/briefs-summaries/generative-ai-services-overview.pdf?tfcid=70777108&cid=316360&lid=5993986&dgc=em

Shipping Group Details

Shipping To Shipping Method
RECV DEPT Standard Delivery

WILLIAMSON COUNTY ITS

301 SE INNER LOOP STE 105
INFO TECHNOLOGY SRVS
GEORGETOWN, TX 78626-8207
(512) 943-1450

Mobile Precision 3591

Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 20, 2025

Contract # C00000000684 1

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description
Dell Mobile Precision Workstation 3591

Intel Core Ultra 7 165H vPro Enterprise (24 MB cache, 16
cores, 22 threads, up to 5.0 GHz, 45W)

Windows 11 Pro, English, Brazilian Portuguese PT-BR,
French, Spanish

Intel Core Ultra 7 165H Processor with vPro and NVIDIA RTX
500 Ada 4GB GDDR6

Intel vPro Enterprise Technology Enabled
Activate Your Microsoft 365 For A 30 Day Trial
NVIDIA RTX 500 Ada Generation, 4 GB GDDR6

15.6" FHD 1920x1080, 60Hz, 250 nits, Touch, FHD HDR IR
Camera, Mic, WLAN, 4G WWAN

FHD HDR + IR Camera, Facial Recognition, TNR, Camera
Shutter, Microphone

32 GB: 1 x 32 GB, DDR5, 5600 MT/s, non-ECC
1TB, M.2 2230, Gen4 PCle NVMe, SSD, Class 35
No Additional Hard Drive

NO RAID

English US backlit Al hotkey keyboard with numeric keypad,
99-key

Single Pointing, Smart Card Reader, Finger Print Reader,
CV3+

Intel AX211, 2x2 MIMO, 2400 Mbps, 2.4/5/6 GHz, Wi-Fi 6/6E
(WiFi 802.11ax), Bluetooth

4 Cell, 64WHr, Long Lifecycle Battery, 3-year warranty
4 Cell Battery Cable

130W Type C Power Adapter
ENERGY STAR Qualified
EPEAT 2018 Registered (Gold)
Windows AutoPilot

E5 Power Cord 1M for US
SERI Guide (ENG/FR/Multi)

SKU
210-BLNG

379-BFQW

619-ARSB

329-BKFY

631-BBXG
658-BCSB
490-BKBY

391-BJCT

319-BBKH

370-BBYG
400-BRPX
401-AAGM
817-BBBN

583-BLNH

346-BKTP

555-BKND

451-BDDM
451-BDDN

492-BDGH
387-BBLW
379-BDZB
634-BRWG
537-BBDK
340-AGIK

Unit Price
$1,856.00

Unit Price

Quantity

3

Quantity

3

W W W W w w

Subtotal
$5,568.00

Subtotal

Page 3 Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682



Intel AX211 WLAN Driver 555-BKSB - 3 -
Packaging for 130W Adapter 340-DQNC - 3 -
Custom Configuration 817-BBBB - 3 -
Intel Core Ultra vPro Enterprise Label 340-DMQM - 3 -
Dell Additional Software 658-BFPP - 3 -
Quick Setup Guide for Mobile Precision 3591 340-DQRD - 3 -
Intel Connectivity Performance Suite for Evo/vPro 640-BBTB - 3 -
ProSupport Plus: Accidental Damage Service, 3 Years 997-1061 - 3 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service 997-1129 - 3 -
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 997-1142 - 3 -
ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite, 3 Years 997-6066 - 3 -
ProSupport Plus: Keep Your Hard Drive, 3 Years 997-1096 - 3 -

Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech -

support, visit www.dell.com/contactdell or call 1-866-516-3115 2078367 3 -

Intel(R) Rapid Storage Technology Driver 409-BCXX - 3 -

BTO Standard Shipment (M) 800-BBGS - 3 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 5350 $1,350.00 4 $5,400.00

Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Feb. 21, 2025

Contract # C000000006841

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Latitude 5350 XCTO Base 210-BLST - 4 -

Intel Core Ultra 5 135U vPro (12 MB cache, 12 cores, 14 -

threads, up to 4.4 GHz Turbo) 379-BFPC 4 -

Windows 11 Ero, English, Brazilian Portuguese PT-BR, 619-ARSB - 4 )

French, Spanish

Activate Your Microsoft 365 For A 30 Day Trial 658-BCSB - 4 -

Integrated Intel graphics for Intel Core Ultra 5 135U vPro ) - )

processor, 16 GB LPDDR5x memory 338-CNQN 4

Intel vPro Enterprise Technology Enabled 631-BBSV - 4 -

16 GB: LPDDR5Xx, 6400 MT/s (4800 MT/s with 13th Gen Intel 370-BBVG - 4 )

Core processors), dual-channel (onboard)

512 GB, M.2 2230, TLC PCle Gen 4 NVMe, SSD 400-BQYK - 4 -

2-in-1, 13.3", FHD 1920x1080, 60Hz, IPS, Touch, AR+AS, 300 391-BHYW - 4 )

nit, 72% NTSC, GG DXC, Pen Support, FHD+IR/IP Cam, 4G

English US backlit Al hotkey keyboard, 79-key 583-BLLZ - 4 -

Intel AX211 WLAN Driver 555-BKQX - 4 -

Intel Wi-Fi 6E (6 where 6E unavailable) AX211, 2x2, 802.11ax, -

Bluetooth 5.3 wireless card 555-BKLQ 4 )

3-cell, 54 Wh, ExpressCharge Capable, ExpressCharge Boost 451-BDGX - 4 )

Capable

65W AC adapter, USB Type-C, EcoDesign 492-BDMN - 4 -

Fingerprint Reader, Smart Card Reader, Control Vault 3+ 346-BKNL - 4 -

E4 Power Cord 1M for US 537-BBDO - 4 -

Latitude 5350 2-in-1 Quick Start Guide 340-DMQJ - 4 -

Page 4 Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682



SERI Guide (ENG/FR/Multi) 340-AGIK - 4 -
ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBPC - 4 -
Dell Additional Software 658-BFQB - 4 -
DAO Mix Model 65W Adpt MTL 2N1 AX211 340-DMXZ - 4 -
Intel Core Ultra vPro Enterprise Label 340-DMQM - 4 -
Windows AutoPilot 634-BRWG - 4 -
FI-_|D HDR IR Camera with Facial Recognition + Intelligent 319-BBKJ - 4 )
Privacy, TNR, Camera Shutter, Microphone
EPEAT 2018 Registered (Gold) 379-BDZB - 4 -
Intel Connectivity Performance Suite for Evo/vPro 640-BBTB - 4 -
Intel(R) Rapid Storage Technology Driver 409-BCXW - 4 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Extended Year(s) 975-3461 - 4 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 997-8317 - 4 -
ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite, 1 Year 997-8366 - 4 -
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech 997-8367 - 4 )
support, visit www.dell.com/contactdell or call 1-866-516-3115
ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite, 2 Year Extended 997-8381 - 4 -
ProSupport Plus: Keep Your Hard Drive, 3 Years 997-8382 - 4 -
ProSupport Plus: Accidental Damage Service, 3 Years 997-8383 B 4 -
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 997-8380 - 4 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
OptiPlex Small Form Factor (Plus 7020) $918.45 6 $5,510.70
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 13, 2025
Contract # C00000000684 1
Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763
Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
OptiPlex Small Form Factor Plus 7020 XCTO 210-BKWN - 6 -
e Core 5 processr 14500y (BAMB cache, 14 cores 0. e -
\é\'{gr?:r:/vssggnfsrg English, Brazilian Portuguese PT-BR, 619-ARSB - 6 )
Activate Your Microsoft 365 For A 30 Day Trial 658-BCSB - 6 -
16 GB: 2 x 8 GB, DDR5 370-BBPQ - 6 -
M.2 2230 1TB PCle NVMe SSD Class 35 400-BQRX - 6 -
1st M.2 2280 SSD Screw 773-BBBC - 6 -
M.2 22x30 Thermal Pad 412-AAQT - 6 -
NO RAID 817-BBBN - 6 -
Intel Integrated Graphics 490-BBFG - 6 -
OptiPlex SFF Plus with 260W Bronze Power Supply 329-BJWJ - 6 -
System Power Cord (Philipine/TH/US) 450-AA0J - 6 -
8x DVD+/-RW/RAM 9.5mm Slimline Optical Disk Drive 429-ABFH - 6 -
DVD+/-RW Bezel 325-BDSH - 6 -
CyberLink Media Essentials for Windows 430-XYIX - 6 -
No Media Card Reader 379-BBHM - 6 -

Page 5 Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682



No Wireless LAN Card 555-BKHY - 6 -

No Additional Video Ports 492-BCKH - 6 -
gleaILII:ro Wireless Keyboard and Mouse - KM5221W - English - 580-AJJG - 6 )
Mouse included with Keyboard 570-AADI - 6 -
No Cover Selected 325-BCZQ - 6 -
Dell Additional Software 634-CHFP - 6 -
ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBLW - 6 -
SERI Guide (ENG/FR/Multi) 340-AGIK - 6 -
Watch Dog SRV 379-BFMR - 6 -
Quick Start Guide, OptiPlex SFF Plus 340-DMJC - 6 -
Trusted Platform Module (Discrete TPM Enabled) 329-BBJL - 6 -
Shipping Material 340-CQYR - 6 -
Shipping Label 389-BBUU - 6 -
Regulatory Label for OptiPlex SFF Plus PSU DAO 389-FFZD - 6 -
Intel® Rapid Storage Technology Driver 658-BFSK - 6 -
Intel Core i5 Processor Label 340-CUEW - 6 -
Desktop BTO Standard shipment 800-BBIO - 6 -
No Additional Add In Cards 382-BBHX - 6 -
il:gluA(;jg(ijt)ional Network Card Selected (Integrated NIC 555-BBJO - 6 )
Custom Configuration 817-BBBB - 6 -
EPEAT 2018 Registered (Silver) 379-BDTO - 6 -
Windows AutoPilot 634-BRWG - 6 -
Internal Speaker 520-AARD - 6 -
No vPro® support 631-BBQQ - 6 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service 812-3886 - 6 -
ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite 3 Years 812-3928 - 6 }
ProSupport Plus: Accidental Damage Service, 3 Years 812-3926 - 6 -
ProSupport Plus: Keep Your Hard Drive, 3 Years 812-3927 - 6 -
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 812-3929 - 6 -
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech 997-8367 - 6 )
support, visit www.dell.com/contactdell or call 1-866-516-3115

Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Mobile Precision 3591 $1,415.42 38 $53,785.96
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 20, 2025
Contract # C00000000684 1
Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763
Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell Mobile Precision Workstation 3591 210-BLNG - 38 -
s LS P Eepras (eMA e 4 grg aray T -
Windows 11 Pro, English, Brazilian Portuguese PT-BR, 619-ARSB - 38 )

French, Spanish

Page 6 Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682



Intel Core Ultra 5 135H Processor with vPro and Intel -

Integrated Graphics 329-BKF 38 )
Intel vPro Enterprise Technology Enabled 631-BBXG - 38 -
Activate Your Microsoft 365 For A 30 Day Trial 658-BCSB - 38 -
Intel Graphics or Intel Arc Pro Graphics 490-BKBZ - 38 -
ggef:?ﬂ:cgz\/?/&(ﬁo4govv\z/vf\zo nits, Touch, FHD HDR IR 391-BJCT - 38 i
gl:lljjttzrl?si;rlc)%r%anrre]era, Facial Recognition, TNR, Camera 319-BBKH - 38 )
16 GB: 2 x 8 GB, DDRS5, 5600 MT/s, non-ECC 370-BBYM - 38 -
512GB, M.2 2280, Gen4 PCle NVMe, SSD, Class 40 400-BQYM - 38 -
No Additional Hard Drive 401-AAGM - 38 -
NO RAID 817-BBBN - 38 -
gg_gkliesyh US backlit Al hotkey keyboard with numeric keypad, 583-BLNH - 38 )
gl\r)g:-e Pointing, Smart Card Reader, Finger Print Reader, 346-BKTP - 38 )
1%?;%2211115:)2 g/lllul\g?o,of:OO Mbps, 2.4/5/6 GHz, Wi-Fi 6/6E 555-BKND - 38 )
6 Cell Battery Cable 451-BDDJ - 38 -
6 Cell, 97WHr, Standard Battery 451-BDDL - 38 -
130W Type C Power Adapter 492-BDGH - 38 -
ENERGY STAR Qualified 387-BBLW - 38 -
EPEAT 2018 Registered (Gold) 379-BDzZB - 38 -
Windows AutoPilot 634-BRWG - 38 -
E5 Power Cord 1M for US 537-BBDK - 38 -
SERI Guide (ENG/FR/Multi) 340-AGIK - 38 -
Intel AX211 WLAN Driver 555-BKSB - 38 -
Packaging for 130W Adapter 340-DQNC - 38 -
Custom Configuration 817-BBBB - 38 -
Intel Core Ultra vPro Enterprise Label 340-DMQM - 38 -
Dell Additional Software 658-BFPP - 38 -
Quick Setup Guide for Mobile Precision 3591 340-DQRD - 38 -
Intel Connectivity Performance Suite for Evo/vPro 640-BBTB - 38 -
ProSupport Plus: Accidental Damage Service, 3 Years 997-1061 - 38 -
ProSupport Plus: Keep Your Hard Drive, 3 Years 997-1096 - 38 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Plus Service 997-1129 - 38 -
ProSupport Plus: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 997-1142 - 38 -
ProSupport Plus: Next Business Day Onsite, 3 Years 997-6066 - 38 -
Thank you for choosing Dell ProSupport Plus. For tech 997-8367 - 38 )
support, visit www.dell.com/contactdell or call 1-866-516-3115
Intel(R) Rapid Storage Technology Driver 409-BCXX - 38 -
BTO Standard Shipment (M) 800-BBGS - 38 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Page 7 Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682



Dell Slim Conferencing Soundbar — SB522A $46.37 6 $278.22
Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Feb. 13, 2025

Contract # C00000000684 1

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Slim Conferencing Soundbar — SB522A 520-AAWU - 6 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Premier Multi-Device Wireless Keyboard & Mouse - KM7321W $57.37 4 $229.48

Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Feb. 11, 2025

Contract # C000000006841
Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Premier Multi-Device Wireless Keyboard & Mouse - -

KM7321W 580-AJIX 4 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Pro Wireless Keyboard & Mouse - KM5221W $33.74 20 $674.80

Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Feb. 11, 2025

Contract # C00000000684 1

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Pro Wireless Keyboard & Mouse - KM5221W 580-AJIS - 20 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Wired Keyboard and Mouse - KM300C $26.99 2 $53.98

Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Feb. 11, 2025

Contract # C00000000684 1

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell Wired Keyboard and Mouse - KM300C 580-AKKV - 2 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell 27 Monitor - P2725H $155.00 38 $5,890.00

Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Feb. 13, 2025

Contract # C00000000684 1

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell 27 Monitor - P2725H 210-BMFJ - 38 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 814-5380 - 38 -

Advanced Exchange Service, 3 Years 814-5381 - 38 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell 34 Curved Video Conferencing Monitor - P3424WEB $518.69 6 $3,112.14

Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Feb. 11, 2025

Contract # C00000000684 1

Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763

Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Dell 34 Curved Video Conferencing Monitor - P3424WEB 210-BGMM - 6 -

Advanced Exchange Service 3 Years 844-1960 - 6 -

Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 844-1966 - 6 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal

Page 8



Dell Thunderbolt 4 Dock- WD22TB4 $196.87 15 $2,953.05
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 11, 2025
Contract # C000000006841
Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763
Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell Thunderbolt™ Dock — WD22TB4 210-BDQH - 15 -
Advanced Exchange Service, 3 Years 872-8550 - 15 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 872-8557 - 15 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell 24 Monitor - P2425H $131.81 13 $1,713.53
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 11, 2025
Contract # C000000006841
Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763
Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell 24 Monitor - P2425H 210-BMGH - 13 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty 814-5380 - 13 -
Advanced Exchange Service, 3 Years 814-5381 - 13 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell 90W USB-C AC Adapter $45.00 2 $90.00
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 12, 2025
Contract # C000000006841
Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763
Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell 90W USB-C AC Adapter 492-BCBK - 2 -
Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell 130W USB-C AC Adapter $54.00 1 $54.00
Estimated delivery if purchased today:
Feb. 12, 2025
Contract # C000000006841
Customer Agreement # TX DIR-TSO-3763
Description SKU Unit Price Quantity Subtotal
Dell 130W USB-C AC Adapter 450-AHOM - 1 -
Subtotal: $85,313.86
Shipping: $0.00
Estimated Tax: $0.00
Total: $85,313.86

Page 9

Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. is located at One Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682



Important Notes

Terms of Sale

This Quote will, if Customer issues a purchase order for the quoted items that is accepted by Supplier, constitute a contract between the
entity issuing this Quote (“Supplier”) and the entity to whom this Quote was issued (“Customer”). Unless otherwise stated herein, pricing is
valid for thirty days from the date of this Quote. All product, pricing and other information is based on the latest information available and is
subject to change. Supplier reserves the right to cancel this Quote and Customer purchase orders arising from pricing errors. Taxes and/or
freight charges listed on this Quote are only estimates. The final amounts shall be stated on the relevant invoice. Additional freight charges
will be applied if Customer requests expedited shipping. Please indicate any tax exemption status on your purchase order and send your tax
exemption certificate to Tax_Department@dell.com or ARSalesTax@emc.com, as applicable.

Governing Terms: This Quote is subject to: (a) a separate written agreement between Customer or Customer’s affiliate and Supplier or a
Supplier’s affiliate to the extent that it expressly applies to the products and/or services in this Quote or, to the extent there is no such
agreement, to the applicable set of Dell's Terms of Sale (available at www.dell.com/terms or www.dell.com/oemterms), or for cloud/as-a-
Service offerings, the applicable cloud terms of service (identified on the Offer Specific Terms referenced below); and (b) the terms
referenced herein (collectively, the “Governing Terms”). Different Governing Terms may apply to different products and services on this
Quote. The Governing Terms apply to the exclusion of all terms and conditions incorporated in or referred to in any documentation submitted
by Customer to Supplier.

Supplier Software Licenses and Services Descriptions: Customer’s use of any Supplier software is subject to the license terms
accompanying the software, or in the absence of accompanying terms, the applicable terms posted on www.Dell.com/eula. Descriptions and
terms for Supplier-branded standard services are stated at www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global or for certain infrastructure products at
www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm.

Offer-Specific, Third Party and Program Specific Terms: Customer’s use of third-party software is subject to the license terms that
accompany the software. Certain Supplier-branded and third-party products and services listed on this Quote are subject to additional,
specific terms stated on www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms (“Offer Specific Terms”).

In case of Resale only: Should Customer procure any products or services for resale, whether on standalone basis or as part of a solution,
Customer shall include the applicable software license terms, services terms, and/or offer-specific terms in a written agreement with the end-
user and provide written evidence of doing so upon receipt of request from Supplier.

In case of Financing only: If Customer intends to enter into a financing arrangement (“Financing Agreement”) for the products and/or
services on this Quote with Dell Financial Services LLC or other funding source pre-approved by Supplier (“‘FS”), Customer may issue its
purchase order to Supplier or to FS. If issued to FS, Supplier will fulfill and invoice FS upon confirmation that: (a) FS intends to enter into a
Financing Agreement with Customer for this order; and (b) FS agrees to procure these items from Supplier. Notwithstanding the Financing
Agreement, Customer’s use (and Customer’s resale of and the end-user’s use) of these items in the order is subject to the applicable
governing agreement between Customer and Supplier, except that title shall transfer from Supplier to FS instead of to Customer. If FS
notifies Supplier after shipment that Customer is no longer pursuing a Financing Agreement for these items, or if Customer fails to enter into
such Financing Agreement within 120 days after shipment by Supplier, Customer shall promptly pay the Supplier invoice amounts directly to
Supplier.

Customer represents that this transaction does not involve: (a) use of U.S. Government funds; (b) use by or resale to the U.S. Government;
or (c) maintenance and support of the product(s) listed in this document within classified spaces. Customer further represents that this
transaction does not require Supplier's compliance with any statute, regulation or information technology standard applicable to a U.S.
Government procurement.

For certain products shipped to end users in California, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to Customer’s invoice. Supplier
encourages customers to dispose of electronic equipment properly.

Electronically linked terms and descriptions are available in hard copy upon request.

Page 10


mailto:Tax_Department@dell.com
mailto:ARSalesTax@emc.com
http://www.dell.com/terms
http://www.dell.com/oemterms
http://www.dell.com/eula
http://www.dell.com/servicecontracts/global
http://www.dellemc.com/en-us/customer-services/product-warranty-and-service-descriptions.htm
http://www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms

Dept
Dept# Name CategoryBrand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
572 CSCD  Other  Dell Case Ecoloop Essential Briefcase 14-16 20 17.00 % 340.00

Dept
Dept# Name CategoryBrand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
509 FAC Other  Dell Case EcoLoop Essential Briefcase 14-16 7% 17.00 % 119.00

cases
TOTAL  only $ 459.00




FY25 - Bulk Order #2

395- Kayla Marrou
Dept# Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
439 395 Laptop Dell CAD/GIS Laptop Mobile Precision 3591-i7-32GB-1TB - 15" GIS/CAD 1 51,856.00 S 1,856.00
439 395 Dock Dell Dock Thunderbolt - WD22TB4 15 196.87 S 196.87
439 395 Other Dell Wireless K/M KM5221 15 3374 S 33.74
$ 2,086.61 01-0100-0439-003010
CC - Brad Weems
Dept# Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
385 cC Monitor Dell 27" Monitor P2725H 2 5 155.00 S 310.00
385 cC Dock Dell Dock Thunderbolt - WD22TB4 15 196.87 S 196.87
$ 506.87 01-0385-0385-003010
CON1 - Patrick Youngren
Dept#  Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
551 CON1 Other Dell Wireless K/M KM7321 45 5737 § 220.48
$ 229.48 01-0100-0551-003010
CSCD - Melissa Ramos
Dept# Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
572 CSCD Laptop  Dell 15" Standard Laptop Mobile Precision 3591- i5-16GB-51255D - 15" Standard 20 51,415.42 5 28,308.40
$ 28,308.40 01-0100-0572-003010
ELEC - William Grato
Dept# Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
492 ELEC Laptop  Dell 13" Standard Laptop Latitude 5350 2n1 - i5-16GB-51255D-touch - 13" 2n1 3 $1,350.00 S 4,050.00
492 ELEC Monitor Dell 27" Monitor P2725H 28 S 155.00 S 4,340.00
492 ELEC Monitor Dell 34" Curved Monitor w/ Soundbar P3424WEB 4§ 51869 S 2,074.76
492 ELEC Dock Dell Dock Thunderbolt - WD22TB4 35 196.87 S 590.61
492 ELEC Other Dell Soundbar w/ Mic S5B522A 55 4637 $ 231.85
492 ELEC Other Dell Wireless K/M KM5221 4S5 3374 S 134.96
$ 11,422.18 01-0100-0492-003010
FAC - Gina Wrehsnig
Dept # Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
509 FAC Laptop  Dell 15" Standard Laptop Mobile Precision 3591- i5-16GB-51255D - 15" Standard 7 $1,415.42 S 9,907.94
509 FAC Monitor Dell 24" Monitor P2425H 3§ 13181 S 395.43
509 FAC Dock Dell Dock Thunderbolt - WD22TB4 3 S 196.87 S 590.61
509 FAC Other Dell Wireless K/M KM5221 10 § 33.74 S 337.40
509 FAC Other Dell 90W USB-C Adapter 2 S 4500 S 90.00
509 FAC Other Dell 130W USB-C Adapter 15 5400 S 54.00
$ 11,375.38 01-0100-0509-003010
ITS - Holly Shell
Dept#  Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost Notes
503 ITS Laptop  Dell 15" Standard Laptop Mobile Precision 3591- i5-16GB-51255D - 15" Standard 1 61,415.42 S 1,415.42
503 ITS Laptop Dell CAD/GIS Laptop Mobile Precision 3591-i7-32GB-1TB - 15" GIS/CAD 1 51,856.00 S 1,856.00
503 ITS Dock Dell Dock Thunderbolt - WD22TB4 2 S 196.87 S 393.74
503 ITS Monitor Dell 34" Curved Monitor w/ Soundbar  P3424WEB 2 § 51869 S 1,037.38
$ 4,702.54 01-0100-0503-003010
ITS-PSTP - Janessa Stephens/Holly Shell
Dept# Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity UnitCost Extended Cost Notes
523 ITS-PSTP Laptop  Dell 15" Standard Laptop Mobile Precision 3591- i5-16GB-51255D - 15" Standard 5 $1,415.42 S 7,077.10
523 ITS-PSTP  Monitor Dell 24" Monitor P2425H 10 § 131.81 S 1,318.10
523 ITS-PSTP  Dock Dell Dock Thunderbolt - WD22TB4 5 S5 196.87 S 984.35
523 ITS-PSTP  Other Dell Wireless K/M KM5221 585 3374 § 168.70
$ 9,548.25 P604, 2022 CIF, 4.2




Dept#  Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost  Extended Cost Notes
570 JAIL Desktop Dell Standard Desktop OptiPlex 7020 plus - i5-16GB-1TB SSD 6 5 91845 S 5,510.70
570 JAIL Monitor Dell 27" Monitor P2725H 2 § 155.00 & 310.00
570 JAIL Other Dell Wired K/M MK300 2S5 2699 & 53.98
570 JAIL Other Dell Soundbar w/ Mic SB522A 15 4637 S 46.37

Dept#  Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost  Extended Cost Notes
576 Juv Laptop  Dell 13" Standard Laptop Latitude 5350 2n1 - i5-16GB-51255D-touch - 13" 2n1 1 51,350.00 S 1,350.00
576 Juv Laptop  Dell 15" Standard Laptop Mobile Precision 3591- i5-16GB-51255D - 15" Standard 1 §1,415.42 § 1,415.42

Dept#  Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost Extended Cost
587 RADIO  laptop Dell CAD/GIS Laptop Mobile Precision 3591- i7-32GB-1TB - 15" GIS/CAD 1 $1,856.00 $ 1,856.00

Notes

Dept#  Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost  Extended Cost Notes
497 TREA Laptop  Dell 15" Standard Laptop Mobile Precision 3591- i5-16GB-51255D - 15" Standard 4 $1,415.42 S 5,661.68

Dept#  Dept Nam Category Brand Make Model Quantity Unit Cost  Extended Cost Notes
405 VET Monitor Dell 27" Monitor P2725H 6 $ 155.00 $ 930.00

TOTAL $ 85,313.86 |




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Approval of Purchase and Service Amendment of CivilServe Annual Support and Maintenance from Tyler
Technologies, Inc. for Information Systems

Submitted For: Joy Simonton
Department: Purchasing

Submitted By: Barbi Hageman, Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Agenda Iltem

Information

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving Purchase and Service Amendment #2025141
between Williamson County and Tyler Technologies, Inc. for CivilServe annual support and maintenance for the
amount of $57,522.73, pursuant to Sourcewell contract #Sourcewell 060624-TTI.

Background

This Purchase and Service Amendment is for the recurring annual maintenance and support for the
CivilServe/SoftCode application used by Williamson County's Constable's offices for case management for the
period of 02/05/2025-02/04/2026. The Amendment updates the Agreement to the new Sourcewell Contract ID
060624-TTI. Funding Source is 01.0100.0503.004505 as per FY25 budget. Contract Audit and General Council
have approved. Origination #1994. The department point of contact is DeAnna Saucedo. Tyler Technologies, Inc.
is a publicly-traded company. Therefore, no Form 1295 is required.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (|

Acct No. [ Description [ Amount |

Original Agreement

Attachments

Amendment
Quote
Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 12:55 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/19/2025 03:10 PM

Form Started By: Barbi Hageman
Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025

Started On: 02/14/2025 10:11 AM




..f)%'u ty I e r

O. technologies

LICENSE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

SourceWell Contract ID 110515-TTI
Williamson County Member ID 9076

This License and Services Agreement is made between Tyler Technologies, Inc. and Client,

WHEREAS, Client selected Tyler to license the software products and perform the services set forth in the
investment Summary and Tyler desires to perform such actions under the terms of this Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and promises set forth in this
Agreement, Tyler and Client agree as follows:

SECTION A — DEFINITIONS

"Agreement” means this License and Services Agreement.

“Business Travel Policy” means our business travel policy. A copy of our current Business Travel Policy
is attached as Schedule 1 to Exhibit B.

“Client” means Williamson County, TX.

“Defect” means a failure of the Tyler Software to substantially conform to the functional descriptions
set forth in our written proposal to you, or their functional equivalent, based on a condition within our
reasonable control. Future functionality may be updated, modified, or otherwise enhanced through our
maintenance and support services, and the governing functional descriptions for such future
functionality will be set forth in our then-current Documentation.

“Developer” means a third party who owns the intellectual property rights to Third Party Software.
“Documentation” means any online or written documentation related to the use or functionality of the
Tyler Software that we provide or otherwise make available to you, including instructions, user guides,
manuals and other training or self-help documentation.

“Effective Date” means the last signature date set forth in the signature block.

“Force Majeure” means an event beyond the reasonable control of you or us, including, without
limitation, governmental action, war, riot or civil commotion, fire, natural disaster, or any other cause
that could not with reasonable diligence be foreseen or prevented by you or us.

“Investment Summary” means the agreed upon cost proposal for the software, products, and services
attached as Exhibit A.

“Invoicing and Payment Policy” means the invoicing and payment policy. A copy of our current
Invoicing and Payment Policy is attached as Exhibit B.

“Maintenance and Support Agreement” means the terms and conditions governing the provision of
maintenance and support services to all of our customers. A copy of our current Maintenance and
Support Agreement is attached as Exhibit C.

“Support Call Process” means the support call process applicable to all of our customers who have
licensed the Tyler Software. A copy of our current Support Call Process is attached as 5chedule 1 to
Exhibit C.

g tyler,



“Third Party Terms” means, if any, the end user license agreement(s) or similar terms, as applicable and
attached as Exhibit D.

“Third Party Hardware” means the third party hardware, if any, identified in the Investment Summary.
“Third Party Products” means the Third Party Software and Third Party Hardware,

“Third Party Software” means the third party software, if any, identified in the Investment Summary
and not embedded in the Tyler Software.

“Tyler” means Tyler Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation,

“Tyler Software” means our proprietary software, including any integrations, custom modifications,
and/or other related interfaces identified in the Investment Summary and licensed by us to you through
this Agreement. The Tyler Software also includes embedded third-party software that we are licensed to
embed in our proprietary software and sub-license to you.

“we”, “us”, “our” and similar terms mean Tyler,

“you” and similar terms mean Client.

SECTION B — SOFTWARE LICENSE

1. License Grant and Restrictions.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

We grant to you a license to use the Tyler Software, for the number of licenses identified in the
Investment Summary, for your internal business purposes only, in the scope of the internal business
purposes disclosed to us as of the Effective Date. You may use the licenses on an unlimited number of
your computers and/or computer stations. You may make copies of the Tyler Software for backup and
testing purposes, so long as such copies are not used in production and the testing is for internal use
only. Your rights to use the Tyler Software are perpetual, and will become irrevocable upon payment in
full, but we may suspend those rights if you do not comply with the terms of this Agreement, and you do
not correct that non-compliance within fifteen (15) days of our notice of that non-compliance or such
other commercially reasonable timeframe to which we may agree.

The Documentation is licensed to you and may be used and copied by your employees for internal, non-
commercial reference purposes only.

You may not: (a) transfer or assign the Tyler Software to a third party; (b) reverse engineer, decompile,
or disassemble the Tyler Software; (c) rent, lease, lend, or provide commercial hosting services with the
Tyler Software; or {d} publish or otherwise disclose the Tyler Software or Documentation to third
parties.

The license terms in this Agreement apply to updates and enhancements we may provide to you or
make available to you through your Maintenance and Support Agreement.

The right to transfer the Tyler Software to a replacement hardware system is included in your license.
You will give us advance written notice of any such transfer and will pay us for any required or
requested technical assistance from us associated with such transfer.

We reserve all rights not expressly granted to you in this Agreement, The Tyler Software and
Documentation are protected by copyright and other intellectual property laws and treaties. We own
the title, copyright, and other intellectual property rights in the Tyler Software and the Documentation.
The Tyler Software is licensed, not sold.

2. Llicense Fees. You agree to pay us the license fees in the amounts set forth in the Investment Summary.

4 tyler

technologies



Those amounts are payable in accordance with our Invoicing and Payment Policy.

2.1 Credit Towards License Fees. A one-time credit in the amount of ($62,500) shall be applied toward the
License Fees contemplated as of the Effective Date, as further detailed in the Investment Summary.

2.2 Discontinuation of Certain Maintenance and Support Services under Prior Agreement. The parties
acknowledge and agree that in exchange for the one-time credit set forth in Section B(2.1) above, the

Client shall no longer receive maintenance and support services on Tyler's Odyssey Law Enforcement
software currently licensed to Client under that certain End User License Agreement and Professional
Services Agreement dated September 14, 2011 (the “Prior Agreement”).

3. Escrow. We maintain an escrow agreement with a third party under which we place the source code for
each major release of the Tyler Software. You may be added as a beneficiary to the escrow agreement by
completing a standard beneficiary enrcliment form and paying the annual beneficiary fee. You will be
responsible for maintaining your ongoing status as a beneficiary, including payment of the then-current
annual beneficiary fees. Release of source code for the Tyler Software is strictly governed by the terms of
the escrow agreement.

4. Limited Warranty. We warrant that the Tyler Software will be without Defect{s} as long as you have a
Maintenance and Support Agreement in effect. If the Tyler Software does not perform as warranted, we will
use all reasonable efforts, consistent with industry standards, to cure the Defect as set forth in the
Maintenance and Support Agreement or to provide you with a functional equivalent. For the avoidance of
doubt, to the extent any third-party software is embedded in the Tyler Software, your limited warranty
rights are limited to our Defect resolution obligations set forth above; you do not have separate rights
against the developer of the embedded third-party software.

SECTION C — PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1. Services. We will provide you the various implementation-related services itemized in the Investment
Summary and described in our industry standard implementation plan. We will finalize that documentation
with you upon execution of this Agreement.

2. Professional Services Fees. You agree to pay us the professional services fees in the amounts set forth in the
Investment Summary. Those amounts are payable in accordance with our Invoicing and Payment Policy.
Any discrepancies in the total values set forth in the Investment Summary will be resolved by multiplying the
applicable hourly rate by the quoted hours,

3. Additional Services. The Investment Summary contains the scope of services and related costs (including
programming and/or interface estimates) required for the project based on the documented scope of the
project as of the Effective Date. If additional work is required, or if you use or request additional services,
we will provide you with an addendum or change order, as applicable, outlining the costs for the additional
work. The price quotes in the addendum or change order will be valid for thirty {30) days from the date of
the quote.

4. Cancellation. We make all reasonable efforts to schedule our personnel for travel, including arranging travel
reservations, at least two (2} weeks in advance of commitments. Therefore, if you repeatedly cancel
services less than two {2) weeks in advance (other than for Force Majeure or breach by us), you will be liable
for all (a) non-refundahle expenses incurred by us on your behalf, and (b) daily fees associated with

% tyler
o Lechnologies



cancelled professional services if we are unable to reassign our personnel. We will make all reasonable
efforts to reassign personnel in the event you cancel within two (2) weeks of scheduled commitments.

5. Services Warranty. We will perform the services in a professional, workmanlike manner, consistent with
industry standards. In the event we provide services that do not conform to this warranty, we will re-
perform such services at no additional cost to you.

6. Site Access and Requirements. At no cost to us, you agree to provide us with full and free access to your
personnel, facilities, and equipment as may be reasonably necessary for us to provide implementation
services, subject to any reasonable security protocols or other written policies provided to us as of the
Effective Date, and thereafter as mutually agreed to by you and us. You further agree to provide a
reasonably suitable environment, location, and space for the installation of the Tyler Software and any Third
Party Products, including, without limitation, sufficient electrical circuits, cables, and other reasonably
necessary items required for the installation and operation of the Tyler Software and any Third Party
Products. You agree that it is your responsibility to ensure that you have satisfy the then-current system
requirements, if any, minimally required to run the Tyler Software.

7. Client Assistance. You acknowledge that the implementation of the Tyler Software, and the ability to meet
project deadlines and other milestones, is a cooperative effort requiring the time and resources of your
personnel, as well as ours. You agree to use all reasonable efforts to cooperate with and assist us as may be
reasonably required to meet the agreed upon project deadlines and other milestones for implementation.
This cooperation includes at least working with us to schedule the implementation-related services outlined
in this Agreement.

SECTION D — MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT

This Agreement includes the period of free maintenance and support services identified in the Invoicing and
Payment Policy. If you have purchased ongoing maintenance and support services and continue to make
timely payments for them according to our invoicing and Payment Policy, we will provide you with
maintenance and support services for the Tyler Software under the terms of our standard Maintenance and
Support Agreement.

If you have opted not to purchase ongoing maintenance and support services for the Tyler Software, the
Maintenance and Support Agreement does not apply to you. Instead, you will only receive ongoing
maintenance and support on the Tyler Software on a time and materials basis. In addition, you will:

{i) receive the lowest priority under our Support Call Process;
ii) be required to purchase new releases of the Tyler Software, including fixes, enhancements and
patches; :

{iii) be charged our then-current rates for support services, or such other rates that we may
consider necessary to account for your lack of ongoing training on the Tyler Software;

{iv) be charged for a minimum of two (2} hours of support services for every support call; and

{v) not be granted access to the support website for the Tyler Software or the Tyler Community
Forum.



SECTION E — THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS

To the extent there are any Third Party Products identified in the Investment Summary, the Third Party Terms
will apply. You acknowledge that we may have embedded third-party functionality in the Tyler Software that is
not separately identified in the Investment Summary. If that third-party functionality is not separately identified
in the Investment Summary, the limited warranty applicable to the Tyler Software applies, and we further
warrant that the appropriate Developer has granted us the necessary license to (i) embed the unidentified third-
party functionality in the Tyler Software; and (i) sublicense it to you through our license grant to the Tyler
Software. You may receive maintenance and support on such embedded third-party software under the
Maintenance and Support Agreement.

SECTION F — INVOICING AND PAYMENT; INVOICE DISPUTES

1.

Invoicing and Payment. We will invoice you for all fees set forth in the Investment Summary per our
Invoicing and Payment Policy, subject to Section F(2).

Invoice Disputes. If you believe any delivered software or service does not conform to the warranties in this
Agreement, you will provide us with written notice within thirty (30) days of your receipt of the applicable
invoice, The written notice must contain reasonable detail of the issues you contend are in dispute so that
we can confirm the issue and respond to your notice with either a justification of the invoice, an adjustment
to the invoice, or a proposal addressing the issues presented in your notice. We will work with you as may
be necessary to develop an action plan that outlines reasonable steps to be taken by each of us to resolve
any issues presented in your notice. You may withhold payment of the amount(s) actually in dispute, and
only those amounts, until we complete the action items outlined in the plan. If we are unable to complete
the action items outlined in the action plan because of your failure to complete the items agreed to be done
by you, and you do not rectify that failure within a commercially reasonable timeframe after we have
notified you of it, then we may demand immediate full payment of the invoice. We reserve the right to
suspend delivery of all services, including maintenance and support services, if you fail to pay an invoice not
disputed as described above within fifteen (15) days of notice of our intent to do so.

SECTION G - TERMINATION

1.

For Cause. If you believe we have materially breached this Agreement, you will invoke the Dispute
Resolution clause set forth in Section I{3). You may terminate this Agreement for cause in the event we do
not cure, or create a mutually agreeable action plan to address, a material breach of this Agreement within
the forty-five (45) day window set forth in Section I(3). In the event of termination for cause, you will pay us
for all undisputed fees and expenses related to the software, products, and/or services you have received,
or we have incurred or delivered, prior to the effective date of termination. Disputed fees will be subject to
the dispute resolution process.

Lack of Appropriations. If you should not appropriate or otherwise receive funds sufficient to purchase,
lease, operate, or maintain the software or services set forth in this Agreement, you may unilaterally
terminate this Agreement effective on the final day of the fiscal year through which you have funding. You
will make every effort to give us at least thirty (30) days written notice prior to a termination for lack of
appropriations. In the event of termination due to a lack of appropriations, you will pay us for all
undisputed fees and expenses related to the software and/or services you have received, or we have
incurred or delivered, prior to the effective date of termination. Any disputed fees and expenses must have
been submitted to the Invoice Dispute process set forth in Section F(2) at the time of termination in order to
o tyler

technologres




be withheld at termination. You will not be entitled to a refund or offset of previously paid license and
other fees.

SECTION H — INDEMNIFICATION, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

1. Intellectual Property Infringement Indemnification.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

We will defend, indemnify and hold harmless you and your agents, officials, and employees from and
against any third party claim(s) that the Tyler Software or Documentation infringes that third party’s
patent, copyright, or trademark, or misappropriates its trade secrets, and will pay the amount of any
resulting adverse final judgment {or settlement to which we consent). You must notify us promptly in
writing of the claim and give us control over its defense or settlement. You agree to provide us with
reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in defending the claim at our expense.

Our obligations under this Section H(1) will not apply to the extent the claim or adverse final judgment is
based on your: {(a) use of a previous version of the Tyler Software and the claim would have been
avoided had you installed and used the current version of the Tyler Software, and we provided notice of
that requirement to you as well as a commercially reasonable timeframe within which to perform the
version upgrade; (b} combining the Tyler Software with any product or device not provided,
contemplated, or approved by us; (c) altering or modifying the Tyler Software, including any
modification by third parties at your direction or otherwise permitted by you; (d} use of the Tyler
Software in contradiction of this Agreement, including with non-licensed third parties; or (e} willful
infringement, including use of the Tyler Software after we notify you to discontinue use due to such a
claim.

If we receive information concerning an infringement or misappropriation claim related to the Tyler
Software, we may, at our expense and without obligation to do so, either: (a} procure for you the right
to continue its use; (b} modify it to make it non-infringing; or (c) replace it with a functional equivalent,
in which case you will stop running the allegedly infringing Tyler Software immediately. Alternatively,
we may decide to litigate the claim to judgment, in which case you may continue to use the Tyler
Software consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

If an infringement or misappropriation claim is fully litigated and your use of the Tyler Software is
enjoined by a court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to paying any adverse final judgment {or
settlement to which we consent), we will, at our option, either: (a) procure the right to continue its use;
(b) modify it to make it non-infringing; (c} replace it with a functional equivalent; or (d) terminate your
license and refund the license fees paid for the infringing Tyler Software, as depreciated on a straight-
line basis measured over seven (7) years from the Effective Date. We will pursue those options in the
order listed herein. This section provides your exclusive remedy for third party copyright, patent, or
trademark infringement and trade secret misappropriation claims.

2. General Indemnification.

2.1

We will defend, indemnify and hold harmless you and your agents, officials, and employees from and
against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses {including
reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for (a) personal injury or property damage to the extent caused by
our negligence or willful misconduct; or {b) our violation of a law applicable to our performance under
this Agreement. You must notify us promptly in writing of the claim and give us sole control over its
defense or settlement. You agree to provide us with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and

- tyler,



information in defending the claim at our expense.

2.2 To the extent permitted by applicable law, you will indemnify and hold harmless us and our agents,
officials, and employees from and against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages,
costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for personal injury or property
damage to the extent caused by your negligence or willful misconduct; or (b) your violation of a law
applicable to your performance under this Agreement. We will notify you promptly in writing of the
claim and will give you sole control over its defense or settlement. We agree to provide you with
reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in defending the claim at your expense,

DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE
MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, WE HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
AND CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY
IMPLIED WARRANTIES, DUTIES, OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, QUR
LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED ON A THEORY OF
CONTRACT OR TORT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY, SHALL BE LIMITED TO YOUR ACTUAL
DIRECT DAMAGES, NOT TO EXCEED {A) PRIOR TO FORMAL TRANSITION TO MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT,
THE TOTAL ONE-TIME FEES SET FORTH IN THE INVESTMENT SUMMARY; OR (B) AFTER FORMAL
TRANSITION TO MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT, THE THEN-CURRENT ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AND
SUPPORT FEE. THE PRICES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE SET IN RELIANCE UPON THIS LIMITATION
OF LIABILITY. THE FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS THAT ARE SUBJECT
TO SECTIONS H{1) AND H(2).

EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO
EVENT SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, EVEN IF WE HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

Insurance. During the course of performing services under this Agreement, we agree to maintain the
following levels of insurance: (a) Commercial General Liability of at least $1,000,000; (b} Automaobile Liability
of at least $1,000,000; (c) Professional Liability of at least $1,000,000; {d) Workers Compensation complying
with applicable statutory requirements; and (e) Excess/Umbrella Liability of at least $5,000,000. Upon your
written request, within a commercially reasonable timeframe after the Effective Date, we will provide you
with a certificate of insurance identifying you as a certificate holder. You may also request to be added as an
additional insured to our Commercial General Liability and Automaobile Liability policies, which will
automatically add you as an additional insured to our Excess/Umbrella Liability policy as well, That
additional insured status will be reflected on the certificate of insurance we provide you at your request
after the Effective Date. We agree that our insurance will be primary on claims for which we are responsible.
Copies of our insurance policies are only available in the event of a disputed or litigated claim.

SECTION | — GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.

Additional Products and Services. You may purchase additional Tyler products and services at the rates set
forth in the Investment Summary for twelve {12) months from the Effective Date, and thereafter at our
then-current list price, by executing a mutually agreed addendum or Tyler purchase order. If no rate is
provided in the Investment Summary, or those twelve {12) months have expired, you may purchase
additional Tyler products and services at our then-current list price, also by executing a mutually agreed

"% tyler

technologies




addendum or Tyler purchase order. The terms of this Agreement will control any such additional
purchase(s}), unless otherwise specifically provided in the addendum or Tyler purchase order.

Optional Items. Pricing for any listed optional products and services in the Investment Summary will be valid
for twelve (12) months from the Effective Date.

Dispute Resolution. You agree to provide us with written notice within forty-five (45) days of becoming
aware of a dispute. You agree to cooperate with us in trying to reasonably resolve all disputes, including, if
requested by either party, appointing a senior representative to meet and engage in good faith negotiations
with our appointed senior representative. Senior representatives will convene within forty-five (45) days of
the written dispute notice, uniess otherwise agreed. All meetings and discussions between senior
representatives will be deemed confidential settlement discussions not subject to disclosure under Federal
Rule of Evidence 408 or any similar applicable state rule. If we fail to resolve the dispute, prior to either
party seeking legal action, we will proceed to non-binding mediation before a single mediator jointly
selected by us. Nothing in this section shall prevent you or us from seeking necessary injunctive relief from a
federal or state court of competent jurisdiction in your domicile during the dispute resolution procedures.

Taxes. The fees in the Investment Summary do not include any taxes, including, without limitation, sales,
use, or excise tax. If you are a tax-exempt entity, you agree to provide us with a tax-exempt certificate.
Otherwise, we will pay all applicable taxes to the proper authorities and you will reimburse us for such taxes.
If you have a valid direct-pay permit, you agree to provide us with a copy. For clarity, we are responsible for
paying our income taxes, both federal and state, as applicable, arising from our performance of this
Agreement.

Nondiscrimination. We will not discriminate against any person employed or applying for employment
concerning the performance of our responsibilities under this Agreement. This discrimination prohibition
will apply to all matters of initial employment, tenure, and terms of employment, or otherwise with respect
to any matter directly or indirectly relating to employment concerning race, color, religion, national origin,
age, sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, disability that is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the
duties of a particular job or position, height, weight, marital status, or political affiliation. We will post,
where appropriate, all notices related to nondiscrimination as may be required by applicable law.

E-Verify. We have complied, and will comply, with the E-Verify procedures administered by the U.S.
Citizenship and Immigration Services Verification Division for all of our employees assigned to your project.

Subcontractors. We will not subcontract any services under this Agreement without your prior written
consent, not to be unreasonably withheld.

Binding Effect; No Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall be for the benefit of, either
your or our successor(s) or permitted assign(s). Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior
written consent of the other party; provided, however, your consent is not required for an assignment by us
as a result of a corporate reorganization, merger, acquisition, or purchase of substantially all of our assets.

Force Majeure. Except for your payment obligations, neither party will be liable for delays in performing its

obligations under this Agreement to the extent that the delay is caused by Force Majeure; provided,

however, that within ten {10) business days of the Force Majeure event, the party whose performance is

delayed provides the other party with written notice explaining the cause and extent thereof, as well as a

request for a reasonable time extension equal to the estimated duration of the Force Majeure event. Either
...:

4 tyler

technologies



10.

11.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

you or we may terminate this Agreement if a Force Majeure event suspends performance of scheduled tasks
for a period of forty-five {45) days or more. In the event of termination due to Force Majeure, you will pay
us for all undisputed fees and expenses related to the software and/or services you have received, or we
have incurred or delivered, prior to the effective date of termination. Any disputed fees and expenses must
have been submitted to the Invoice Dispute process set forth in Section F(2) at the time of termination in
order to be withheld at termination. You will not be entitled to a refund or offset of previously paid license
and other fees.

No Intended Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of you and us.
No third party will be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement, and no third party will have the right to make
any claim or assert any right under this Agreement. This provision does not affect the rights of third parties
under any Third Party Terms,

Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between you and us with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior agreements, understandings, and
representations, whether written, oral, expressed, implied, or statutory. Purchase orders submitted by you,
if any, are for your internal administrative purposes only, and the terms and conditions contained in those
purchase orders will have no force or effect. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment
signed by an authorized representative of each party.

Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement will be considered valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by faw.

No Waiver. In the event that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not strictly enforced by either
party, such non-enforcement will not act as or be deemed to act as a waiver or modification of this
Agreement, nor will such non-enforcement prevent such party from enforcing each and every term of this
Agreement thereafter.

Independent Contractor. We are an independent contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.

Notices. All notices or communications required or permitted as a part of this Agreement, such as notice of
an alleged material breach for a termination for cause or a dispute that must be submitted to dispute
resolution, must be in writing and will be deemed delivered upon the earlier of the following: (a) actual
receipt by the receiving party; (b} upon receipt by sender of a certified mail, return receipt signed by an
employee or agent of the receiving party; {c} upon receipt by sender of proof of email delivery; or (d) if not
actually received, five (5) days after deposit with the United States Postal Service authorized mail center
with proper postage (certified mail, return receipt requested) affixed and addressed to the other party at
the address set forth on the signature page hereto or such other address as the party may have designated
by proper notice. The consequences for the failure to receive a notice due to improper notification by the
intended receiving party of a change in address will be borne by the intended receiving party.

Client Lists. You agree that we may identify you by name in client lists, marketing presentations, and
promotional materials.

Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the course of
performance of this Agreement, may be exposed to confidential information and that disclosure of such
information could violate rights to private individuals and entities, including the parties. Confidential
information is nonpublic information that a reasonable person would believe to be confidential and
includes, without limitation, personal identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade
secrets, each as defined by applicable state law. Each party agrees that it will not disclose any confidential

i tyler

technologies



18.

18.

20.

21,

information of the other party and further agrees to take all reasonable and appropriate action to prevent
such disclosure by its employees or agents. The confidentiality covenants contained herein will survive the
termination or cancellation of this Agreement. This obligation of confidentiality will not apply to
information that:

{a} is in the public domain, either at the time of disclosure or afterwards, except by breach of this
Agreement by a party or its employees or agents;

(b} a party can establish by reasonable proof was in that party's possession at the time of initial
disclosure; or

{c) a party receives from a third party who has a right to disclose it to the receiving party.

If you receive a disclosure request under the open records laws or similar public disclosure laws governing
this Agreement, or a subpoena or legal discovery request, that includes a request or order to produce our
confidential information, you agree to give us prompt notice thereof. We reserve the right to protect our
confidential information to the maximum extent permissible under applicable law, including but not limited
to the filing of a request for a protective order.

Business License. In the event a local business license is required for us to perform services he reunder, you
will promptly notify us and provide us with the necessary paperwork and/or contact information so that we
may timely obtain such license.

Governing Law; Jurisdiction. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of the State of Texas, without regard to its rules on conflicts of law. Without limiting the terms of the
Dispute Resolution provision set forth in Section I(3), we agree that the state and federal courts in or serving
Williamson County, Texas shall have jurisdiction, as appropriate, over a dispute under this Agreement.

Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance. Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251
of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the
date Client receives the goods under the Agreement; (2) the date the performance of the service under the
contract is completed; or {3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or
services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by licensee in accordance with Texas
Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late
payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of licensee’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due.
The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate
published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fallon a
Saturday or Sunday.

Right to Audit. Tyler agrees that Client or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the expiration of
three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right to examine any and
all books, documents, papers and records of Tyler which are directly pertinent to the services to be
performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits; provided however, that any such audit
shall be subject to Tyler's current confidentiality and security policies. Tyler agrees that Client shall have
access during normal working hours to all necessary Tyler facilities and shall be provided adequate and
appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. Client
shall give Tyler reasonable advance notice, but no less than thirty (30) days advance written notice, of
intended audits. Client shall be responsible for the cost of any audit conducted under this section unless
otherwise agreed by the parties in writing pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

i tyler,
10



22. Multiple Originals and Authorized Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, any of
which will be independently treated as an original document. Any electronic, faxed, scanned, photocopied,
or similarly reproduced signature on this Agreement or any amendment hereto will be deemed an original
signature and will be fully enforceable as if an original signature. Each party represents to the other that the
signatory set forth below is duly authorized to bind that party to this Agreement.

23. Cooperative Procurement. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, we agree that this
Agreement may be used as a cooperative procurement vehicle by eligible jurisdictions. We reserve the right
to negotiate and customize the terms and conditions set forth herein, including but not limited to pricing, to
the scope and circumstances of that cooperative procurement.

24, Contract Documents. This Agreement includes the following exhibits:

Exhibit A Investment Summary

Exhibit B Invoicing and Payment Policy
Schedule 1: Business Travel Policy

Exhibit C Maintenance and Support Agreement

Schedule [1]: County and State Specific Maintenance and Support Services
Schedule [2]: Support Call Process

[Signature page follows)

e tyler
11



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, a duly authorized representative of each party has executed this Agreement as of the
date(s) set forth below.

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Williamson County, TX
By: e By:
N e
7 ;
Name: _r%#\r’rfﬂ-} C/tﬁ{t’_._ Name:

Title:_ ﬂ] {—'---meé En A LA r Title:
Date: i-! ;l"} / 2919 Date:

Address for Notices: Address for Notices:
Tyler Technologies, Inc. Williamson County, TX
One Tyler Drive
Yarmouth, ME 04096
Attention: Associate General Counsel

i tyler,

12



o

L)
W
oo tyler
) technologies
Exhibit A

Investment Summary

The following Investment Summary details the software, products, and services to be delivered by us to you
under the Agreement. This investment Summary is effective as of the Effective Date. Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Agreement.

Software & Services Maintenance & Support
cense

Software Licenses Feas Initiat Year| 2nd Year

Licensed Software

CivilServe {includes): $220,935 $23,198 $46,366
CivilView (Attorney Portal)
SalesWeb (Sheriff's Sales Portai)
CivilMobile Server

LE CIVIL TRADE IN CREDIT -$62,500
License Fee Subtotal: $158,435
Professional Services Total Fop |

Fixed Fee Services

Project Management (hours) $19,584
Data Conversion $50,000
Personalization & Report Customization (hours) $10,920
Site Visit {hours) $1,632
Business Analysis & Process Planning (hours) $13,056
Configuration & Deployment {hours} $2,912
Training {days) $22,500
Odyssey Integration $7.280
Services Subtolal: $127,884 $23,198 $46,396

[Embedded Third Party Software
None

Maintenance & Support
Total License Fees § 158435 Fees:
Professional Services $ 127,884 $46,396
Estimated Travel Expenses S5 8625
Total Contract Price $ 292,944
“*. tyler
o ytecmdogaes

13



o
o oe
oo tyler
o technologies
Exhibit B

Invoicing and Payment Policy

We will provide you with the software and services set forth in the Investment Summary. Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Agreement.

Invoicing: We will invoice you for the applicable license and services fees in the Investment Summary as set
forth below. Your rights to dispute any invoice are set forth in the Agreement.

1.

Tyler Software.

1.1 License Fees: License fees are invoiced upon the day we make the Tyler Software available for you
to download.

1.2 Maintenance and Support Fees: Year 1 maintenance and support fees are waived for six months
from the Effective Date. Subsequent maintenance and support fees are invoiced annually in advance
of each anniversary thereof. Your fees for each subsequent year will be set at our then-current
rates.

Professional Services. Implementation and other professional services (including training) are bifled and
invoiced on a fixed fee basis in accordance with the following milestones, at the rates set forth in the
Investment Summary.

Site visit 10%
Software installation 10%
Delivery of training database 40%
Training completed 30%
Use of Tyler Software in live production 10%

Third Party Products.

3.1 Third Party Software License Fees: License fees for Third Party Software, if any, are invoiced when
we make it available to you for downloading,

3.2 Third Party Software Maintenance: The first year maintenance fees for the Third Party Software, if
any, is invoiced when we make that Third Party Software available to you for downloading.

3.3 Third Party Hardware: Third Party Hardware costs, if any, are invoiced upon delivery.

Expenses. The travel expenses for the scope of services quoted shall not exceed $6,625. Travel expenses
for any additional scope will be billed as incurred and only in accordance with our then-current Business
Travel Policy. Our current Business Travel Policy is attached to this Exhibit B at Schedule 1. To the
extent we are invoicing you for travel expenses, copies of receipts will be provided upon request; we
reserve the right to charge you an administrative fee depending on the extent of your requests.
....
} s tyler



Receipts for miscellaneous items less than twenty-five dollars and mileage logs are not available.

Payment. Payment for undisputed invoices is due within forty-five (45) days of the invoice date. We prefer to
receive payments electronically. Our electronic payment information is:

Bank: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A,
420 Montgomery
San Francisco, CA 94104
ABA; 121000248
Account: 4124302472
Beneficiary: Tyler Technologies, Inc. — Operating

- tyler
15



'23.3 tyler

technologies

Exhibit B
Schedule 1
Business Travel Policy

1. Air Travel
A. Reservations & Tickets

Tyler’s Travel Management Company (TMC) will provide an employee with a direct flight within two
hours before or after the requested departure time, assuming that flight does not add more than three
hours to the employee’s total trip duration and the fare is within $100 (each way) of the lowest logical
fare. If a net savings of $200 or more (each way) is possible through a connecting flight that is within
two hours before or after the requested departure time and that does not add more than three hours to
the employee’s total trip duration, the connecting flight should be accepted.

Employees are encouraged to make advanced reservations to take full advantage of discount opportunities.
Employees should use all reasonahle efforts to make travel arrangements at least two (2) weeks in advance
of commitments. A seven day advance booking requirement is mandatory. When booking less than seven
days in advance, management approval will be required.

Except in the case of international travel where a segment of continuous air travel is scheduled to exceed six
hours, only economy or coach class seating is reimbursable.

B. Baggage Fees
Reimbursement of personal baggage charges are based on trip duration as follows:

s Up to five days = one checked bag
e Six or more days = two checked bags

Baggage fees for sports equipment are not reimbursable.
2. Ground Transportation
A. Private Automobile
Mileage Allowance — Business use of an employee’s private automobile will be reimbursed at the current
IRS allowable rate, plus out of pocket costs for tolls and parking. Mileage will be calculated by using the

employee's office as the starting and ending point, in compliance with IRS regulations. Employees who have
been designated a home office should calculate miles from their home,

16



B. Rental Car

Employees are authorized to rent cars only in conjunction with air travel when cost, convenience, and the
specific situation reasonably require their use. When renting a car for Tyler business, employees should
select a “mid-size” or “intermediate” car. “Full” size cars may be rented when three or more employees are
traveling together. Tyler carries leased vehicle coverage for business car rentals; additional insurance on
the rental agreement should be declined.

C. Public Transportation

Taxi or airport limousine services may be considered when traveling in and around cities or to and from
airports when less expensive means of transportation are unavailable or impractical. The actual fare plus a
reasonable tip (15-18%) are reimbursable. In the case of a free hotel shuttle to the airport, tips are included
in the per diem rates and will not be reimbursed separately.

D. Parking & Tolls

When parking at the airport, employees must use longer term parking areas that are measured in days as
opposed to hours. Park and fly options located near some airports may also be used. For extended trips
that would result in excessive parking charges, public transportation to/from the airport should be
considered. Tolls will be reimbursed when receipts are presented.

3. Lodging

Tyler's TMC will select hotel chains that are well established, reasonable in price, and conveniently located
in relation to the traveler's work assignment. Typical hotel chains include Courtyard, Fairfield Inn, Hampton
Inn, and Holiday Inn Express. If the employee has a discount rate with a local hotel, the hotel reservation
should note that discount and the employee should confirm the lower rate with the hotel upon arrival.
Employee memberships in travel clubs such as AAA should be noted in their travel profiles so that the
employee can take advantage of any lower club rates.

“No shows” or cancellation fees are not reimbursable if the employee does not comply with the hotel’s
cancellation policy.

Tips for maids and other hotel staff are included in the per diem rate and are not reimbursed separately.

4, Meals and Incidental Expenses

Employee meals and incidental expenses while on travel status are in accordance with the federal per diem
rates published by the General Services Administration. Incidental expenses include tips to maids, hotel
staff, and shuttle drivers and other minor travel expenses. Per diem rates are available at

www.gsa . gov/perdiem.

A. Overnight Travel

For each full day of travel, all three meals are reimbursable. Per diems on the first and last day of a trip are
o tyler
» technoiogies
17



governed as set forth below.

Departure Day

Depart before 12:00 noon Lunch and dinner

Depart after 12:00 noon Dinner

Return Day

Return before 12:00 noon Breakfast

Return between 12:00 noon & 7:00 p.m. Breakfast and lunch

Return after 7:00 p.m.* Breakfast, lunch and dinner

*7:00 p.m. is defined as direct travel time and does not include time taken to stop for dinner

The reimbursement rates for individual meals are calculated as a percentage of the full day per diem as

follows:
s PBreakfast 15%
* Lunch 25%
¢ Dinner 60%

B. Same Day Travel

Employees traveling at least 100 miles to a site and returning in the same day are eligible to claim lunch on
an expense report. Employees on same day travel status are eligible to claim dinner in the event they
return home after 7:00 p.m.*

*7:00 p.m. is defined as direct travel time and does not include time taken to stop for dinner
5. Internet Access — Hotels and Airports

Employees who travel may need to access their e-mail at night. Many hotels provide free high speed
internet access and Tyler employees are encouraged to use such hotels whenever possible. If an
employee’s hotel charges for internet access it is reimbursable up to $10.00 per day. Charges for internet
access at airports are not reimbursable,

o tyler.

18



o

-
-

. tyler

technologies

Exhibit C
Maintenance and Support Agreement

We will provide you with the following maintenance and support services for the Tyler Software. Capitalized
terms not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Agreement.

1. Term. We provide maintenance and support services on an annual basis. The initial term commences on
the Effective Date {unless another date is listed in the Investment Summary), and remains in effect for one
(1) year. The term will renew automatically for additional one (1) year terms unless terminated in writing by
either party at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the then-current term, unless the parties mutually
agree to some other notice period. We will adjust the term to match your first use of the Tyler Software in
live production if that event precedes the one (1) year anniversary of the Effective Date.

2. Maintenance and Support Fees. Your year 1 maintenance and support fees for the Tyler Software are listed
in the Investment Summary, and your payment obligations are set forth in the Invoicing and Payment Policy.
We reserve the right to suspend maintenance and support services if you fail to pay undisputed
maintenance and support fees within thirty (30) days of our written notice. We will reinstate maintenance
and support services only if you pay all past due maintenance and support fees, including all fees for the
periods during which services were suspended.

2.1 Your annual Maintenance and Support Fees may be further increased by agreement of both parties with
respect to (a) maintenance and support of specific custom enhancements requested by you. You will
have the option to accept or decline any such material functional enhancement that would result in an
increase in the Maintenance and Support Fees without affecting your entitlement to receive the
remainder of any Version Release in which such enhancement is offered.

3. Maintenance and Support Services. As long as you are not using the Help Desk as a substitute for our
training services on the Tyler Software, and you timely pay your maintenance and support fees, we will,
consistent with our then-current Support Call Process:

3.1 perform our maintenance and support obligations in a professional, good, and workmanlike manner,
consistent with industry standards, to resolve Defects in the Tyler Software (limited to the then-current
version and the immediately prior version); provided, however, that if you modify the Tyler Software
without our consent, our obligation to provide maintenance and support services on and warrant the
Tyler Software will be void;

3.2 provide telephone support during our established support hours;

3.3 maintain personnel that are sufficiently trained to be familiar with the Tyler Software and Third Party
Software, if any, in order to provide maintenance and support services;

3.4 provide you with a copy of all major and minor releases to the Tyler Software (including updates and

i tyler
19



5.

enhancements) along with the appropriate documentation that we make generally available without
additional charge to customers who have a maintenance and support agreement in effect; and

3.5 provide non-Defect resolution support of prior releases of the Tyler Software in accordance with our
then-current release life cycle policy.

Client Responsibilities. When you log a Defect according to the Support Call Process, you must provide
initially, or supplement within a commercially reasonable timeframe, encugh information that allows us to
confirm and/or recreate the Defect. We will use all reasonable efforts to perform any maintenance and
support services remotely. Currently, we use an industry standard third-party secure unattended
connectivity tool, such as Bomgar. Therefore, you agree to maintain a high-speed internet connection
capable of connecting us to your PCs and server(s). You agree to provide us with a login account and local
administrative privileges as we may reasonably require to perform remote services. We will, at our option,
use the secure connection to assist with proper diagnosis and resolution, subject to any reasonably
applicable security protocols. If we cannot resolve a support issue remotely, we may be required to provide
onsite services. In such event, we will be responsible for our travel expenses, unless it is determined that
the reason onsite support was required was a reason outside our control. Either way, you agree to provide
us with full and free access to the Tyler Software, working space, adequate facilities within a reasonable
distance from the equipment, and use of machines, attachments, features, or other equipment reasonahly
necessary for us to provide the maintenance and support services, all at no charge to us. We strongly
recommend that you also maintain a VPN for backup connectivity purposes. You acknowledge that, if you
require us to use some remote connection tool or method other than those described herein, our ability to
provide maintenance and support services as set forth herein and in the Support Call Process may be
limited, and we will be relieved of any commitments to the extent our inability to provide our maintenance
and support services is impacted by your connection requirements.

4.1 You agree to establish an internal help desk or its equivalent with subject matter experts who are
knowledgeable of the Licensed Software, your infrastructure, and business processes. You agree to
filter issues through your internal help desk to eliminate any non-application related issues prior to
notification to Tyler of such Defect, including, but not limited to your infrastructure, user training,
custom configurations, business processes, and data probiems not caused by the Licensed Software.
Any technical or other issue for which you request services, but which is not a Documented Defect, shall
be treated as a request for other services.

Hardware and Other Systems. If you are a self-hosted customer and, in the process of diagnosing a software
support issue, it is discovered that one of your peripheral systems or other software is the cause of the
issue, we will notify you so that you may contact the support agency for that peripheral system. We cannot
support or maintain Third Party Products except as expressly set forth in the Agreement.

In order for us to provide the highest level of software support, you bear the following responsibility related
to hardware and software:

{a) Allinfrastructure executing Tyler Software shall be managed by you;

{b) You will maintain support contracts for all non-Tyler software associated with Tyler Software (including
operating systems and database management systems, but excluding Third-Party Software, if any); and

{c} You will perform daily database backups and verify that those backups are successful.

g tyler

20



6. Other Excluded Services. Maintenance and support fees do not include fees for the following services: (a)
initial installation or implementation of the Tyler Software; (b) onsite maintenance and support {unless Tyler
cannot remotely correct a Defect in the Tyler Software, as set forth above); (c) application design; (d) other
consulting services; {e) maintenance and support of an operating system or hardware, unless you are a
hosted customer; {f) support outside our normal business hours as listed in our then-current Support Call
Process; or (g) installation, training services, or third party product costs related to a new release.
Requested maintenance and support services such as those outlined in this section will be billed to youon a
time and materials basis at our then current rates. You must request those services with at least one (1)
weeks’ advance notice.

7. Current Support Call Process. Qur current Support Call Process for the Tyler Software is attached to this
Exhibit C at Schedule 1.

o tyler,
21



1.

]
CYC )
oo tyler
technologies
Exhibit C
Schedule [1]

County and State Specific Maintenance and Support Services

Our county and state customers receive, as part of the annual maintenance and support services, the
following additional services:

If Odyssey is included as part of the Tyler Software, then a license to the Enterprise Custom Reporting
functionality made available therein and maintenance of that functionality.

Access to an online Learning Management System for end users to connect to remotely and to receive
ongoing training (or training for new end users). We make commercially reasonably efforts for such training
to be on then-current releases of the Tyler Software and to address all commercially available applications
of the Tyler Software.

For county customers, and statewide customers with annual maintenance and support fees of $1 million or
greater, we also make available legislative change support.

31

3.2

33

We will provide you with refinements, enhancements, or other modifications to the Tyler Software
as necessary to comply with enacted statewide legislation or administrative regulation applicable to
all our clients in your state pertaining to: (a) existing reports, exports, or data exchanges; (b) new
reports; {c) new data entry fields for state reporting; (d) new fee calculations; {e} new disposition
templates; (f) new sentence templates; or (g} new citation templates.

We will use commercially reasonable efforts to implement such changes within the time frames set
in the applicable legislation or regulation, but in any event within the next version release of the
Tyler Software.

For county customers, our responsibility for legislative change support in each annual term is limited
to the number of hours of analysis, post-release data migration, and testing services, at our then-
current hourly rates, equal to 20% of the total annual maintenance and support fees paid by all our
customers within your state during that term. For statewide customers with maintenance and
support fees over $1 million, our responsibility for legislative change support in each annual term is
limited to the number of hours of analysis, post release data migration, and testing services, at our
then-current hourly rates, equal to five percent (5%) of your then-current annual maintenance and
support fees if such fees are between $1 million and $1.5 million, and equal to ten percent (10%) if
your then-current maintenance and support fees are greater than $1.5 million.

3.4 You are responsible for any fees in excess of the applicable {imits under Section 3.3 above, as well as

the cost of any other services required to implement such changes, including, without limitation,

e tyler
22



training, configuration, project management, or data conversion from external sources. Prior to
performing any services under this Section that would result in fees to you, we will provide you with
a change order or addendum per Section C(3) of the Agreement.

3.5 Our legislative change support obligations do not apply to services required to support new duties
or responsibilities that expand upon the scope of your internal business purposes disclosed to us as
of the Effective Date.

4. For statewide customers, and county customers with annual maintenance and support fees of $1 million or
greater, we also make available a support account manager.

4.1 For statewide customers, we will assign you a named support account manager with dedication levels
based upon your then-current annual maintenance and support fees as follows. The support account
manager will dedicate a fixed percentage of its time, based on a standard 40-hour workweek.

Annual Maintenance and Support Fee Percentage
Dedication:

$150,000 to $399,999 20%

$400,000 to $700,000 40%

$700,001 to $999,999 60%

$1 million or more 100%

4.2 The support account manager’s responsibilities are limited to your production environment of the Tyler
Software.

4.3 The support account manager’s services must be utilized during the then-current annual maintenance
and support term, and do not carry over to any subsequent term.

4.4 The support account manager will maintain a reasonable understanding of your release level, technical
environment, unique business processes, the status of your custom requested product functionality, and
high priority support issues; Upon Operational Use of at least one court location, the support account
manager will meet with you to define a Strategic Account Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan shall define your
support goals and the support account manager’s responsibilities, consistent with the dedication level
set forth above, and which will include: (a) quarterly reviews of progress vs. Plan; (b} monitoring of
critical support incidents; (c} quarterly trend/pattern analysis of support incidents; (d} release and patch
planning; and (e} such other services that Tyler and you may agree upon consistent with the support
account manager's dedication level.

4.5 The support account manager will provide all services from our offices. Should you request the support
account manager to perform onsite services, you will be responsible for travel and other expenses
incurred in accordance with our Business Travel Policy.

4.6 For each annual maintenance and support term, your assigned support account manager will oversee
requested consulting, configuration, or training services for the Tyler Software. Fees for these Expanded
Support Services (ESS) will be calculated on a time and materials basis at our then-current rates, but we
will waive these fees for an amount equal to up 10% of your then-current annual maintenance and
support fee for the current term. Such services are subject to availability. You must request such

g tyler,
23



services with at least ninety {90) days’ written notice. Requested consulting, configuration or training
services over the allocated percentage will be billed at our then-current rates. We will provide you with
a change order or addendum per Section C{3) of the Agreement.

For statewide customers, we will provide you with vouchers to cover your registration for attendance at
Tyler’'s annual user conference based upon your then-current annual maintenance and support fees as
follows:

Annual Maintenance and Support Fee Number of Vouchers
Less than 5400,000 1
$400,001 to $700,000 2
$700,001 to $999,999 4
$1 miltion or more 6

i tyler

\echnologes
24



::“ tyler

technologies

Exhibit C
Schedule [2]
Support Call Process — C&J

Support Channels

Tyler Technologies, Inc. provides the following channels of software support for authorized users:

{1) On-line submission (portal) — for less urgent and functionality-based questions, users may create
unlimited support incidents through the customer relationship management portal available at the Tyler
Technologies website.

(2} Email - for less urgent situations, users may submit unlimited emails directly to the software support
group.

(3} Telephone — for urgent or complex questions, users receive toll-free, unlimited telephone software
support.

Support Resources
A number of additional resources are available to provide a comprehensive and complete support experience;

{1) Tyler Wehsite -~ www.tvlertech.com — for accessing client tools, documentation and other information
including support contact information.

{2) Tyler Community -~ an on-line resource, Tyler Community provides a venue for all Tyler clients with
current maintenance agreements to collaborate with one another, share bhest practices and resources,
and access documentation.

(3) Program Updates — where development activity is made available for client consumption

{4) Tyler University - online training courses on Tyler products

Support Availability

Tyler Technologies support is available during the local business hours of 8 AM to 5 PM (Monday - Friday) across
four US time zones {Pacific, Mountain, Central and Eastern}. Clients may receive coverage across these time
zones. Tyler's holiday schedule is outlined below. There will be no support coverage on these days.

New Year’s Day Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving
Independence Day Christmas Day

Labor Day

We will provide you with procedures for contacting support staff after normal business hours for reporting
Priority Level 1 Defects only. Upon receipt of such a Defect notification, we will use commercially reasonable
efforts to meet the resolution targets set forth below.

We will also make commercially reasonable efforts to be available for one pre-scheduted Saturday of each

g tyler,
25



month to assist your IT staff with applying patches and release upgrades, as well as consulting with them on
server maintenance and configuration of the Tyler Software environment.

Issue Handling

Incident Tracking
Every support incident is logged into Tyler's Customer Relationship Management System and given a unigue
incident number. This system tracks the history of each incident. The incident tracking number is used to track
and reference open issues when clients contact support. Clients may track incidents, using the incident number,
through the portal at Tyler's website or by calling software support directly.

Incident Priarity
Each incident is assigned a priority level which corresponds to the client’s needs and deadlines. Tyler and the
client will reasonably set the priority of the incident per the chart below. This chart is not intended to address
every type of support incident, and certain “characteristics” may or may not apply depending on whether the
Tyler software has been deployed on customer infrastructure or the Tyler cloud. The goal is to help guide the
client towards clearly understanding and communicating the importance of the issue and to describe generally
expected response and resolution targets in the production environment only.

References to a “confirmed support incident” mean that Tyler and the client have successfully validated the
reported Defect/support incident.

P[::’r;t[y Characteristics of Support Incident Resolution Targets
Support incident that causes (a) Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 1
complete application failure or incidents within one (1) business hour of receipt of the
application unavailability; (b) incident. Once the incident has been confirmed, Tyler
3 application failure or unavailability in shall use commercially reasonable efforts to resolve
Critical one or more of the client’s remote such support incidents or provide a circumvention
location; or {c) systemic loss of multiple | procedure within one {1) business day. For non-hosted
essential system functions. customers, Tyler's responsibility for lost or corrupted
data is limited to assisting the client in restoring its last
available database.
Support incident that causes (a) Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 2
repeated, consistent failure of essential | incidents within four {4) business hours of receipt of
functionality affecting more than one the incident. Once the incident has been confirmed,
) user or (b} loss or corruption of data. Tyler shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
High resolve such support incidents or provide a
circumvention procedure within ten (10) business
days. For non-hosted customers, Tyler's responsibility
for loss or corrupted data is limited to assisting the
client in restoring its last available database.

26



Priority

Characteristics of Support Incident

Resolution Targets

Level
Priority Level 1 incident with an existing | Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 3
circumvention procedure, or a Priority incidents within one (1) business day of receipt of the
Level 2 incident that affects only one incident. Once the incident has been confirmed, Tyler
user or for which there is an existing shall use commercially reasonable efforts to resolve
3 circumvention procedure. such support incidents without the need for a
. circumvention procedure with the next published
Medium . . .
maintenance update or service pack, which shall occur
at least quarterly. For non-hosted customers, Tyler's
responsibility for lost or corrupted data is limited to
assisting the client in restoring its last available
database.
Support incident that causes failure of | Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 4
4 non-essential functionality or a incidents within two (2) business days of receipt of the
Non- cosmetic or other issue that does not incident. Once the incident has been confirmed, Tyler
critical qualify as any other Priority Level. shall use commercially reasonable efforts to resolve

such support incidents, as well as cosmetic issues, with
a future version release.

Incident Escalation
Tyler Technologies’ software support consists of four types of personnel:
(1) Application Support Representatives: responsible for responding & resolving incidents
(2) Application Support Engineers: development staff responsible for providing technical assistance to the
support representatives
(3) Support Managers: responsible for the management of support teams
(4) Support Account Managers: responsible for day to day account management.

If Tyler is unable to resolve any priority level 1 or 2 defect as listed above or the priority of an issue has
elevated since initiation, you may escalate the incident to your Support Account Manager. Your Support
Account Manager will meet with you and any Tyler staff to establish a mutually agreeable plan for
addressing the defect.

Remote Support Tool
Some support calls may require further analysis of your database, processes or setup to diagnose a problem or
to assist with a guestion. Tyler will, at its discretion, use an industry-standard remote support tool. Tyler's
support team must have the ability to quickly connect to your system and view the site’s setup, diagnose
problems, or assist with screen navigation. More information about the remote support tool Tyler uses is
available upon request.

27

. tyler

technologies



tyler.

AMENDMENT

This amendment (“Amendment”) is effective as of the date of signature of the last party to sign as
indicated below (“Amendment Effective Date”), by and between Tyler Technologies, Inc., a Delaware
corporation with offices at 5101 Tennyson Parkway, Plano, TX 75024 (“Tyler”) and Williamson County,
Texas (“Client”).

WHEREAS, Tyler and the Client are parties to a License and Services Agreement with an effective date of
February 5, 2019 (the “Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Tyler and Client now desire to amend the Agreement as further set forth below.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained, as of the Amendment
Effective Date, Tyler and the Client agree as follows:

1. Allreferences to Sourcewell Contract ID 110515-TTI are hereby amended to refer to Sourcewell
Contract ID 060624-TTI.

2. The following language is hereby added to the Agreement:

WHEREAS, Client is a member of Sourcewell (formerly known as National Joint Powers Alliance)
(“Sourcewell”) under member number 9076;

WHEREAS, Tyler participated in the competitive bid process in response to Sourcewell RFP
#060624 by submitting a proposal, on which Sourcewell awarded Tyler a Sourcewell contract,
numbered 060624-TTI (hereinafter, the “Sourcewell Contract”);

WHEREAS, documentation of the Sourcewell competitive bid process, as well as Tyler’s contract
with and pricing information for Sourcewell is available at https://www.sourcewell-
mn.gov/cooperative-purchasing/060624-tti; and

WHEREAS Client desires to purchase off the Sourcewell contract to procure civil process
software functionality from Tyler, which Tyler agrees to deliver pursuant to the Sourcewell
Contract and under the terms and conditions set forth below.

3. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Agreement. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in

full force and effect.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, a duly authorized representative of each party has executed this Amendment as
of the date of signature of the last party to sign as indicated below.

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Williamson County, TX

By: WW By:

Title: Sr. Corporate Attorney Title:
Date: 2/11/25 Date:




o tyler

Empowering people who serve the public®

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE
PROFORMA

Order No.

Remittance

Tyler Technologies, Inc.
(FEIN 75-2303920)
P.O. Box 203556
Dallas, TX 75320-3556
Questions

Tyler Technologies - Courts & Justice
Phone: 1-800-772-2260 Press 2, then 3
Fax: 1-866-673-3274

Fmail- armtulertech com

Company Date Page

020 03/28/2024 10f1

To: WILLIAMSON CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE Ship To: WILLIAMSON COUNTY
508 SOUTH ROCK STREET P.O. BOX 647
GEORGETOWN, TX 78626 JARRELL, TX 78626
United States United States
Customer Grp/No. Customer PO# Payment Terms Currency Code Ship Via Salesperson Cd
1 41563 170587 Net 30 usD ELEC
No. Item/ Description/ Comments Quantity U/M Unit Price Total Cost
Contract No.:Sourcewell 060624-TTI
1 Renewal: 1 EA 57,5622.73 57,5622.73

CivilServe Annual Support

Cycle Start: 02/05/2025, End: 02/04/2026; Term: 12 months

Does not include any applicable taxes

Order Total: | 57,522.73 I

Comments:

Upon acceptance please email vour purchase order to PO@tvlertech.com




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Approval of Service Contract through Contract #2025134 for SWRP Cricket Field Fencing with Falkenberg
Construction Company Inc. for Parks and Recreation

Submitted For: Joy Simonton
Department: Purchasing

Submitted By: Vickie Johnson, Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Agenda Iltem

Information

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Service Contract #2025134 with Falkenberg
Construction Company Inc. for the SWRP Cricket Field Fencing pursuant to BuyBoard Contract #728-24 at the
Southwest Regional Park for Parks and Recreation in the amount of $70,405.17 and authorize execution of this

agreement.

Background

This Service Contract #2025134 is attached between Williamson County and Falkenberg Construction Company
Inc. for the SWRP Cricket Field Fencing through BuyBoard Contract # 728-24 at the Southwest Regional Park,
located at 3005 Co. Rd. 175, Leander, TX 78641. Funding Source is 01.0100.3103.004509. The Origination ID
#2074 and the Point of Contact is Emsud Horozovic.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (|

Acct No. [ Description [ Amount |

2025134 Service Contract Falkenberg

Form 1295 Falkenberg

Attachments

Inbox

Purchasing (Originator)

County Judge Exec Asst.

Form Started By: Vickie Johnson
Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025

Form Review

Reviewed By Date
Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 12:37 PM
Delia Colon 02/19/2025 02:13 PM

Started On: 02/11/2025 03:49 PM




Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

WILLIAMSON COUNTY

SERVICE CONTRACT
FALKENBERG CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.
(Proposal No. 511.25 R1)

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures of public
funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes, invoices or any other
forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or quasicontractual terms are subject to
the extent authorized by Texas law, including but not limited to the Texas Constitution, the
Texas Government Code, the Texas Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation
Code, the Texas Health & Safety Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General
relevant to local governmental entities.

THIS SERVICES CONTRACT (hereinafter “Contract”) is made and entered into by and
between Williamson County, Texas (“County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting
herein by and through its governing body, and Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc. (hereinafter
“Service Provider”), both of which are referred to herein as the parties. The County agrees to engage
Service Provider as an independent contractor, to provide certain services described herein pursuant
to the following terms, conditions, and restrictions:

L

Services: Service Provider shall provide services as an independent contractor pursuant
to terms and policies of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Service Provider expressly
acknowledges that he, she, or it is not an employee of the County. The service includes the work
described in the attached Proposal No. 511.25 R1 being marked as Exhibit “A,” which is
incorporated herein.

Should the County choose to add services in addition to those described in Exhibit “A,” such
additional services shall be described in a separate written amendment to this Contract wherein the
additional services shall be described, and the parties shall set forth the amount of compensation
to be paid by the County for the additional services. Service Provider shall not begin any additional
services and the County shall not be obligated to pay for any additional services unless a written
amendment to this Contract has been signed by both parties.

Service Provider represents that Service Provider (including Service Provider’s agents,
employees, volunteers, and subcontractors, as applicable) possess all certifications, licenses,
inspections, and permits required by law to carry out the services and work described in Exhibit
"A.” The Service Provider shall, upon written (including electronic) request, provide proof of valid
licensure.

[



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

II.

Effective Date and Term: This Contract shall be in full force and effect as of the date of
the last party’s execution below and shall continue until the Project Completion Date or when
terminated pursuant to this Contract, whichever event occurs first. The Project Completion Date is
defined as the date by which all services and obligations outlined in Exhibit “A” shall be fully
performed and delivered to the satisfaction of the County. The parties acknowledge and agree that the
Project Completion Date is initially set to be on or before April 01 2025, however this date may
be amended at the sole discretion of the County. Upon successful completion of the services as
described in Exhibit “A”, this contract shall automatically terminate without further obligation
from either party, except as otherwise expressly provided herein.

I11.

Consideration and Compensation: Service Provider will be compensated based on a
fixed sum as set out in Exhibit“A”. The not-to-exceed amount shall be Seventy Thousand Four
Hundred Five Dollars and Seventeen Cents ($70,405.17).

Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas
Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date
the County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under
the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for
the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by the County in
accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest
that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of the County’s fiscal year
in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the
sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first
day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

The County is a political subdivision under the laws of the State of Texas and claims
exemption from sales and use taxes under Tex. Tax Code Ann. §151.309, as amended. The County
agrees to provide exemption certificates to Service Provider upon request. Likewise, the County is
neither liable for any taxes, charges, or fees assessed against Service Provider for the supplies or
products provided or any Services rendered.

IV.

Insurance: Service Provider shall provide and maintain, until the services covered in this
Contract is completed and accepted by the County, the minimum insurance coverage in the
minimum amounts as described below. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis by
companies authorized and admitted to do business in the State of Texas and rated A- or better by
A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable to the County and name the County as an additional
insured.

Type of Coverage Limits of Liability

a. Worker's Compensation Statutory



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

b. Employer's Liability

Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit

c. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations and contractual liability
insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages in the following amounts:

COVERAGE PER PERSONPER OCCURRENCE
Comprehensive
General Liability $1,000,000  $1,000,000

(including premises, completed operations and contractual)

Aggregate policy limits: $2,000,000

d. Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering owned, hired, leased
and non-owned vehicles):

COVERAGE PER PERSONPER OCCURRENCE

Bodily injury $1,000,000 $1,000,000

(including death)

Property damage $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Aggregate policy limits No aggregate limit

Service Provider, as an independent contractor, meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor” under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, and
must provide its employees, agents, and sub-subcontractors worker’s compensation coverage.
Contactor shall not be entitled to worker’s compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by the County.

Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide the County with insurance
certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this Contract.

V.

No Agency Relationship & Indemnification: It is understood and agreed that Service
Provider shall not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with the County, nor shall
Service Provider hold itself out as an agent or official representative of the County. Service
Provider shall be considered an independent contractor for the purpose of this Contract and shall
in no manner incur any expense or liability on behalf of the County other than what may be
expressly allowed under this Contract. The County will not be liable for any loss, cost, expense,
or damage, whether indirect, incidental, punitive, exemplary, consequential of any kind
whatsoever for any acts by Service Provider or failure to act relating to the services being
provided.




Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

VL

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND
DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE
RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS
NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL
INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY
SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE,
WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO HAVE OCCURRED ON THE WORK SITE OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY
INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY
WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR
CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY. THIS
INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES, COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS
PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY
BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS.

INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY,
DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE
COUNTY, AND THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS,
OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST
CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE
PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT
CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER OR
ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS
THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS
OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.

VII.

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in this Contract will be deemed
to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of the County, the Williamson County
Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge.

Additionally, the parties agree that under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas,
the County cannot enter into an agreement whereby the County agrees to indemnify or hold
harmless another party; therefore, all references of any kind to County defending, indemnifying,
holding, or saving harmless Service Provider for any reason are hereby deleted.

VIIIL.
Compliance With All Laws: Service Provider agrees and will comply with all local, state,

or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered. Any alterations, additions, or
deletions to the terms of the Contract that are required by changes in federal, state, or local law or



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

regulations are automatically incorporated into the Contract without written amendment hereto and
shall become effective on the date designed by such law or by regulation.

IX.
Termination: This Contract may be terminated at any time at the option of either party,
without future or prospective liability for performance, upon giving thirty (30) days written notice
thereof.

X.

Venue and Applicable Law: Venue of this Contract shall be Williamson County, Texas,
and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions.

XI.

Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for
any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality,
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision in this Contract and this Contract shall be
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in it.

XII.

Right to Audit: Service Provider agrees that the County or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Contract,
have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and
records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this
Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Service
Provider agrees that the County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary
Service Provider facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate workspace in order to
conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. The County shall give Service
Provider reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

XIII.

Good Faith Clause: Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the performance of this
Contract.

XIV.

No Assignment: Service Provider may not assign this Contract.

XV.

Confidentiality: Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a governmental setting
for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter any unauthorized areas or access



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

confidential information and he or she will not disclose any information to unauthorized third
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

XVI.
Foreign Terrorist Organizations: Service Provider represents and warrants that it is not

engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section
2252.152 of the Texas Government Code.

XVIIL

Public Information: Service Provider understands that County will comply with the Texas
Public information Act as interpreted by judicial ruling and opinions of the Attorney General of the
State of Texas. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with this Purchase
Order or any resulting contract may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to the Texas Public
Information Act.

XVIII.

Damage to County Property: Service Provider shall be liable for all damage to county-
owned, leased, or occupied property and equipment caused by Service Provider and its employees,
agents, subcontractors, and suppliers, including any delivery, or transporting company, in
connection with any performance pursuant to this Contract. Service Provider shall notify County in
writing of any such damage within one (1) calendar day.

XIX.

Media Releases: Service Provider shall not use County’s name, logo, or other likeness in
any press release, marketing materials, or other announcement without the County’s prior written
approval.

XX.

Authorized Expenses: In the event County authorizes, in advance and in writing,
reimbursement of non-labor expenses related to the services subject of this Contract, County will
pay such actual non-labor expenses in strict accordance with the Williamson County Vendor
Reimbursement Policy (as amended), which is incorporated into and made a part of this Contract
by reference. The Williamson County Vendor Reimbursement Policy can be found at:
WilliamsonCountyVendorReimbursementPolicyMarch2023.pdf (wilco.org). Invoices requesting
reimbursement for authorized non-labor expenses must be accompanied by copies of the provider’s
invoice and clearly set forth the actual cost of the expenses, without markup.

XXI.

Entire Contract & Incorporated Documents: Conflicting Terms: This Contract
constitutes the entire Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than

by a written instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated into this



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

Contract include the following:

A. As described in the attached Proposal, and being marked Exhibit “A”;
B. The cooperative purchasing contract (BuyBoard Contract # 728-24);
C. Insurance certificates evidencing coverages required herein above and
D. Any Amendments agreed to by both parties.

The County reserves the right and sole discretion to determine the controlling provisions
where there is any conflict between the terms of this Contract and the terms of any other purchase

order(s), contract(s) or any document attached hereto as exhibits relating to the services and goods
subject of this Contract.

XXII.

County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract: The presiding officer

of the County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this instrument by order duly recorded
may execute this Contract on behalf of the County.

WITNESS that this Contract shall be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below.

WILLIAMSON COUNTY: FALKENBERG CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.:

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature

John E. Castro

County Judge/Presiding Officer Printed Name

b
Date: , 20 Date: Fe , 6 20 25




Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

Exhibit “A”
Quote/Proposal



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

falkenberg

CONSTRUCTION CO.,INC.
2435 109TH ST. | GRAND PRAIRIE, TX. 75050
1.214-324-4779 FALKENBERGCONSTRUCTION.COM

February 4, 2025

Williamson County Parks
Russell Fishbeck

219 Perry Mayfield

Leander, TX 78641

Proposal No.: _

Reference: SWRP Cricket Field Fence
Contract No.: Buy Board 728-24
Attention: Russell Fishbeck

We propose to furnish labor, material and equipment for the SWRP Cricket Field Fence project for the sum

as follows:

| Base Proposal Breakdown

RS Means Cost $18,852.70
Coefficient 0.98 $377.05
Sub Total $18,475.65
Bond 0.0% $0.00
PROPOSAL TOTAL $18,475.65

Eighteen Thousand Four Hundred Seventy-Five and 65/100

Dollars.

|. Documents:
A. Drawing Numbers:NA
B. Specifications: N/A

Il. Base Scope of Work:
2-20x20x20 10’ tall back stop
- Cross bracing at &'
- Tied in to fence with the 4' gates on either side
- Daily Clean Up
- Final Clean Up



Docusign Envelope ID: 3AE98861-DC44-4473-9DC9-5B718915A948

| Alternate #1 Breakdown A
RS Means Cost $51,237.07

Coefficient 0.98 $1,024.74
Sub Total $50,212.33

Bond 2.5% $1,255.31

ALTERNATE # 1 TOTAL $51,467.64
Fifty-One Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Seven and 64/100 Dollars

I. Documents:

A. Drawing Numbers:NA
B. Specifications: N/A

Il. Scope of Work:
Alternate # 1: ~1200LF of 4'galvanized chain-link at New Cricket Fields & 200LF of 4' galvanized
chain-link at Old Cricket Fields

-4-4' walk gates at center

- 1- double €' drive gate

- 2 3/8 sch 40 terminal post

- 2" sch 20 line post

-1 5/8" top rail

-'2-100' wings added to existing backstop at the old cricket field

-4' galvanized chain link

- Daily Clean Up

- Final Clean Up
| Total Proposal Breakdown |
RS Means Cost $70,089.77
Coefficient 0.98 $1,401.80
Sub Total $68,687.97
Bond 2.5% $1,717.20
PROPOSAL TOTAL $70,405.17
Seventy Thousand Four Hundred Five and 17/100 Dollars
lll. Exclusions:

Sales tax, overtime, permit fees

Executing any alternates without executing the base bid
MEP Work

Any work outside of pre-discussed scope

Daily supervision of jobsite

IV. Clarifications:
This Proposal will remain in effect for a period of (30) Days

Thank you for the opportunity to bid this and any future projects.
Sincerely,

Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc.

Wl —

Kady Williams
Construction Manager



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES FOrRM 1295

lofl

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY

Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:

of business. 2025-1266029

Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc

Grand Prairie, TX United States Date Filed:
Z Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/06/2025

being filed.

Williamson County Facilities Management Date Acknowledged:

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to he provided under the contract.
511-25 R1
SWRP Cricket Field Fence

i Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
Arnold, Chris Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Castro, John Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Gomez, Moses Grand Prairie, TX United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. D

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

. and my date of birth is __

(street) i (slale) (zip code) (counlry)

My name is

My address is

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in Da_\\as County, State of |E X( EQ ,on the\" _ | dayof M_ 20%

) { % (month) (year)

Signature of a}uﬁnz agent of contracting business entity
{Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethlcs.state.tx.V Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2




CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1266044
Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc.
Grand Prairie, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/06/2025
being filed.
Williamson County Facilities Management Date Acknowledged:
02/11/2025

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

510.25
SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
Castro, John Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Gomez, Moses Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Arnold, Chris Grand Prairie, TX United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is , and my date of birth is

My address is , ) ) )
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20 .
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22,

Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Approval of Construction Contract through Contract #2025135 for SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel with
Falkenberg Construction Company Inc. for Parks and Recreation

Submitted For: Joy Simonton
Department: Purchasing

Submitted By: Vickie Johnson, Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Agenda Iltem

Information

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the Construction Contract #2025135 with
Falkenberg Construction Company Inc. for the SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel pursuant to BuyBoard
Contract #728-24 at the Southwest Regional Park for Parks and Recreation in the amount of $129,645.26 and

authorize execution of this agreement.

Background

This Construction Contract #2025135 attached is between Williamson County and Falkenberg Construction
Company Inc. for the SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel through BuyBoard Contract # 728-24 at the
Southwest Regional Park, located at 3005 Co. Rd. 175, Leander, TX 78641. Funding Source is
01.0100.3103.004509. The Origination ID #2072 and the Point of Contact is Emsud Horozovic.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (|

Acct No. [ Description [ Amount |

Attachments

2025135 Construction Contract Falkenberg

1295 Form Falkenberg Construction

Inbox

Purchasing (Originator)

County Judge Exec Asst.

Form Started By: Vickie Johnson
Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025

Form Review

Reviewed By Date
Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 12:16 PM
Delia Colon 02/19/2025 02:11 PM

Started On: 02/11/2025 03:39 PM




Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

Agreement for Construction Services
(Cooperative Contract - Buy Board # 728-24)

This Agreement (“Agreement’) between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the
State of Texas (“Owner”) and Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc. (“Contractor”) is entered into in
accordance with the following terms and conditions:

ARTICLE 1 SCOPE OF WORK: The Owner desires to retain Contractor for the construction
of the SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel (hereinafter called the “Project”). The Contractor shall
have the overall responsibility for and shall provide complete construction services and furnish all
materials, equipment, tools and labor as necessary or reasonably inferable to complete the Project, or
any phase of the Project, in accordance with the Owner’s requirements and the terms of this
Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Work”).

ARTICLE 2 CONTRACT PRICE: Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor, for the satisfactory
performance of the Work, the sum of One Hundred Twenty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred
Forty-Five Dollars and Twenty-Six Cents ($129.,645.26) in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 3 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS: The Work shall be performed pursuant to and
in accordance with the plans and specifications attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, as well as any
revisions made thereto.

ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT TIME:

4.1 Contractor shall commence the Work upon instruction to do so from the Owner and shall
achieve Substantial Completion within Twenty_(20) calendar days from the date the Work is
commenced; provided, however, Owner may extend said time period in the event bad weather
affects the progress of the Work. Unless otherwise specified in writing, Contractor shall achieve
Final Completion within Ten (10) calendar days of Substantial Completion. Owner shall
determine when the Project has been fully and finally completed to its satisfaction. The time set
forth for completion of the work is an essential element of the Agreement.

4.2 Liquidated Damages.
Contractor acknowledges and recognizes that Owner is entitled to full and beneficial occupancy

and use of the completed Work following expiration of the Contract Time and that Owner has
entered into, or will enter into, binding agreements upon Contractor's achieving Substantial

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 1



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

Completion of the Work within the Contract Time. Contractor further acknowledges and agrees
that if Contractor fails to complete substantially or cause the Substantial Completion of any Phase
of the Work within the Contract Time, Owner will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as
a result of such failure. In the cases of missed scheduled events, which incur exact losses of
revenue and exact expenses for fees and other cancellation costs, Contractor shall be responsible
for the exact amount of damages sustained by Owner. In other cases, the exact amount of such
damages will be extremely difficult to ascertain. Therefore, Owner and Contractor agree as set
forth below:

4.2.1 Subject to the other terms and conditions herein, if Substantial Completion is not achieved
by the date specified above or by such date to which the Contract Time may be extended,
the Contract Price shall be reduced by One Hundred Dollars ($100) per calendar day as
liquidated damages and not as a penalty, until the date of Substantial Completion. Force
majeure shall apply relative to both rain/snow delays (acts of nature) and/or supply delays
over which Contractor has no control, and such force majeure delays shall not be subject
to such reduction of the Contract Price.

4.2.2 Owner may deduct liquidated damages described herein from any unpaid amounts then or
thereafter due Contractor under this Agreement. Any liquidated damages not so deducted
from any unpaid amounts due Contractor shall be payable by Contractor to Owner at the
demand of Owner, together with the interest from the date of the demand at a rate equal to
the prime interest rate as published by the Wall Street Journal on the first (1%%) business
day after such amounts are demanded.

4.2.3 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if Owner is unable to recover
any portion of liquidated damages in accordance with the terms and conditions herein
because it is found to be unenforceable or invalid as a penalty or otherwise, then, Owner
shall be entitled to recover from Contractor all of Owner's actual damages in connection
with the failure by Contractor to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work within the
Contract Time, including, without limitation, direct, indirect, or consequential damages.

ARTICLE 5 PAYMENT:

5.1 Contractor shall receive one lump sum payment of the Contract Price upon completion of
the Project.

ARTICLE 6 CONTRACTOR’S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND COVENANTS:

6.1 Contractor shall render, diligently and competently in accordance with the highest
standards used in the profession, all Contractor services which shall be necessary or advisable for
the expeditious, economical and satisfactory completion of the Project. Contractor agrees to use
its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations and to further the interests
of Owner in accordance with Owner’s requirements and procedures.

6.2 Contractor’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason
of any approval by the Owner nor shall the Contractor be released from any liability by reason of

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 2



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

such approval by the Owner, it being understood that the Owner at all times is ultimately relying
upon the Contractor’s skill and knowledge in performing the services required hereunder.

6.3  Contractor is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions
and programs in connection with the Work. The safety program shall comply with all applicable
requirements of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all other applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations.

6.4 Contractor shall be responsible for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences
and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work. The Contractor shall keep the
Owner informed of the progress and quality of the Work.

6.5  Insurance. Contractor shall carry insurance in the types and amounts indicated below for
the duration of the Agreement, which shall include items owned by Owner in the care, custody
and control of Contractor prior to and during construction. Contractor must also complete and file
the declaration pages from the insurance policies with Owner whenever a previously identified
policy period expires during the term of the Agreement, as proof of continuing coverage.
Contractor shall update all expired policies prior to submission of any payment requests hereunder.
Failure to update policies shall be reason for payment to be withheld until evidence for renewal is
provided to the Owner. If the Contractor fails to obtain, maintain or renew any insurance required
by this Agreement, the Owner may, among other remedies available hereunder or at law, obtain
insurance coverage directly and recover the cost of that insurance from the Contractor or declare
this Agreement void if the Contractor does not remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt
of notice of breach from the Owner. All policies of insurance provided by the Contractor must
comply with the requirements set forth herein, the Agreement and the laws of the State of Texas.

6.5.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain, until the Work covered in the Agreement is
completed and accepted by the Owner, the minimum insurance coverages in the minimum
amounts as described below.

Type of Coverage Limits of Liability

A Worker's Compensation Statutory

2 Employer's Liability

Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit
3 Commercial general liability including completed operations and contractual
liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages in the following
amounts:
COVERAGE PER OCCURRENCE
Commercial

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 3



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

General Liability $1,000,000
(including premises,

completed operations

and contractual)

Aggregate policy limits: $2,000,000

4 Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering owned, hired,
leased and non-owned vehicles):

COVERAGE PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE
Bodily injury

(including death) $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Property damage $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Aggregate policy limits No aggregate limit

5 Damage to Rented Property/Premises (Ea. Occurrence): ~ $100,000

.6 Builder’s Risk Insurance (all-risks)

An all-risk policy, in the amount equal at all times to 100% of the Contract Price.
The policy shall include coverage for loss or damage caused by certified acts of
terrorism as defined in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act. The policy shall be issued
in the name of the Contractor and shall name its Subcontractors as additional
insureds. The Owner shall be named as a loss payee on the policy. The builders
risk policy shall have endorsements as follow:

a.

This insurance shall be specific as to coverage and not considered as
contributing insurance with any permanent insurance maintained on the present
premises. If off-site storage is permitted, coverage shall include transit and
storage in an amount sufficient to protect property being transported or stored.

For renovation projects and or portions of work contained within an existing
structure, the Owner waives subrogation for damage by fire to existing building
structure(s), if the Builder’s Risk Policy has been endorsed to include coverage
for existing building structure(s) in the amount described in the Special
Conditions. However, Contractor shall not be required to obtain such an
endorsement unless specifically required by the Special Conditions if any. The
aforementioned waiver of subrogation shall not be effective unless such
endorsement is obtained.

6. Flood insurance when specified in Supplementary General Conditions or Special
Conditions.

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 4



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

7

Umbrella coverage in the amount of not less than $5,000,000.

6.5.2 Workers' Compensation Insurance Coverage:

1.

Definitions:

(a) Certificate of coverage ("certificate") - A copy of a certificate of insurance,
a certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the Texas Workers' Compensation
Commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82, TWCC-83, or
TWCC-84), showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the
person's or entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of
the Project.

(b) Duration of the Project - includes the time from the beginning of the work
on the Project until the Contractor's/person's work on the Project has been
completed and accepted by the Owner.

(©) Coverage — Workers’ compensation insurance meeting the statutory
requirements of the Texas Labor Code, §401.011(44).

(d) Persons providing services on the Project ("subcontractor") - includes all
persons or entities performing all or part of the services the Contractor has
undertaken to perform on the Project, regardless of whether that person contracted
directly with the Contractor and regardless of whether that person has employees.
This includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractors, leasing
companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or
employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the Project.
"Services" include, without limitation, providing, hauling, or delivering equipment
or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service related to a project.
"Services" does not include activities unrelated to the Project, such as
food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.

The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification
codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the
statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, §401.011(44) for all employees of the
Contractor providing services on the Project, for the duration of the Project.

The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage prior to execution of the
Agreement/Contract, and in no event later than ten (10) days from Notice of Award.
Failure to provide the insurance in a timely fashion may result in loss of Contractor’s
bid bond.

If the coverage period shown on the Contractor’s current certificate of coverage ends
during the duration of the Project, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage
period, file a new certificate of coverage with the Owner showing that coverage has
been extended.

The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and
provide to the Owner:

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 5



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

(a.)  acertificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the Project,
so the Owner will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all
persons providing services on the Project; and

(b.)  no later than seven days after receipt by the Contractor, a new certificate of
coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the
current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the Project.

6. The Contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the
Project and for one year thereafter.

7. The Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing by certified mail or personal delivery,
within 10 days after the Contractor knew or should have known, of any change that
materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the
Project.

8. The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner
prescribed by the Texas Workers’ Compensation Commission, informing all persons
providing services on the Project that they are required to be covered, and stating how
a person may verify coverage and report lack of coverage.

9. The Contractor shall contractually require each person with who it contracts to provide
services on a project, to:

(a) provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and
payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory
requirements of Texas labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for all of its employees
providing services on the Project, for the duration of the Project;

(b)  provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the
Project, a certificate of coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all
employees of the person providing services on the Project, for the duration of the
Project;

(c) provide the Contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a new
certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period
shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the Project;
(d) obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide to the

Contractor:
1. a certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work
on the Project; and
il. a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior

to the end of the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the
current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the Project;

(e) retain all required certificate of coverage on file for the duration of the
Project and for one year thereafter;

63) notify the Owner in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10
days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 6



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

6.5.6

6.5.7

6.5.8

affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the Project;
and

(2) contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to perform as
required by paragraphs (a)-(g), with the certificates of coverage to be provided to
the person for whom they are providing services.

10. By signing the Agreement/Contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate
of coverage, the Contractor is representing to the Owner that all employees of the
Contractor who will provide services on the Project will be covered by workers'
compensation coverage for the duration of the Project, that the coverage will be based
on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage
agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-
insured, with the Commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation. Providing false
or misleading information may subject the Contractor to administrative penalties,
criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil actions.

11. The Contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract
by the Contractor which entitles the Owner to declare the Agreement/Contract void if
the Contractor does not remedy the breach within ten days after receipt of notice of
breach from the Owner.

If insurance policies are not written for the amounts specified herein, Contractor shall carry
Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance for any differences in amounts specified. If Excess
Liability Insurance is provided, it shall follow the form of primary coverage.

Insurance coverage required hereunder shall be written on an occurrence basis by
companies authorized and admitted to do business in the State of Texas and rated A- or
better by A.M. Best Company, or otherwise acceptable to Owner.

The Owner (“Williamson County, Texas”), its officials, employees and volunteers
shall be named as an additional insured on all required policies. These insurance
policies shall contain the appropriate additional insured endorsement signed by a person
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

The furnishing of the above listed insurance coverage, as may be modified by the
Agreement, must be tendered prior to execution of the Agreement/Contract, and in no event
later than ten (10) days from Notice of Award. Failure to provide the insurance in a timely
fashion may result in loss of Contractor’s bid bond.

Owner reserves the right to review the insurance requirements set forth herein during the
Agreement and to make reasonable adjustments to the insurance coverage and their limits
when deemed necessary and prudent by the Owner based upon changes in statutory law,
court decisions, or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor.

Owner shall be entitled, upon request, and without expense, to receive complete copies of
the policies with all endorsements and may make any reasonable requests for deletion, or

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 7



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

revision or modification of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions,
except where policy provisions are established by law or regulation binding upon the
Parties or the underwriter of any of such polices. Damages caused by the Contractor and
not covered by insurance shall be paid by the Contractor.

6.5.9 Contractor shall be responsible for payment of premiums for all of the insurance coverages
required hereunder. Contractor further agrees that for each claim, suit or action made
against insurance provided hereunder, with respect to all matters for which the Contractor
is responsible hereunder, Contractor shall be solely responsible for all deductibles and self-
insured retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions over $75,000 in the
Contractor’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by Owner in advance.

6.5.10 Contractor shall contractually require each person or entity with whom it contracts to provide
services in relation to the Work, to comply with every insurance requirement that Contractor
must comply with hereunder. More specifically, each person or entity with whom Contractor
contracts to provide services on the in relation to the Work must comply with each insurance
requirement hereunder just as if such person or entity was the Contractor. Thus, every
reference to Contractor under each insurance requirement hereunder shall mean and include
each person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide services in relation to the
Work. If any such person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide services in
relation to the Work fails to obtain, maintain or renew any insurance required by this
Agreement, Owner may, among other remedies available hereunder or at law, obtain
insurance coverage directly and recover the cost of that insurance from the Contractor or
declare this Agreement void if the Contractor does not remedy the breach within ten (10)
days after receipt of notice of breach from the Owner.

ARTICLE 7 INDEMNITY:

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW, Contractor SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF OWNER’S CHOOSING),
AND HOLD HARMLESS OWNER, AND OWNER’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS,
OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE
RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR
ANY CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY
EMPLOYEE OF CONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS
THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO HAVE OCCURRED ON THE PROJECT SITE
OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. CONTRACTOR HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE
INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE
BEEN CAUSED BY THE SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OR THE STRICT LIABILITY OF
ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY. THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES,
COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTS,
DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS.

INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS. TO THE FULLEST EXTENT

PERMITTED BY LAW, CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF OWNER’S
CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS OWNER, AND OWNER’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES,

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 8



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST
CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES,
ARISING OUT OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE
WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS
OF CONTRACTOR OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE
ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR
EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.

7.2 Except for the obligation of Owner to pay Contractor the Contract Price pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement, and to perform certain other obligations pursuant to the terms and
conditions explicitly set forth herein, Owner shall have no liability to Contractor or to anyone
claiming through or under Contractor by reason of the execution or performance of this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any obligation or liability of Owner to Contractor, no present or
future partner or affiliate of Owner or any agent, officer, director, or employee of Owner,
Williamson County, or of the various departments comprising Williamson County, or anyone
claiming under Owner has or shall have any personal liability to Contractor or to anyone claiming
through or under Contractor by reason of the execution or performance of this Agreement.

ARTICLES8 WARRANTY:

8.1 Contractor hereby warrants that the materials and equipment provided for the Work will
be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Owner; that the
construction will be free from faults and defects; and that the construction will conform with the
requirements of the plans, specifications, drawings and the terms of this Agreement.

8.2 Contractor shall provide warranty services for the Work for a full twelve (12) months
following Final Completion and final payment. Just before the warranty period expires, Contractor
shall attend an on-site meeting with the Owner to ensure that all warranty issues have been
identified and properly remedied.

ARTICLE 9 PREVAILING WAGE RATE:

9.1 Duty to Pay Prevailing Wage Rates. The Contractor shall pay not less than the wage
scale of the various classes of labor as shown on the “Prevailing Wage Schedule”, as defined
below. The specified wage rates are minimum rates only, and are not representations that qualified
labor adequate to perform the Work is available locally at the prevailing wage rates. The Owner
is not bound to pay—and will not consider—any claims for additional compensation made by any
Contractor because the Contractor pays wages in excess of the applicable minimum rate contained
in the Agreement. The “Prevailing Wage Schedule” is not a representation that quantities of
qualified labor adequate to perform the Work may be found locally at the specified wage rates.

9.1.2 For classifications not shown, workers shall not be paid less than the wage indicated
for Laborers. The Contractor shall notify each worker commencing work on the Project
of the worker’s job classification and the established minimum wage rate required to
be paid, as well as the actual amount being paid. The notice must be delivered to and
signed in acknowledgement of receipt by the employee and must list both the monetary
wages and fringe benefits to be paid or furnished for each classification in which the

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 9



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

worker is assigned duties. When requested by Owner, competent evidence of
compliance with the Texas Prevailing Wage Law shall be furnished by Contractor.

9.1.3 A copy of each worker wage rate notification shall be submitted to the Owner with the
Application for Payment for the period during which the worker began on-site
activities.

9.2 Prevailing Wage Schedule. Pursuant to Texas Government Code
Section 2258.022(2), the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft or type of worker
needed to execute the Contract and the prevailing rate for legal holiday and overtime work shall
be the most recent prevailing wage rate for Williamson County, Texas for building construction
as determined by the United States Department of Labor in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act
(40 U.S.C. Section 276a et seq.), and its subsequent amendments, which are published and can be
obtained online at https://sam.gov/search/?index=dbra (the “Prevailing Wage Schedule”). Should
the Contractor at any time become aware that a particular skill or trade not reflected on the
Prevailing Wage Schedule will be or is being employed in the Work, whether by the Contractor or
by a subcontractor, the Contractor shall promptly inform the Owner and shall specify a wage rate
for that skill or trade, which shall bind the Contractor.

9.3 Penalty for Violation. The Contractor and any Subcontractor shall pay to the Owner
a penalty of sixty dollars ($60.00) for each worker employed for each calendar day, or portion
thereof, that the worker is paid less than the wage rates stipulated in the Prevailing Wage Schedule
or any supplement or update thereto pursuant to previsions above. The Contractor and each
Subcontractor shall keep, or cause to be kept, an accurate record showing the names and
occupations of all workers employed in connection with the Work, and showing the actual per
diem wages paid to each worker, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours for the
inspection by the Owner.

9.4 Complaints of Violations of Prevailing Wage Rates. Within thirty-one (31) days of
receipt of information concerning a violation of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2258, the
Owner shall make an initial determination as to whether good cause exists to believe a violation
occurred. The Owner’s decision on the initial determination shall be reduced to writing and sent
to the Contractor or Subcontractor against whom the violation was alleged, and to the affected
worker. When a good cause finding is made, the Owner shall retain the full amounts claimed by
the claimant or claimants as the difference between wages paid and wages due under the Prevailing
Wage Schedule and any supplements thereto, together with the applicable penalties, such amounts
being subtracted from successive progress payments pending a final decision on the violation.

9.5 Arbitration Required if Violation not Resolved. After the Owner makes its initial
determination, the affected Contractor or Subcontractor and worker have fourteen (14) days in
which to resolve the issue of whether a violation occurred, including the amount that should be
retained by Owner or paid to the affected worker. If the Contractor or Subcontractor and affected
worker reach an agreement concerning the worker’s claim, the Contractor shall promptly notify
the Owner in a written document signed by the worker. If the Contractor or Subcontractor and
affected worker do not agree before the fifteenth (15™) day after the Owner’s determination, the
Contractor or Subcontractor and affected worker must participate in binding arbitration in

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 10


https://sam.gov/search/?index=dbra

Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

accordance with the Texas General Arbitration Act, Chapter 171, Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem. Code.
The parties to the arbitration have ten (10) days after the expiration of the fifteen (15) days referred
to above, to agree on an arbitrator; if by the eleventh (11™) day there is no agreement to an
arbitrator, a district court shall appoint an arbitrator on the petition of any of the parties to the
arbitration.

9.6 Arbitration Award. If an arbitrator determines that a violation has occurred, the
arbitrator shall assess and award against the Contractor or Subcontractor the amount of penalty as
provided herein and the amount owed the worker. The Owner may use any amounts retained
hereunder to pay the worker the amount as designated in the arbitration award. If the Owner has
not retained enough from the Contractor or Subcontractor to pay the worker in accordance with
the arbitration award, the worker has a right of action against the Contractor and Subcontractor as
appropriate, and the surety of either to receive the amount owed, attorneys’ fees and court costs.
The Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the arbitration award to the Owner.

9.7 Prevailing Wage Retainage. Money retained pursuant to this section shall be used to
pay the claimant or claimants the difference between the amount the worker received in wages for
labor on the Project at the rate paid by the Contractor or Subcontractor and the amount the worker
would have received at the general prevailing wage rate as provided by the agreement of the
claimant and the Contractor or Subcontractor affected, or in the arbitrator’s award. The full
statutory penalty of sixty dollars ($60.00) per day of violation per worker shall be retained by the
Owner to offset its administrative costs, pursuant to Texas Government Code, §2258.023. Any
retained funds in excess of these amounts shall be paid to the Contractor on the earlier of the next
progress payment or final payment. Provided, however, that the Owner shall have no duty to
release any funds to either the claimant or the Contractor until it has received the notices of
agreement or the arbitration award as provided in this section.

9.8 No Extension of Time. If the Owner determines that good cause exists to believe a
violation has occurred, the Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time for any delay
arising directly or indirectly from of the procedures set forth in this section.

ARTICLE 10 BONDS:

10.1 Performance Bond. Upon execution of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide a
Performance Bond in the amount of 100% of the Contract Price. The surety for a Performance
Bond shall meet the requirements of Texas law and the requirements set forth in the Agreement.

10.2 Payment Bond. Upon execution of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide a Payment
Bond in the amount of 100% of the Contract Price, as security for the true and faithful payment in
full of all subcontractors and persons performing labor, services, materials, machinery, and fixtures
in connection with the Work. The surety for a Payment Bond shall meet the requirements of Texas
law and the requirements set forth in the Agreement.

10.3 Warranty Bond. Upon Final Completion, Contractor shall provide a Warranty Bond in

the amount of 20% of the Contract Price, as security for the true and faithful performance of all
warranties set forth in the Agreement.

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 11



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

ARTICLE 11 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE AGREEMENT

11.1 Termination by Contractor

If one of the reasons described below exists, the Contractor may, upon thirty (30) business days
written notice to the Owner, terminate the Agreement and recover from the Owner payment for
Work executed, including reasonable overhead, profit, and costs incurred by reason of such

termination:

11.1.1 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that
requires all Work to be stopped;

11.1.2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requires all
Work to be stopped; or

11.1.3 If the Work is stopped for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days through no act
or fault of the Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor or their agents or
employees or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under
direct or indirect contract with the Agreement.

11.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause

11.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Agreement if the Contractor:

11.2.1.1 Fails to commence the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement;

11.2.1.2

11.2.1.3

11.2.14
11.2.1.5

11.2.1.6

11.2.1.7

11.2.1.8

Fails to prosecute the Work to completion thereof in a diligent, efficient, timely,
workmanlike, skillful and careful manner and in strict accordance with the
provisions of the Agreement;

Fails to use an adequate amount or quality of personnel or equipment to complete
the Work without undue delay;

Fails to perform any of its obligations under the Agreement;

Fails to make prompt payments when due to its Subcontractors and Suppliers, or
as required by Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251,

Files any petition or other pleading seeking any relief under any provisions of the
Federal Bankruptcy Act, as amended, or any other federal or state statute or law
providing for reorganization of debts or other relief from creditors, permits a
receiver or other person to be appointed on account of its insolvency or financial
condition, or becomes insolvent;

Creates any situation or state of facts which would authorize or permit an
involuntary petition in bankruptcy to be filed against Contractor; or

Has not met or in Owner’s opinion will not meet the dates of Substantial
Completion set forth in the Agreement.

11.2.2 When any of the reasons under Paragraph 11.2.1 exist, the Owner, in its sole and absolute
discretion, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and after giving
the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, thirty (30) calendar days written notice,
terminate employment of the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety, exclude

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 12



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

the Contractor from the Project site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor; accept assignment of
subcontracts of Contractors subcontractors; and finish the Work by whatever reasonable method
the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish
to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work.

11.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Agreement for one of the reasons stated in Paragraph
11.2.1, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive payment until the Work is finished. In the
event that it is determined that sufficient cause did not exist for termination under this Section
11.2, then the termination shall be considered a termination for convenience, under Section 11.4,
below.

11.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including
compensation for expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages and costs incurred by the
Owner in finishing the Work and not expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor.
If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to
the Owner.

11.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience

11.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or
interrupt the Work in whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

11.3.2 The Contract Price and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time
caused by suspension, delay or interruption as described in Paragraph 11.3.1. Adjustment of the
Contract Price shall include profit. No adjustment shall be made to the extent:

11.3.2.1 that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted
by another cause for which the Contractor is responsible; or

11.3.2.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the
Agreement.

114 Termination by the Owner for Convenience

11.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Agreement for the Owner’s convenience and
without cause.

11.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s
convenience, the Contractor shall

11.4.2.1 Cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;

11.4.2.2 Take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and
preservation of the Work; and

11.4.2.3 Except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of
termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase
orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders.

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 13



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

11.4.3 Upon Owner’s termination for convenience, costs of the Work executed, including
reasonable overhead and profit, incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and
payable to Contractor in accordance with the Agreement.

ARTICLE 12 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS:

12.1 Interest and Late Payments. Owner’s payment for goods and services shall be governed
by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall
be paid by Owner in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September
1 of Owner’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September
1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street
Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or
Sunday.

In the event that an error appears in an invoice/application for payment submitted by Contractor,
Owner shall notify Contractor of the error not later than the twenty first (21st) day after the date
Owner receives the invoice/application for payment. If the error is resolved in favor of Contractor,
Contractor shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice/application for
payment submitted by Contractor beginning on the date that the payment for the
invoice/application for payment became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the Owner,
Contractor shall submit a corrected invoice/application for payment that must be paid in
accordance within the time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by
Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice/application for payment is
not paid by the appropriate date.

12.2  Audits. Contractor agrees that Owner or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right
to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which
are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Contractor agrees that Owner shall
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Contractor facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the
provisions of this section. Owner shall give Contractor reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

12.3  Assignment. This Agreement is a personal service contract for the services of Contractor,
and Contractor’s interest in this Agreement, duties hereunder and/or fees due hereunder may not be
assigned or delegated to a third party.

12.4 Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement and all of the rights and obligations of the
parties and all of the terms and conditions shall be construed, interpreted and applied in accordance
with and governed by and enforced under the laws of the State of Texas without reference to its
conflicts of law provisions. Williamson County where the Project is located shall be the sole place

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 14



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

of venue for any legal action arising from or related to this Agreement or the Project in which the
Owner is a party.

12.5 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective permitted assigns and successors.

12.6 Notices. All notices, consents, approvals, demands, requests or other communications relied
on by the parties shall be in writing. Written notice shall be deemed to have been given when
delivered in person to the designated representative of the Contractor or Owner for whom it is
intended; or sent by U. S. Mail to the last known business address of the designated representative; or
transmitted by fax machine to the last know business fax number of the designated representative.
Mail notices are deemed effective upon receipt or on the third business day after the date of mailing,
whichever is sooner. Fax notices are deemed effective the next business day after faxing.

12.7 Severability. Should any term or provision of this Agreement be held invalid or
unenforceable in any respect, the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected and this
Agreement shall be construed as if the invalid or unenforceable term or provision had never been
included.

12.8 Relationship of the Parties. Contractor shall be an independent contractor under this
agreement and shall assume all of the rights, obligations, liabilities, applicable to it as such
independent contractor hereunder and any provisions in this agreement which may appear to give
Owner the right to direct Contractor as to details of doing the Work herein covered or to exercise
a measure of control over the Work shall be deemed to mean that Contractor shall follow the
desires of Owner in the results of the Work only. Owner shall not retain or have the right to control
the Contractor’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Contractor’s performance of the Work
described herein, nor shall Owner have the power to direct the order in which Contractor’s Work
is performed under this agreement. Owner and Contractor hereby agree and declare that
Contractor is an Independent Contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an Independent
Contractor under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that
the Contractor is not an employee of Owner for purposes of this Agreement, and that the Contractor
and its employees, agents and sub-subcontractors shall not be entitled to worker’s compensation
coverage or any other type of insurance coverage held by Owner.

12.9 Force Majeure. Ifthe party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act
of war, order of legal authority, act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault
or negligence of said party, the other party shall grant such party relief from the performance of
this Agreement. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the party obligated
to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

12.10 No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of
sovereign immunity by Williamson County.

12.11 Current Revenues. Under Texas law, a contract with a governmental entity that contains
a claim against future revenues is void; therefore, each party paying for the performance of

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 15



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

governmental functions or services must make those payments from current revenues available to
the paying party.

12.12 Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws,
statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or
administrative bodies or tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of this Agreement,
including, without limitation, Worker’s Compensation laws, minimum and maximum salary and
wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and regulations. When required, Contractor shall
furnish the County with certification of compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules,
regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

12.13 Entire Agreement & Incorporated Documents; Conflicting Terms. This Agreement
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and may not be modified or amended other
than by a written instrument executed by both parties.

The following documents shall comprise the Contract Documents:

This Agreement between County and Contractor;

Exhibit “A” — Plans and Specifications;

Addenda issued prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement;

Cooperative Contract # 728-24 (Buy Board); and

All Change Orders and any other Modifications issued after the Effective Date of this
Agreement.

NE PO

In the event of a dispute or conflict relating to the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents,
applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification, conflict resolution or for
additional detail in the following order of precedence:

This Agreement between County and Contractor;

Exhibit “A” — Plans and Specifications;

Addenda issued prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement;

Cooperative Contract # 728-24 (Buy Board); and

All Change Orders and any other Modifications issued after the Effective Date of this
Agreement.

A e

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023) Page 16



Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

BY SIGNING BELOW, the Parties have executed and bound themselves to this Agreement to be
effective as of the date of the last party’s execution hereof.

OWNER:

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS,
a political subdivision of the state of Texas

By:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Agreement for Construction Services - COOP (113023)

Page 17

CONTRACTOR:

Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc.

%M :

VUBST4Z20 06504007

By:

. John E. Castro
Printed Name:

Title: President

February 7, 2025 14:47 CST
Date: Y |




Docusign Envelope ID: 377D00A2-DE41-4EAD-8B74-C8ACC7D941A4

Exhibit “A”
Plans and Specifications

Furnish labor, material and equipment for the SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel Project
for the as follows:

Proposal Breakdown |

RS Means Cost $129,064.47

Coefficient 0.98 $2,581.29

Sub Total $126,483.18

Bond 2.5% $3,162.08

PROPOSAL TOTAL $129,645.26
One Hundred Twenty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Five and 26/100 ---------------------- Dollars

Il. Scope of Work:

Demolition of existing batting cage structural pole system and all existing netting.
Provide and install a custom shell batting cage netting system to the existing 100x21concrete surface.
The netting system consists of 8 inch and 4 inch galvanized poles and galvanized cabling to allow for all of the netting to
be hung 18 to 24 inches from contact zones with any pole during batting activities.
All netting is anchored via bottom cable and anchors to the concrete surface to prevent any stray balls from leaving the
batting cages.
The new netting system will have the roof/top of the net 12 foot AGL of the concrete surface.
There will be one divider net to create two individual hitting cages.
Each cage will be approximately 10.5 feet wide.
Provide and install 2100 sq ft of KMTX 750PE artificial turf surface (green) to the entire concrete slab.
All seams will be glued via seam tape and all of the turf surface will be adhered to the concrete slab.
This will be a non-infill turf system (samples to be provided)
Form and pour concrete curb to the south end of the batting cage slab for installation of granite gravel.
Provide and install of granite gravel with binder for the new 40" X 22' run-up area, up to 18" depth.
Daily cleaning
Final clean

Ill. Exclusions:
Sales tax, overtime, permit fees
Any MEP work
Any work below grade
Landscaping / Vegetation
Unmarked water, utility or electrical lines or any other unmarked utilities
Any work outside of the Scope Of Work



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295

lofl

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

of business.
Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc
Grand Prairie, TX United States

1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place

being filed.

2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is

Williamson County Facilities Management

OFFICE USE ONLY
CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Certificate Number:
2025-1266044

Date Filed:
02/06/2025

Date Acknowledged:

510.25
SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

Name of Interested Party

City, State, Country (place of business)

Nature of interest
(check applicable)

Controlling Intermediary

Castro, John Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Gomez, Moses Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Arnold, Chris Grand Prairie, TX United States X

5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party.

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is \(‘)\(\Y\ CJ)S‘HO

te et 4

(street)

Executed in D(X \\O&S

(city) (state)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

County, State of T‘QXOS , on the ‘/‘ day of rﬁiz .2035.

(zip code) (country)

AR/ =

(month) (year)

Signature of a rized agent of contracting business entity

(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

www.ethics.state[yé

Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

FORM 1295
lofl
Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties. OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties. CERTIFICATION OF FILING
1 Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place Certificate Number:
of business. 2025-1266044
Falkenberg Construction Co., Inc.
Grand Prairie, TX United States Date Filed:
2 Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is 02/06/2025
being filed.
Williamson County Facilities Management Date Acknowledged:
02/11/2025

3 Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

510.25
SWRP Cricket Batting Cage Remodel

4 Nature of interest
Name of Interested Party City, State, Country (place of business) (check applicable)
Controlling Intermediary
Castro, John Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Gomez, Moses Grand Prairie, TX United States X
Arnold, Chris Grand Prairie, TX United States X
5 Check only if there is NO Interested Party. I:I

6 UNSWORN DECLARATION

My name is , and my date of birth is

My address is , ) ) )
(street) (city) (state) (zip code) (country)

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed in County, State of , on the day of , 20 .
(month) (year)

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity
(Declarant)

Forms provided by Texas Ethics Commission www.ethics.state.tx.us Version V4.1.0.5dd2ace2



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Authorize Issuing RFSQ #25RFSQ32 Geotechnical/Construction Materials Testing (CMT) Pool for Facilities
Management

Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive
sealed responses for Geotechnical/Construction Materials Testing (CMT) Pool, under #25RFSQ32. Funding
Source P#TBD.

Background

Pursuant to Chapter 2254 Subchapters A and B and Chapter 2269 Subchapter E of the Texas Government Code,
Williamson County is seeking written qualifications from qualified geotechnical engineers and construction
materials testing (CMT) technicians to provide services for a Geotechnical/ CMT Pool. Per policy, the term will be
for 2 years from award date. The estimated construction budget amount will vary depending on the project.
Origination ID# 2149. The funding source is TBD, and the point of contact is Dale Butler.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments

No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/19/2025 12:09 PM

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/19/2025 03:34 PM

Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 02/14/2025 12:36 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/19/2025



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 24,
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Physical Access Control Policy

Submitted For: Dale Butler Submitted By: Gina Wrehsnig, Facilities Management
Department: Facilities Management

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Physical Access Control Policy.

Background
This is the foundational policy for Physical Access Control.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments
Physical Access Control Policy

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/14/2025 09:36 AM
Form Started By: Gina Wrehsnig Started On: 02/14/2025 08:38 AM

Final Approval Date: 02/14/2025



UNADOPTED DRAFT

(4 Williamson County
\ ‘ Facilities Management
WILCO

TEXAS

Physical Access Control Policy

Sensitivity: Controlled
Criticality: Critical
Primary Type: Policy and Procedure

Summary

Purpose

Williamson County (“County”) is committed to providing a safe and healthful workplace for all
County employees and those who require access to County facilities. As part of this goal, this Policy
is instituted for the purpose of promoting a secure facility environment and for maintaining a
comprehensive system to efficiently manage the dissemination of Access Control Assets
throughout County facilities.

Scope

This Policy shall apply to all individuals seeking access to County facilities and Secured Work Areas,
including but not limited to, all Public Officials, County employees, volunteers, interns, and non-
County individuals/entities. Departments may adopt more detailed policies and procedures in
addition to this policy.

Definitions

Access Administrator
A person designated by a Public Official or Department Head to request and manage Access Control
Assets and access levels to a particular County office or facility.

Access Control Asset
The tangible or intangible means to authorize entry into buildings and Secured Work Areas, including
but not limited to access codes, keys, fobs and badges.

Access Control Asset Holders

Individuals who are approved to possess Access Control Assets, including Public Officials, County
employees, volunteers, interns, and non-County individuals/entities (e.g., vendors, contractors,
property lessees, guests, etc.).

Access Control Procedures
Williamson County Physical Access Control Procedures, as amended, established by the Facilities
Management Department.

Page 1of 7



Williamson County Internal Use Only
Physical Access Control Policy UNADOPTED DRAFT

Access Control System
Equipment with audit capabilities to track and monitor badge usage.

Department Head
The highest-ranking County employee in a department created and supervised by the
Commissioners Court.

Policy

Williamson County Facility Physical Access Control Policy.

Public Officials
Elected and appointed officials who are provided workspace in County facilities.

Secured Entry
Any door or access point to a County facility that requires an Access Control Asset to gain entry.

Secured Work Area
A County facility or an area within a County facility in which access is controlled and the general
public are normally not permitted to enter.

Roles and Responsibilities

All individuals seeking or already granted access to County facilities are required to adhere to this
policy and associated procedures.

Public Officials and Department Heads should inform their employees, volunteers, and interns of
this content and ensure each employee fully understands and undertakes to comply with this
content.

Policy

No individual shall access a secured entry or Secured Work Area of a County facility without authorization
pursuant to this Policy and corresponding procedures. The Williamson County Facilities Management
Department shall implement this Policy and shall maintain an Access Control System that manages badge
access to County facilities.

A. Access Administrator Delegation and Responsibilities

1.

Each Public Official, Department Head, or non-County individual/entity shall designate a person
who will act as a liaison between the Facilities Management Department and the office or facility.
This designated person will serve as Access Administrator and will manage Access Control Assets
as determined by this Policy and the Access Control Procedures. (May include more than one
designated individual, best practice to have a primary and backup for continuity.)

Requests for new, replacement, or deactivation of an Access Control Asset as well as requests to
change or remove access levels must be made by the Access Administrator. Additional approval
by the Public Official, Department Head, or non-County individual/entity may be required for
some Secured Work Areas.

Page 2 of 7



Williamson County Internal Use Only
Physical Access Control Policy UNADOPTED DRAFT

3. Ifthe Access Administrator receives a facility key or any other Access Control Asset from an Access
Control Asset Holder, the Access Administrator shall immediately return the key or Access Control
Asset to the Facilities Management Department in person or in designated dropboxes.

4. If the Access Administrator determines that an access code is no longer needed and/or needs to
be changed, the Access Administrator shall immediately notify the Facilities Management
Department. The Access Administrator shall also notify the Facilities Management Department
on or before an Access Control Asset Holder’s last day of service.

5. An Access Administrator shall not retain any Access Control Asset in anticipation of an employee
replacement, transfer, or termination.

6. It is the responsibility of the Access Administrator to verify that all Access Control Assets are
accounted for, and, prior to the beginning of each new fiscal year, the Access Administrator shall
review a list of Access Control Assets issued to each Access Control Asset Holder to ensure that
such records remain accurate. In the event such records are not accurate, the Access
Administrator shall notify the Facilities Management Department of such inaccuracies.

7. An Access Administrator will be the point of contact and assist the Facilities Management
Department ensuring compliance with any audit of Access Control Assets.

8. The Access Administrator shall follow the Access Control Procedures.

B. Access Control Assets
1. General

a.  All Access Control Asset Holders may be required to clear a background check prior to the
issuance of an Access Control Asset.

b.  Access Control Asset Holders shall keep Access Control Assets secured at all times. Access
Control Assets shall not be left unsecured or unattended, such as in vehicles or in
unlocked desk drawers.

C. While entering and exiting a County facility using an Access Control Asset, each Access
Control Asset Holder shall ensure that all secured doors close behind them. Secured
entries and Secured Work Area doors should never be propped open.

d. It is a violation of this Policy to allow unauthorized persons to enter a secured entry or
Secured Work Area or allow other individuals or employees to gain access to a secured
entry or Secured Work Area without using their own Access Control Asset (also known as
piggybacking or tailgating).

e. It is a violation of this Policy for an unauthorized person to enter or attempt to enter a
secured entry or Secured Work Area.

f.  Access Control Asset Holders shall not “loan” or transfer an Access Control Asset to
another employee, non-employee, volunteer or other individual. Secured/Detention
Facilities key exception: Section B.3.e

Page 3 of 7



Williamson County Internal Use Only
Physical Access Control Policy UNADOPTED DRAFT

Access Control Assets may only be used to gain access to the areas and facilities necessary
for the performance of the Access Control Asset Holder’s normal/routine duties and
responsibilities.

If an Access Control Asset is lost or stolen, the Access Control Asset Holder shall
immediately report the lost or stolen asset to both the Facilities Management
Department and the Access Administrator. An Access Control Asset Holder shall make
reasonable efforts to locate a lost Access Control Asset.

Access Control Asset Holders shall return all Access Control Assets to the Access
Administrator and/or Facilities Management Department upon separation from
employment, retirement, resignation, transfer to another Public Official’s office or County
Department, project completion, completion of volunteer service and/or at the request
of the Access Administrator.

With the exception of access to areas containing sensitive chain of custody items (e.g.,
ballots, evidence, etc.), authorized Williamson County Technology Services and Facilities
Management personnel shall have the authority to access all County facilities and Secured
Work Areas, including immediate access in case of emergencies or critical incidents.

All Access Control Asset Holders shall follow the Access Control Procedures.

2. County Badges

a.

A County badge shall be issued to all County employees, officials, and other authorized
individuals performing work at County facilities, i.e., Access Control Asset Holders.

A County badge shall be worn at all times while in a County facility. The County badge
must be visible and not obstructed.

Badge holders who misplace or have forgotten their badge will not have access to
Secured Work Areas. Temporary badges will not be issued to an individual by the
Facilities Management Department.

Access Control Asset Holders are prohibited from possessing multiple County badges. All
old, broken, or duplicate County badges shall be brought to the Facilities Management
Department and/or the Access Administrator so that it can be appropriately destroyed or
deactivated.

All Access Control Asset Holders shall return all badges/fobs to the Access Administrator,
or designee in their absence, on the last day of County service or upon changing County
departments or offices.

Key fobs will only be issued to current Elected Officials and Law Enforcement Officers
employed by the County. A photo only badge will be issued for those electing a fob.

Page 4 of 7



Williamson County Internal Use Only
Physical Access Control Policy UNADOPTED DRAFT

3. Facility Keys

a.

It is a violation of this Policy to manufacture, cut, or duplicate any facility key by a person
other than the County locksmith. Offenders will be subject to disciplinary action by the
Public Official or County Department and denial of future Access Control Assets by the
Facilities Management Department.

If an Access Control Asset Holder suspects that a facility key has been manufactured, cut,
or duplicated, the Access Control Asset Holder shall immediately report such matters to
the Facilities Management Department and to the Access Administrator. Access
Administrators shall report such matters to the Facilities Management Department.

All Access Control Asset Holders shall return all facility keys to the Access Administrator
in the event of an administrative leave of absence.

All Access Control Asset Holders should return all facility keys to the Access Administrator
in the event of a planned leave of absence of more than two weeks in which the employee
may not return.

Access Control Asset Holders are prohibited from possessing multiple keys of the same
keyway.

Detention and Secured Juvenile Facilities keys shall not be removed from the detention
facility. Keys must remain on the secured ring and be issued to appropriate personnel
along with a method of tracking and stored in a secured lockbox between shifts and
accounted for by the department daily.

4. Access Codes (Including Security Alarm Codes)

a.

It is a violation of this policy for an Access Control Asset Holder to share an access code
with any unauthorized individual.

If an access code has been shared with an unauthorized individual or is otherwise
obtained by an unauthorized individual, the Access Control Asset Holder shall
immediately report such matters to the Facilities Management Department and the
Access Administrator. Access Administrators shall report such matters to the Facilities
Management Department.

C. Charges for Replacement of Access Control Assets
The Access Control Asset Holder who loses or makes inoperable an Access Control Asset will be
responsible for replacement costs of Access Control Assets. Access Control Asset replacement
charges are as follows:

Grand Master Key $200
Building Master Key $150
Area/Suite Master Key $100

Page 5 of 7



Williamson County Internal Use Only

Physical Access Control Policy UNADOPTED DRAFT
DC Key S50
Badge/ FOB $20

Note: Lost key charges will be refunded if keys are found and turned into the Facilities
Management Department within 30 days of loss.

If the lock-core of a lock must be changed for security reasons due to an Access Control Asset Holder
losing a key to such lock, actual cost of re-keying will be determined by the Facilities Management
Department and the cost may be charged to the County Department or Public Official’s office who
originally authorized said keys to the Access Control Asset Holder.

Corresponding Procedures

The Williamson County Facilities Management Department shall establish and administer Access Control
Procedures consistent with this Policy, which describe the process by which control, dissemination, use,
and possession of Access Control Assets to County facilities will be managed. These Procedures shall be
accessible on the County’s website and shall be reviewed and revised periodically by the Facilities
Management Department to reflect changes in technology and best practices. Reviews must be
conducted biannually and any revisions to the Procedures shall become effective thirty (30) days after
posting to the County website. All Access Control Asset Holders shall be responsible for adhering to these
Procedures.

Exceptions
Exceptions to facilities policies, standards, and procedures must be documented and approved by the
Senior Director of the Facilities Management Department.

Violations

Violations of this Policy can lead to loss of access privileges by the Facilities Management Department, as
well as possible disciplinary action by the violator’s Public Official or Department Head up to, and
including, termination. Violations of this Policy may also subject the violator to administrative/criminal
investigation and prosecution.

Related Statutes, Policies, and Authorities

Page 6 of 7



Williamson County Internal Use Only
Physical Access Control Policy UNADOPTED DRAFT

Contact Office

Except as otherwise stated herein, Access Control Asset Holders should contact their management with
questions or for clarifications regarding this policy and any corresponding procedures. Public Officials and
Department Heads should contact the Facilities Management Department with questions or for
clarifications regarding this policy and any corresponding procedures.

Administrative Notes
Policy Class: Physical Security
Policy Family: Physical Access Control
Policy: Physical Access Control
Standard:
Control Reference(s):

Responsible: Facilities Management

Accountable: Facilities Management

Consulted: HR, County Manager, Legal, Audit, Sheriff’s Office, Juvenile Services, Emergency Services, ITS
Informed:

Revision History

Version Date Description
1.0 2/25/2025 Initial adoption

Page 7 of 7



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 25,
Meeting Date: 02/25/2025

Award of Design and Engineering Services Agreement to Hendrix Consulting Engineers, P.C for CJC Chiller Plant &
Boiler Design for Facilities Management

Submitted For: Joy Simonton Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Iltem

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFSQ #24RFSQ53 to Hendrix Consulting Engineers,
P.C., for CJC Chiller Plant & Boiler Design, in the amount of Forty-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars
($48,750.00) and authorize execution of the agreement.

Background

Hendrix Consulting Engineers, P.C is recommended for award through RFSQ #24RFSQ53 which established a
pre-qualified consultant pool to be contracted on an as-needed basis, on 06.18.24 agenda item no.16. Hendrix
Consulting Engineers, P.C, is being recommended for this project following a project specific evaluation of the
firms from the 24RFSQ53 pool where Hendrix Consulting Engineers, P.C received the highest score for this
project. This Agreement for Design Services between Williamson County and Hendrix Consulting Engineers, P.C,
is for the CJC Chiller Plant & Boiler Design, 405 Martin Luther King Jr, Georgetown, TX 78626. Contract Audit
and General Counsel reviewed. A detailed Scope of Work is attached. Funding Source is 01.0100.1009.004100
and the point of contact is Christy Matoska.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. [| Description [| Amount |

Attachments
Professional Services Agreement CJC Chiller Plants Boiler Design_Hendrix
Form 1295 Hendrix Consulting Complete

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 02/20/2025 09:18 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Delia Colon 02/20/2025 09:22 AM

Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 02/14/2025 12:36 PM

Final Approval Date: 02/20/2025



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN & ENGINEERING SERVICES

PROJECT: CJC Chiller Plant & Boiler Design (“Project”)
ARCHITECT/
ENGINEER: Hendrix Consulting Engineers, P.C. (“A/E”)

Byron Hendrix, Professional Engineer, Owner
115 East Main Street
Round Rock, TX 78664

COUNTY’S DESIGNATED

REPRESENTATIVE: Williamson County Facilities Department
Director of Facilities
3101 SE Inner Loop
Georgetown, Texas 78626

THIS AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN AND ENGINEERING SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into effective as of the latest date of the signatories indicated at the conclusion of this
document (the "Effective Date"), by and between Williamson County, a body corporate and politic
under the laws of the State of Texas (“County”) and A/E.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, V.T.C.A., Government Code §2254.002(2)(A)(vii) under Subchapter A entitled
“Professional Services Procurement Act” provides for the procurement by counties of services of
professional architects and engineers; and

WHEREAS, County intends to replace various chilled water and hot water plant components
identified by County in two (2) different Level One equipment rooms at the Williamson County
Justice Center; and

WHEREAS, County desires that A/E perform certain professional services in connection with the
Project; and

WHEREAS, A/E represents that it is qualified and desires to perform such services;

NOW, THEREFORE, County and A/E, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
herein contained, do mutually agree as follows:

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 1 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

ARTICLE 1
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

A/E agrees to perform professional services in connection with the Project as stated herein, and
for having rendered such services, County agrees to pay to A/E compensation as stated in the
articles to follow.

ARTICLE 2
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND APPLICABLE PROJECT DOCUMENTS

2.1  Contract Documents.

Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto (which exhibits are
hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement), and all fully executed Supplemental
Agreements which are subsequently issued. These form the entire Agreement, and all are as
fully a part of this Agreement as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein.

2.2 Existing Information.

County shall provide A/E with all existing plans, maps, studies, reports, field notes, statistics,
computations, and other data in its possession relative to existing facilities and to this particular
Project at no cost to A/E; however, any and all such information shall remain the property of
County and shall be returned, if County so instructs A/E.

2.3 Project Documents.
In addition to any other pertinent and necessary Project documents, the following documents shall
be used in the development of the Project:

231

2012 Edition of the Texas Accessibility Standards (TAS) regarding the Elimination of
Architectural Barriers Program, including latest revisions (see 16 Tex. Admin. Code §
68.100; see also Tex. Gov't Code, Ch. 469).

2.3.2
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

233
Williamson County Facilities Building Code Adoption List, 2020 edition as updated

234
Williamson County Consultant Design Submittal Guidelines, 2020 edition as updated

ARTICLE 3
NON-COLLUSION; DEBARMENT; AND FINANCIAL INTEREST PROHIBITED

3.1 Non-collusion.

A/E warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or persons, other than a bona fide
employee working solely for A/E, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or
agreed to pay any company or subconsultant any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee,
gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 2 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, County reserves and shall have the right to
annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion and at its sole election, to deduct from
the Agreement price or compensation, or to otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee,
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee.

3.2 Debarment Certification.
A/E must sign the Debarment Certification enclosed herewith as Exhibit E.

3.3 Financial Interest Prohibited.

A/E covenants and represents that A/E, its officers, employees, agents, consultants, and
subcontractors will have no financial interest, direct or indirect, in the purchase or sale of any
product, materials, or equipment that will be recommended or required for the construction of the
Project.

ARTICLE 4
CHARACTER AND SCOPE OF SERVICES

4.1

In consideration of the compensation herein provided, A/E shall perform professional design and
engineering services for the Project, which are acceptable to County, based on standard
architectural and engineering practices and the scope of work described on the Exhibits attached
to this Agreement. A/E shall also serve as County's professional architect and engineer in those
phases of the Project to which this Agreement applies and will consult with and give advice to
County during the performance of A/E's services.

4.2
A/E shall perform the following Basic Scope of Services (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Basic Scope of Services”, “Basic Services” or the “Scope of Services”):

421

The Basic Scope of Services shall generally consist of all elements of work, meetings,
materials, and equipment required for the development of the Project in accordance with
the requirements, policies, and general practices of Williamson County.

4.2.2
As part of the Basic Services, A/E shall submit its work products to County for review as
requested by County.

4.2.3
The detailed Basic Services for the Project is set forth herein as Exhibit A to this
Agreement, which is expressly incorporated and made a part hereof.

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 3 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

ARTICLE 5
TIME FOR PERFORMANCE

51 Commencement.
A/E shall not commence work until A/E has been thoroughly briefed on the scope of the Project
and has been notified in writing to proceed, as evidenced by a Notice to Proceed.

5.2 Duration.

A/E agrees to complete the Basic Services within the time period set forth in Exhibit C. The time
limits set out therein may, for good cause, be extended, in writing, by County as the Project
proceeds.

ARTICLE 6
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES

6.1 Basic Fee.

For and in consideration of the Basic Services rendered by A/E, County shall pay to A/E up to
Forty-Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($48,750. ) hereinafter called the "Basic
Fee".

The Basic Fee is based upon all estimated labor costs required in the performance of all items
and phases of the Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A. Compensation for Basic Services will be
paid by County by monthly invoices of percentage completion of fees by phase of the Basic Fee
as set forth in Exhibit B. County will only be obligated to pay A/E for the performance of items
and phases of the Basic Services actually rendered and incurred, which may be less than the
above stated Basic Fee.

6.2 Expenses.

A/E shall be reimbursed for actual non-labor and subcontract expenses incurred in the
performance of the services under this Agreement in accordance with the Williamson County
Vendor Reimbursement Policy set forth under Exhibit D. Invoices requesting reimbursement for
costs and expenditures related to the Project (reimbursables) must be accompanied by copies of
the provider’s invoice and must strictly comply with the Williamson County Vendor
Reimbursement Policy. The copies of the provider's invoice must evidence the actual costs
billed to A/E without markup. Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic
and Additional Services and must not exceed Four Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars ($487.).

ARTICLE 7
ADDITIONAL SERVICES AND CHARGES

For the performance of services not specifically described as Basic Services under Article 4
above (sometimes referred to herein as “Additional Services”), County shall pay and A/E shall
receive, under a negotiated, written Supplemental Agreement, Additional Services compensation
based upon invoices of percentage completion.

A/E shall not, however, be compensated for work made necessary by A/E’s negligent errors or
omissions. In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s services as Basic or

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 4 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

Additional Services under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and binding on
A/E.

It is expressly understood and agreed that A/E shall not furnish any Additional Services without
the prior written authorization of County by a negotiated Supplemental Agreement. County shall
have no obligation to pay for such Additional Services which have been rendered without prior
written authorization of County as hereinabove required.

ARTICLE 8
TIME OF PAYMENT; PAYMENT AND INTEREST; AND RIGHT TO AUDIT

8.1  Time of Payment.
During the performance of the services provided for in this Agreement, monthly payments shall
be made based upon that portion of the services which has been completed.

On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the Basic Services to
be provided under this Agreement, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage
of completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Basic Services and the compensation
which is due for percentage completion of Basic Services.

On or about the last day of each calendar month during the performance of the Additional Services
to be provided under Article 7, A/E shall submit to County working documents in any stage of
completion to demonstrate incremental progress of Additional Services under an applicable
Supplemental Agreement related thereto, and the compensation which is due for percentage
completion of particular Additional Services.

County shall review the documentation and shall pay each statement as set forth in this Article
8, however, the approval or payment of any statement shall not be considered evidence of
performance by A/E to the point indicated by such statement or of receipt or acceptance by County
of the services covered by such statement. Final payment does not relieve A/E of the
responsibility of correcting any errors or omissions resulting from A/E’s negligence.

Upon submittal of the initial invoice, A/E shall provide the County Auditor with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is complete in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations.

8.2 Prompt Payment Policy.

In accordance with Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A., Texas Government Code, payment to A/E will be
made within thirty (30) days of the day on which the performance of services was complete, or
within thirty (30) days of the day on which the County Auditor receives a correct invoice for
services, whichever is later. A/E may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which
is permitted by Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy;
however, this policy does not apply in the event:

8.2.1
There is a bona fide dispute between County and A/E concerning the supplies, materials,
or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes the payment to be late; or

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 5 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

8.2.2

There is a bona fide dispute between A/E and a subcontractor/ subconsultant or between
a subcontractor/ subconsultant and its supplier concerning supplies, materials, or
equipment delivered or the Basic Services performed which causes the payment to be
late; or

8.2.3
The invoice is not submitted to Williamson County in strict accordance with instructions, if
any, on the purchase order, or this Agreement or other such contractual agreement.

The County Auditor shall document to A/E the issues related to disputed invoices within ten (10)
calendar days of receipt of such invoice. Any non-disputed invoices shall be considered correct
and payable per the terms of Texas Government Code, Chapter 2251, V.T.C.A.

ARTICLE 9
PROJECT TEAM

County’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows:

Williamson County Facilities Department
Attn: Director of Facilities

3101 SE Inner Loop

Georgetown, Texas 78626

County shall have the right, from time to time, to change the County’s Designated Representative
by giving A/E written notice thereof. With respect to any action, decision, or determination which
is to be taken or made by County under this Agreement, the County’s Designated Representative
may take such action or make such decision or determination or shall notify A/E in writing of an
individual responsible for, and capable of, taking such action, decision, or determination, and shall
forward any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action.
Actions, decisions or determinations by County’s Designated Representative on behalf of County
shall be done in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters
therefor are included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by County’s Designated
Representative shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters. Any consent,
approval, decision, or determination hereunder by County’s Designated Representative shall be
binding on County; provided, however, County’s Designated Representative shall not have any
right to modify, amend, or terminate this Agreement or executed Supplemental Agreement.
County’s Designated Representative shall not have any authority to execute a Supplemental
Agreement unless otherwise granted such authority by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court.

A/E’s Designated Representative for purposes of this Agreement is as follows:
Hendrix Consulting Engineers, P.C.
Byron Hendrix, Professional Engineer, Owner
115 East Main Street
Round Rock, TX 78664

A/E shall have the right, from time to time, to change A/E’s Designated Representative by giving

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 6 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

County written notice thereof. With respect to any action, decision, or determination which is to
be taken or made by A/E under this Agreement, A/E’s Designated Representative may take such
action or make such decision or determination, or shall notify County in writing of an individual
responsible for and capable of taking such action, decision, or determination and shall forward
any communications and documentation to such individual for response or action. Actions,
decisions, or determinations by A/E’s Designated Representative on behalf of A/E shall be done
in his or her reasonable business judgment unless express standards or parameters therefor are
included in this Agreement, in which case, actions taken by A/E’s Designated Representative
shall be in accordance with such express standards or parameters. Any consent, approval,
decision, or determination hereunder by A/E’s Designated Representative shall be binding on
A/E. A/E’s Designated Representative shall have the right to modify, amend, and execute
Supplemental Agreements on behalf of A/E.

ARTICLE 10
NOTICE

Any notice required to be given under the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be duly served when it shall have been deposited, enclosed in a wrapper with the proper
postage prepaid thereon, and duly registered or certified, return receipt requested, in a United
States Post Office, addressed to County or A/E at the following addresses. If mailed, any notice
or communication shall be deemed to be received three (3) days after the date of deposit in the
United States Mail. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all notices shall be delivered to
the following addresses:

County: Williamson County Judge
710 Main Street, Suite 101
Georgetown, Texas 78626

With copy to: Williamson County Facilities Department
Attn: Director of Facilities
3101 SE Inner Loop
Georgetown, Texas 78626

and to: Office of General Counsel
Williamson County Commissioners Court
401 W. 6! Street
Georgetown, Texas 78626

AlE: Hendrix Consulting Engineers, P.C.
115 East Main Street
Round Rock, TX 78664

Attention: Byron Hendrix
Professional Engineer, Owner

Either party may designate a different address by giving the other party ten (10) days written
notice.

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 7 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

ARTICLE 11
PROGRESS EVALUATION

A/E shall, from time to time during the progress of the Basic Services and, when applicable,
progress of Additional Services, confer with County at County’s election. A/E shall prepare and
present such information as may be pertinent and necessary, or as may be reasonably requested
by County, in order for County to evaluate features of the Basic Services and any applicable
Additional Services. At the request of County or A/E, conferences shall be provided at A/E's
office, the offices of County, or at other locations designated by County. When requested by
County, such conferences shall also include evaluation of the Basic Services and any applicable
Additional Services. County may, from time to time, require A/E to appear and provide information
to the Williamson County Commissioners Court.

Should County determine that the progress in Basic Services or any applicable Additional
Services does not satisfy the terms of this Agreement, then County shall review same with A/E
to determine corrective action required.

A/E shall promptly advise County in writing of events which have or may have a significant impact
upon the progress of the Basic Services and any applicable Additional Services, including but
not limited to the following:

111

Problems, delays, adverse conditions which may materially affect the ability to meet the objectives
of this Agreement or preclude the attainment of Project Basic Services and any applicable
Additional Services by established time periods; and such disclosure shall be accompanied by
statement of actions taken or contemplated, and County assistance needed to resolve the
situation, if any; and

11.2
Favorable developments or events which enable meeting goals sooner than anticipated in
relation to this Agreement or any applicable Supplemental Agreement.

ARTICLE 12
CHANGES IN COMPLETED BASIC SERVICES

If County deems it necessary to request changes to previously satisfactorily completed Basic
Services or parts thereof which involve changes to the original Basic Services or character of
Basic Services under this Agreement, then A/E shall make such revisions as requested and as
directed by County. Such revisions shall be considered as Additional Services and paid for as
specified under Article 7 and Article 8. A/E shall make revisions to Basic Services authorized
hereunder as are necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by
County. No additional compensation shall be due for such Basic Services.

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 8 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

ARTICLE 13
REVIEW PROCESS AND REVISIONS TO A/E WORK PRODUCT

13.1 Review Process.
A/E's Work Product will be reviewed by County under its applicable technical requirements and
procedures, as follows:

13.1.1 Submittal.

Reports, plans, surveys, field notes, original drawings, computer tapes, graphic files,
tracings, calculations, analyses, reports, specifications, data, sketches and/or schematics
prepared by A/E and supporting documents (collectively referred to hereinabove and
hereinafter as the "A/E Work Product(s)"), shall be submitted by A/E on or before the dates
specified for completion, as set out in the Production Schedule set forth in Exhibit C.

13.1.2 Completion.

Reports, plans, specifications, and supporting documents shall be submitted by A/E on or
before the dates specified in Exhibit C. Upon receipt of same, the submission shall be
checked for completion. "Completion" or “Complete” shall be defined as all of the required
items, as set out in Exhibit A, have been included in compliance with the requirements of
this Agreement. The completeness of any Basic Services submitted to County shall be
determined by County within thirty (30) days of such submittal and County shall notify A/E
in writing within such thirty (30) day period if such Basic Services have been found to be
incomplete. If the submission is Complete, County will notify A/E and County’s technical
review process will begin.

If the submission is not Complete, County will notify A/E, who shall perform such professional
services as are required to complete the Basic Services and resubmit it to County. This process
shall be repeated until a submission is Complete.

13.1.3 Acceptance.

County will review the completed Basic Services in each design phase for compliance with
this Agreement and general conformance with the Design Deliverable Guidelines.
"Acceptance" or “Accepted” shall mean that in County’s reasonable opinion, substantial
compliance with the requirements of this Agreement has been achieved.

If a lack of coordination between subconsultant documents is discovered in the A/E work
product, which is not specifically called-out by A/E as a pending coordination item, the
work product will be returned to A/E along with written email notification which may
describe preliminary deficiencies discovered and may reference the terms of Paragraph
13.1.3 of this Agreement. A/E shall perform any required corrections to Basic Services
and resubmit to County.

Should this process need to be repeated for the same or subsequent deficiencies related
to the initial deficiencies, County will issue a marked-up work product to A/E indicating
specific deficiencies for correction. County will also issue a notice for A/E to deduct One
Thousand Dollars ($ 1,000 ) from the A/E ‘s Basic Fee on the next invoice for each
occurrence until the Basic Services are Accepted.

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 9 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

13.1.4 Final Approval.

After Acceptance, A/E shall perform any required modifications, changes, alterations,
corrections, redesigns, and additional work necessary to receive Final Approval by
County. "Final Approval" in this sense shall mean formal recognition that the Basic
Services have been fully carried out.

13.2 Revision to A/E Work Product.

A/E shall make, without expense to County, such revisions to A/E Work Product as may be
required to correct negligent errors or omissions so A/E Work Product meets the needs of County,
but after the approval of A/E Work Product any revisions, additions, or other modifications made
at County's request which involve extra services and expenses to A/E shall entitle A/E to
additional compensation for such extra services and expenses; provided, however, A/E hereby
agrees to perform any necessary corrections to A/E Work Products which are found to be in
negligent error or omission as a result of A/E’s development of A/E Work Product, at any time,
without additional compensation. Ifitis necessary, due to such error or omission by A/E, to revise
any A/E Work Product in order to make the Project constructible, A/E shall do so without additional
compensation. In the event of any dispute over the classification of A/E’s Work Products as
Complete, Accepted, or Approved under this Agreement, the decision of County shall be final and
binding on A/E, subject to any civil remedy or determination otherwise available to the parties and
deemed appropriate by the parties.

13.3 Days.
All references to a “day” in this Agreement shall mean a calendar day unless otherwise specified.

13.4 County’s Reliance on A/E.
A/E’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any
review, evaluation, or approval by County nor shall A/E be released from any liability by
reason of such review, evaluation or approval by County, it being understood that County,
at all times, is ultimately relying upon A/E’s skill, ability, and knowledge in performing the
Basic Services required hereunder.

ARTICLE 14
SUSPENSION

Should County desire to suspend the Basic Services, but not to terminate this Agreement, then
such suspension may be effected by County giving A/E thirty (30) calendar days’ verbal
notification followed by written confirmation to that effect. Such thirty (30)-day notice may be
waived in writing by agreement and signature of both parties. The Basic Services may be
reinstated and resumed in full force and effect within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice
from County to resume the Basic Services. Such sixty (60)-day notice may be waived in writing
by agreement and signature of both parties. If this Agreement is suspended for more than thirty
(30) days, A/E shall have the option of terminating this Agreement and, in the event, A/E shall be
compensated for all Basic Services performed and reimbursable expenses incurred, provided
such Basic Services and reimbursable expenses have been previously authorized and approved
by County, to the effective date of suspension.

County assumes no liability for Basic Services performed or costs incurred prior to the date
authorized by County for A/E to begin Basic Services, and/or during periods when Basic Services
are suspended, and/or subsequent to the completion date.

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 10 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

ARTICLE 15
VIOLATION OF CONTRACT TERMS/ BREACH OF CONTRACT

Violation of contract terms or breach of contract by A/E shall be grounds for termination of this
Agreement, and any increased costs arising from A/E’s default, breach of contract, or violation of
contract terms shall be paid by A/E.

ARTICLE 16
TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below.

16.1
By mutual agreement and consent, in writing, of both parties.

16.2
By County, by notice in writing to A/E, as a consequence of failure by A/E to perform the Basic
Services set forth herein in a satisfactory manner.

16.3
By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill its obligations as set forth herein.

16.4
By County, for reasons of its own and not subject to the mutual consent of A/E, upon not less than
thirty (30) days written notice to A/E.

16.5
By satisfactory completion of all Basic Services and obligations described herein.

Should County terminate this Agreement as herein provided, no fees other than fees due and
payable at the time of termination plus reimbursable expenses incurred shall thereafter be paid
to A/E. In determining the value of the Basic Services performed by A/E prior to termination,
County shall be the sole judge. Compensation for Basic Services at termination will be based on
a percentage of the Basic Services completed at that time. Should County terminate this
Agreement under Section 16.4 above, then the amount charged during the thirty (30)-day notice
period shall not exceed the amount charged during the preceding thirty (30) days.

If A/E defaults in the performance of this Agreement or if County terminates this Agreement for
fault on the part of A/E, then County shall give consideration to the actual costs incurred by A/E
in performing the Basic Services to the date of default, the amount of Basic Services required
which was satisfactorily completed to date of default, the value of the Basic Services which are
usable to County, the cost to County of employing another firm to complete the Basic Services
required and the time required to do so, and other factors which affect the value to County of the
Basic Services performed at the time of default.

The termination of this Agreement and payment of an amount in settlement as prescribed above
shall extinguish all rights, duties, and obligations of County under this Agreement. If the

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 11 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of A/E to fulfill its contractual obligations, then
County may take over the Project and prosecute the Basic Services to completion. In such case,
A/E shall be liable to County for any additional and reasonable costs incurred by County.

A/E shall be responsible for the settlement of all contractual and administrative issues arising out
of any procurements made by A/E in support of the Basic Services under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 17
USE OF DOCUMENTS

All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, and data or programs stored
electronically, (hereinafter referred to as “A/E Work Products”) prepared by A/E and its
subcontractors/ subconsultants are related exclusively to the services described in this
Agreement and are intended to be used with respect to this Project. However, it is expressly
understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that all of A/E’s designs under this
Agreement (including but not limited to tracings, drawings, estimates, specifications,
investigations, studies and other documents, completed or partially completed), shall be the
property of County to be thereafter used in any lawful manner as County elects. Any such
subsequent use made of documents by County shall be at County’s sole risk and without liability
to AJE.

By execution of this Agreement and in confirmation of the fee for services to be paid under this
Agreement, A/E hereby conveys, transfers, and assigns to County all rights under the Federal
Copyright Act of 1976 (or any successor copyright statute), as amended, all common law
copyrights and all other intellectual property rights acknowledged by law in the Project Designs
and Work Product developed under this Agreement. Copies may be retained by A/E. A/E shall
be liable to County for any loss or damage to any such documents while they are in the possession
of or while being worked upon by A/E or anyone connected with A/E, including agents, employees,
Engineers or subcontractors/ subconsultants. All documents so lost or damaged shall be
replaced or restored by A/E without cost to County.

Upon execution of this Agreement, A/E grants to County permission to reproduce A/E’s work and
documents for purposes of constructing, using, and maintaining the Project, provided that County
will comply with its obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when due, under this
Agreement. A/E shall obtain similar permission from A/E’s subcontractors/ subconsultants
consistent with this Agreement. If and upon the date A/E is adjudged in default of this Agreement,
County is permitted to authorize other similarly credentialed design professionals to reproduce
and, where permitted by law, to make changes, corrections, or additions to the work and
documents for the purposes of completing, using, and maintaining the Project.

County shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge, or otherwise transfer any permission
granted herein to another party without the prior written consent of A/E. However, County shall
be permitted to authorize the contractor, subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers to
reproduce applicable portions of A/E Work Products appropriate to and for use in the execution
of the Work. Submission or distribution of A/E Work Products to meet official regulatory
requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is permitted. Any unauthorized
use of A/E Work Products shall be at County's sole risk and without liability to A/E and its
subconsultants.

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 12 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

Prior to A/E providing to County any A/E Work Products in electronic form or County providing to
A/E any electronic data for incorporation into A/E Work Products, County and A/E shall, by
separate written agreement, set forth the specific conditions governing the format of such A/E
Work Products or electronic data, including any special limitations not otherwise provided in this
Agreement. Any electronic files are provided by A/E for the convenience of County and use of
them is at County’s sole risk. In the case of any defects in electronic files or any discrepancies
between them and any hardcopy of the same documents prepared by A/E, the hardcopy shall
prevail. Only printed copies of documents conveyed by A/E shall be relied upon.

A/E shall have no liability for changes made to the drawings by other consultants subsequent to
the completion of the Project. Any such change shall be sealed by A/E making that change and
shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified.

ARTICLE 18
PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL

A/E shall furnish and maintain, at its own expense, quarters for the performance of all Basic
Services, and adequate and sufficient personnel and equipment to perform the Basic Services as
required. All employees of A/E shall have such knowledge and experience as will enable them
to perform the duties assigned to them. Any employee of A/E who, in the reasonable opinion of
County, is incompetent or whose conduct becomes detrimental to the Basic Services shall
immediately be removed from association with the Project when so instructed by County. A/E
certifies that it presently has adequate qualified personnel in its employment for performance of
the Basic Services required under this Agreement, or will obtain such personnel from sources
other than County. A/E may not change the Project Manager without prior written consent of
County.

ARTICLE 19
SUBCONTRACTING

A/E shall not assign, subcontract, or transfer any portion of the Basic Services under this
Agreement without prior written approval from County. All subcontracts shall include the
provisions required in this Agreement. No subcontract shall relieve A/E of any responsibilities
under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 20
MODIFICATIONS

This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties relating to the right herein
granted and obligations herein assumed. Any oral or written representations or modifications
concerning this instrument shall be of no force and effect excepting a subsequent written
modification signed by both parties hereto.

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 13 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

ARTICLE 21
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

21.1 Compliance.

A/E shall render the services hereunder in accordance with generally accepted standards
applicable thereto and shall use that degree of care and skill commensurate with the architecture
and engineering professions, and in recognition of such standards, A/E shall comply with all
applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations, and
the orders and decrees of any court, or administrative bodies or tribunals in any manner affecting
the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, minimum/ maximum salary and
wage statutes and regulations, and licensing laws and regulations. A/E shall furnish County with
satisfactory proof of its compliance.

A/E shall further obtain all permits and licenses required in the performance of the Basic Services
contracted for herein.

21.2 Taxes.

A/E shall pay all taxes, if any, required by law arising by virtue of the Basic Services performed
hereunder. County is qualified for exemption pursuant to the provisions of Section 151.309 of
the Texas Limited Sales, Excise, and Use Tax Act.

ARTICLE 22
INDEMNIFICATION

A/E AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY
HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS,
LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A
NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION, NEGLIGENCE, OR INTENTIONAL TORT COMMITTED BY A/E, A/E’S
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY UNDER CONTRACT WITH A/E INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, A/E’S SUBCONSULTANTS, OR ANY OTHER ENTITY OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES
CONTROL.

A/E FURTHER AGREES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES, LOSSES, PENALTIES, JUDGMENTS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS,
DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEES,
(“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM A/E’S FAILURE TO PAY
A/E’S EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, IN CONNECTION WITH ANY
OF THE WORK PERFORMED OR TO BE PERFORMED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BY A/E.

A/E FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES,
LOSSES, PENALTIES, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, (“LOSSES”) TO THE EXTENT SUCH LOSSES ARE CAUSED
BY OR RESULTS FROM THE INFRINGEMENT OF ANY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF THE USE
OF ANY PLANS, DESIGN, DRAWINGS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FURNISHED BY A/E IN THE PERFORMANCE OF
THIS AGREEMENT.

THE LIMITS OF INSURANCE REQUIRED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
SHALL NOT LIMIT A/E’S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS ARTICLE 22. THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 14 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

CONTAINED IN THIS ARTICLE 22 SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR THE SUSPENSION OF THE WORK HEREUNDER. TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY
LIABILITIES, PENALTIES, DEMANDS, CLAIMS, LAWSUITS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, COSTS AND EXPENSES
ARE CAUSED IN PART BY THE ACTS OF COUNTY OR THIRD PARTIES FOR WHOM A/E IS NOT LEGALLY
LIABLE, A/E’S OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE IN PROPORTION TO A/E’S FAULT. THE OBLIGATIONS HEREIN
SHALL ALSO EXTEND TO ANY ACTIONS BY COUNTY TO ENFORCE THIS INDEMNITY OBLIGATION.

IN THE EVENT THAT CONTRACTORS INITIATE LITIGATION AGAINST COUNTY IN WHICH CONTRACTOR
ALLEGES DAMAGES AS A RESULT OF ANY ACTS, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS OF A/E OR ANY OF ITS
EMPLOYEES OR ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E,
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, DEFECTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS IN THE CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS OR IN THE ADMINISTRATION OF THIS AGREEMENT BY A/E OR ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES OR
ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY A/E, AND/OR
INADEQUATE SERVICES PURSUANT TO THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE-ADMINISTRATION OF THE
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AS DEFINED AND REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT, AGREEMENT EXHIBITS
AND THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, THEN COUNTY SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO JOIN
A/E AT COUNTY’S COST. A/E SHALL ALSO HOLD COUNTY HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY COUNTY TO THE
EXTENT THAT A/E, ANY OF ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR
SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E EXERCISES CONTROL, CAUSED SUCH DAMAGES TO
CONTRACTOR, INCLUDING ANY AND ALL COSTS AND ATTORNEYS' FEES INCURRED BY COUNTY IN
CONNECTION WITH THE DEFENSE OF ANY CLAIMS WHERE A/E, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS, OR OTHER ENTITIES OVER WHICH A/E
EXERCISES CONTROL, ARE ADJUDICATED AT FAULT.

ARTICLE 23
PROFESSIONAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES

A/E shall be responsible for the accuracy of its Professional Services and shall promptly make
necessary revisions or corrections to its Work Product resulting from errors, omissions, or
negligent acts, and same shall be done without compensation. County shall determine A/E’s
responsibilities for all questions arising from design errors and/or omissions, subject to the dispute
resolution provisions of Article 31. A/E shall not be relieved of responsibility for subsequent
correction of any such errors or omissions in its work product, or for clarification of any ambiguities
until after the construction phase of the Project has been completed.

ARTICLE 24
PROFESSIONAL’S SEAL

The responsible architect and engineer shall sign, seal, and date all appropriate submissions to

County in accordance with Texas laws and the rules of the State Boards of Registration for
Professionals.

ARTICLE 25
INSURANCE

A/E shall comply with the following insurance requirements, at all times, during this Agreement:

Professional Services Agreement — PLAE Page 15 of 23
Form rev. 10/2024 4100.1009



2/3/2025
CJC Chiller Plants & S. Boiler Design

25.1 Coverage Limits.
A/E, at A/E’s sole cost, shall purchase and maintain, during the entire term while this Agreement
is in effect, the following insurance:

2511
Worker's Compensation in accordance with statutory requirements.

25.1.2
Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined minimum Bodily Injury and
Property Damage limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate.

25.1.3
Automobile Liability Insurance for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with combined
minimum limits for Bodily Injury and Property Damage limits of $500,000 per occurrence

and $1,000,000 in the aggregate.

2514
Professional Liability Errors and Omissions Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per
claim.

25.2 Add